DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 458 070 RC 023 207

AUTHOR Hammer, Patricia Cahape, Comp.; Moellendick, Charlotte,

Comp.; Moellendick, Joseph, Comp.

TITLE Native Education Directory, 2002: Organizations and

Resources for Educators of Native Americans.

INSTITUTION AEL, Inc., Charleston, WV.; ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural

Education and Small Schools, Charleston, WV.; National

Indian Education Association, Arlington, VA.

SPONS AGENCY Office of Educational Research and Improvement (ED),

Washington, DC.

ISBN ISBN-1-880785-24-2

PUB DATE 2002-00-00

NOTE 112p.; Online searchable directory is updated periodically.

CONTRACT ED-99-CO-0027

AVAILABLE FROM ERIC/CRESS, PO Box 1348, Charleston, WV 25325-1348 (\$12).

For full text: http://www.ael.org/eric/ned/.

PUB TYPE ERIC Publications (071) -- Reference Materials -

Directories/Catalogs (132)

EDRS PRICE MF01/PC05 Plus Postage.

DESCRIPTORS Advocacy; *American Indian Education; *College Programs;

Colleges; *Federal Programs; Higher Education; International Organizations; *National Organizations; Nongovernmental

Organizations; *National Organizations; Nongovernmental Organizations; Public Agencies; Publications; *Resource Materials; Technical Assistance; Tribally Controlled

Education; Youth Programs

IDENTIFIERS Native American Studies

ABSTRACT

This fifth edition of the Native Education Directory presents a rich array of activity in Indian country: organizing, leading, researching, administering, governing, publishing, broadcasting, and educating. Section 1, national and international nongovernment organizations, is broken down into four subsections covering advocacy, networking, and reform; research, development, technical assistance, and training; funding and sponsorship; and youth leadership, mentoring, and service. Section 2, federal programs, consists of 8 subsections; one each for the Departments of Education, Health and Human Services, Housing and Urban Development, Interior, and Labor; Congress; the National Science Foundation; and the Smithsonian Institution. Section 3 covers media, periodicals, publishers, and producers of other useful directories. Section 4 presents state and territorial government and nongovernment organizations. Section 5 covers colleges and universities offering Native studies, Native language instruction, supportive services, or scholarships for Native students. In all sections, each entry lists contact information, including address, contact person, phone, fax, e-mail, and Web site (when available); the area served; and a short program description. (Contains an index.) (TD)





NATIVE Education Directory

Organizations and Resources for Educators of Native Americans

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Office of Educational Research and Improvement EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)

- This document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization originating it.
- Minor changes have been made to improve reproduction quality.
- Points of view or opinions stated in this document do not necessarily represent official OERI position or policy.

Native Education Directory Organizations and Resources for Educators of Native Americans

2002

Compiled by

Patricia Cahape Hammer Charlotte Moellendick Joseph Moellendick

ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools

AEL, Inc., Charleston, WV and

National Indian Education Association

Alexandria, VA

This directory is a copublication of

ERIC

Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools AEL, Inc.

P.O. Box 1348 Charleston, WV 25325-1348 http://www.ael.org/eric/ 800-624-9120 ericrc@ael.org and

National Indian Education Association

700 N Fairfax St., Ste. 210 Alexandria, VA 22314 http://www.niea.org 703-838-2870 niea@mindspring.com

© 2002 by AEL, Inc.

All rights reserved except for use by the government of the United States of America. Printed in the United States of America.

ISBN 1-880785-24-2

The ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools is operated by AEL, Inc. and funded by the U.S. Department of Education. AEL is a catalyst for schools and communities to build lifelong learning systems that harness resources, research, and practical wisdom. Information about AEL projects, programs, and services is available on our Web site or by writing or calling us. AEL is an affirmative action/equal opportunity employer.

This publication was prepared with funding from the Office of Educational Research and Improvement, U.S. Department of Education, under contract no. ED-99-CO-0027. The opinions expressed herein do not necessarily reflect the positions or policies of OERI, the Department, or AEL. Inclusion in this directory should not be interpreted as an endorsement of the organization.

Table of Contents

Preface		iv
Section 1	National and International Nongovernment Organizations	
	1.1 Advocacy, Networking, and Reform	2
	1.2 Research, Development, Technical Assistance, and Training	g 10
	1.3 Funding and Sponsorship	18
	1.4 Youth Leadership, Mentoring, and Service	19
Section 2	Federal Programs	
	2.1 Department of Education	22
	2.2 Department of Health and Human Services	25
	2.3 Department of Housing and Urban Development	27
	2.4 Department of Interior	27
	2.5 Department of Labor	33
	2.6 Congress	33
	2.7 National Science Foundation	34
	2.8 Smithsonian Institution	34
Section 3	Media, Periodicals, Publishers, and Producers	38
	Other Useful Directories	39
Section 4	State and Territorial Government and Nongovernment Organizations	48
Section 5	Colleges and Universities Offering Native Studies, Native Language	
	Instruction, Supportive Services, or Scholarships for Native Students	64
Index		97

Preface

This is the fifth edition of the *Native Education Directory*. For this edition, we have followed the pattern established with our 1997 edition, so if you had a copy of it, this one will look like familiar terrain to you. This edition of the directory also signifies a first-ever partnership with the National Indian Education Association (NIEA). We look forward to an ongoing relationship with NIEA in publishing this and other American Indian and Alaska Native materials.

We have published what people have told us about their organizations. We have no way of checking the accuracy of the information they have provided about themselves, so nothing in this directory should be read as an endorsement by the Clearinghouse or by the National Indian Education Association. The contents reflect a rich array of activity in Indian Country: organizing, leading, researching, administering, governing, publishing, broadcasting, and educating.

We would like to thank all of those who responded to our letters, faxes, e-mail requests, and telephone calls. We also owe thanks to Gaytha Jones, Velma Mitchell, Cindy Dawson, Marilyn Slack, Dawn Pauley, Robert Hagerman, Susan Voelkel, and Carolyn Luzader for various sorts of help in preparing the manuscript for publication.

An online version of the directory will be maintained and updated as we hear from people about changes at their organizations. You can access the online directory at the ERIC/CRESS Web site (http://www.ael.org/eric/ned/index.htm). If you are associated with a group that you think should be included in the online directory or the next print edition, please visit the Web site, where you will find a link to an online entry request form. –PCH



Section 1 National and International Nongovernment Organizations

1.1 ADVOCACY, NETWORKING, AND REFORM

American Indian Heritage Foundation

American Indian Heritage Foundation

6051 Arlington Blvd. Falls Church, VA 22044

Contact: Princess Pale Moon, President

Telephone: 703-237-7500 Fax: 703-532-1921 Area Served: U.S.

Serves Indian tribes, centers, schools, and families through the following programs: American Indian Children's Literacy Campaign, National Indian Student Eagle Awards, and American Indian Heritage Month. Major activities include scholarships for Indian students, emergency relief and grants, annual urgent needs survey, and public information.

American Indian Higher Education Consortium

American Indian Higher Education Consortium

121 Oronoco St. Alexandria, VA 22314

Contact: Gerald E. Gipp, Executive Director

Telephone: 703-838-0400 Fax: 703-838-0388 E-mail: aihec@aihec.org Web Site: http://www.aihec.org/

Web Site: http://www.aihec.org Area Served: U.S. and Canada

Represents 32 colleges and universities in the United States and one in Canada. Advocates on behalf of institutions defined and controlled by their respective tribal nations. Strives to maintain commonly held standards of quality in American Indian education, support the development of new tribally controlled colleges, promote and assist in the development of legislation to support American Indian higher education, and encourage greater participation by American Indians in the development of higher education policy. Web site furnishes detailed information for each member college.

Publishes quarterly "Tribal College Journal."

American Indian Library Association

American Indian Library Association American Library Association 100 Riverview Ctr.

Middletown, CT 06457

Contact: Lisa Mitten, Social Sciences Subject

Editor, CHOICE Magazine

Fax: 603-649-6120

E-mail: mitten@nativeculture.zzn.com Web Site: http://www.nativeculture.com/

lisamitten/aila.html Area Served: U.S.

Provides information relevant to Native American issues (past and present), education, publications, and much more. Education section includes information on how to gain access to bibliographies on unbiased Native American education materials, guides to Native American colleges and programs, Native American Web sites, and other useful resources.

Publishes "AILA Newsletter." Hosts annual summer conference.

Assembly of First Nations

Assembly of First Nations Chief's Committee on Education National Indian Brotherhood 1 Nicholas St., Ste. 1002 Ottawa ON K1N 7B7

Canada

Contact: Matthew Coon Come, President,

National Chief

Telephone: 613-241-6789 Fax: 613-241-5808 E-mail: education@afn.ca Web Site: http://www.afn.ca

Area Served: Canada

Promotes the restoration and enhancement of a peaceful and coexistent relationship mutually beneficial to the First Nations people through national representation and lobbying. Presents views of the various First Nations in areas such as

Aboriginal and treaty rights, economic development, education, languages and literacy, health, housing, social development, justice, land claims, and the environment.

Holds annual meeting.

Association of American Indian Physicians

Association of American Indian Physicians 1225 Sovereign Row, Ste. 103 Oklahoma City, OK 73108

Contact: Margaret Knight, Executive Director

Telephone: 405-946-7072 Fax: 405-946-7651 E-mail: aaip@aaip.com

Web Site: http://www.aaip.com

Area Served: U.S.

Pursues excellence in Native American health care by promoting education in the medical disciplines, honoring traditional healing practices, and restoring the balance of mind, body, and spirit. Assists American Indian and Alaska Native students as they work to enter the health professions through its preadmission workshops, improved mentoring program, National Native American Youth Initiative, and partnership with the Association of Native American Medical Students (ANAMS).

Hosts annual and midyear conferences.

Association of Community Tribal Schools (ACTS)

Association of Community Tribal Schools (ACTS)

616 4th Ave. N. Sisseton, SD 57262

Contact: Roger Bordeaux, Executive Director

Telephone: 605-698-3112 Fax: 605-698-7686

E-mail: roger@www.wambdi.bia.edu

Association on American Indian Affairs

Association on American Indian Affairs

Box 268

Sisseton, SD 57262 Telephone: 605-698-3998 Fax: 605-698-3316 E-mail: aaia@tnics.com

Web Site: http://www.indian-affairs.org

Area Served: U.S.

Promotes the welfare of American Indians, Aleuts, and Eskimos of the United States. Assists and protects the constitutional rights of these groups; improves health, economic, and educational conditions; and supports the perpetuation of their cultures. Gathers and disseminates facts about the welfare of these groups to help form an enlightened public opinion and constructive national policy. Gives hundreds of college students each year the opportunity to pursue their degrees through scholarships. Scholarships require the applicant to be at least one quarter degree Indian blood and from a federally recognized tribe.

Publishes annual report "Indian Affairs: Newsletter of the Association of American Indian Affairs."

Cohosts annual regional conference.

Consortia of Administrators for Native American Rehabilitation (CANAR)

Consortia of Administrators for Native American Rehabilitation (CANAR) Institute for Human Development Northern Arizona University

P.O. Box 5630

Flagstaff, AZ 86011 5630

Contact: Treva Roanhorse, President

Telephone: 520-523-4791 Fax: 520-523-9127

Web Site: http://www.nau/ihd/CANAR/

Area Served: U.S.

Serves as a vehicle for collaboration and cooperation between administrators of rehabilitation projects serving Native American persons with disabilities, increasing and enhancing the quality of services. Provides a forum to enable rehabilitation administrators for Native American persons to study, deliberate, and act upon matters affecting rehabilitation. Forms partnerships in research, training, and dissemination activities.

Publishes quarterly newsletter and the "American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation Program Directory."

Cohosts midyear national conference.

Council for Exceptional Children

Council for Exceptional Children 1110 N. Glebe Rd., Ste. 300 Arlington, VA 22201 4795

Contact: Karen Ulans, Executive Director Telephone: 703-620-3660, TTY 703-264-9446

Fax: 703-264-9494

E-mail: karenu@cec.sped.org Web Site: http://www.cec.sped.org

Area Served: U.S.

Dedicated to improving educational outcomes for individuals with exceptionalities, students with disabilities, and/or the gifted. Advocates for appropriate governmental policies, sets professional standards, provides continual professional development, supports underserved individuals with exceptionalities, and helps professionals obtain conditions and resources necessary for effective professional practice.

Publishes resource catalog "CEC Today," journals, and books.

Conducts continuing education workshops.

First Nations Development Institute

First Nations Development Institute 11917 Main St., The Stores Bldg. Fredericksburg, VA 22408

Contact: Rebecca L. Adamson, President

Telephone: 540-371-5615 Fax: 540-371-3505

Web Site: http://www.firstnations.org

Area Served: U.S.

Promotes culturally appropriate economic development by and for Native peoples through education, advocacy, and information on funding resources. Coordinates local projects with national programs to build self-reliant reservation economies.

Hosts annual summer conference.

Indigenous Environmental Network

Indigenous Environmental Network En'owkin Centre and the Penticton Indian Band Okanagan Nation

P.O. Box 485

Bemidji, MN 56619 Telephone: 218-751-4967

Fax: 218-751-0561 E-mail: ien@igc.org

Web Site: http://www.ienearth.org/

Area Served: U.S.

Traditional gathering with workshops and teachings. Focuses on sustainable agriculture, traditional food systems and the right to food, energy policies, and Indigenous peoples (oil, hydro, nuclear, gas-methane, coal, renewable). Also focuses on climate change, persistent organic pollutants (POPs), pesticides, mining, traditional ecological knowledge, treaty rights—land and water, sustainable forests, organizing skills and more. Among other services offered are limited travel (subsidy) scholarships

available to Native grassroots community representatives.

Indigenous Language Institute

Indigenous Language Institute 560 Montezuma Ave., 201-A

Santa Fe, NM 87501 Telephone: 505-820-0311 Fax: 505-820-0316

E-mail: ili@indigenous-language.org Web Site: http://www.ipola.org/index.html

Area Served: U.S.

Facilitates innovative, successful community-based initiatives for Indigenous language revitalization through collaboration with other appropriate groups and organizations and promotes public awareness of the language crisis.

Publishes newsletter "Native Language Network."

Hosts national conference.

International Indian Treaty Council (IITC)

International Indian Treaty Council (IITC)

2390 Mission St., Ste. 301 San Francisco, CA 94110

Contact: Andrea Carmen, Executive Director

Telephone: 415-641-4482 Fax: 415-641-1298 E-mail: iitc@igc.apc.org

Web Site: http://www.treatycouncil.org/

Area Served: North, Central, and South America

and the Pacific

Organization of Indigenous peoples working for the sovereignty and self-determination of Indigenous peoples and the recognition and protection of Indigenous rights, traditional cultures and sacred lands. Seeks, promotes, and builds official participation of Indigenous peoples in the United Nations and its specialized agencies, as well as other international forums. Disseminates information about Indigenous peoples' human rights issues, struggles, concerns, and perspectives on a variety of issues, including education.

International Work Group for Indigenous Affairs

International Work Group for Indigenous Affairs

Classensgade 11 E DK 2100 Copenhagen Denmark

Contact: Jens Dahl, Director Telephone: 45-35-27-05-00

Fax: 45-35-27-05-07 E-mail: iwgia@iwgia.org Web Site: http://www.iwgia.org Area Served: International

Supports Indigenous peoples' human rights, self-determination, right to territory, control of land and resources, cultural integrity, and the right to development. Collaborates with Indigenous peoples' organizations all over the world. Provides documentation about Indigenous affairs, including education, published as books and articles.

Publishes annual "Indigenous World," and quarterly "Indigenous Affairs," in English and Spanish.

Intertribal Timber Council

Intertribal Timber Council 1112 NE 21st Ave. Portland, OR 97232 2114

Telephone: 503-282-4296 Fax: 503-282-1274

E-mail: itcl@teleport.com Web Site: http://www.itcnet.org

Area Served: U.S.

Nationwide consortium of Indian Tribes, Alaska Native corporations, and individuals dedicated to improving the management of natural resources important to Native American communities. Works cooperatively with the Bureau of Indian Affairs, private industry, and academia to explore issues and identify practical strategies and initiatives to promote social, economic, and ecological values while protecting and utilizing forests, soil, water, and wildlife. Offers training sessions on current topics to Indian resource managers and tribal officials. Monitors current resource management-related legislative, administrative, and legal issues of importance to tribal communities.

Hosts annual timber symposium in the summer.

National Action Council for Minorities in Engineering (NACME)

National Action Council for Minorities in Engineering (NACME)

Empire State Bldg., 350 5th Ave., Ste. 2212

New York, NY 10118 2299

Contact: Betty Wagner, Executive Assistant to

the President

Telephone: 212-279 - 2626 Fax: 212-629 - 5178

E-mail: bwagner@nacme.org

Web Site: http://www.nacme.org/

Area Served: U.S.

Provides leadership and support for the national effort to increase the representation of successful African American, American Indian, and Latino men and women in engineering and technology and in mathematics and science-based careers. Fosters research-based changes in policies and practices that ensure equal opportunities for the preparation and participation of all Americans in science, engineering and technology. Conducts research; analyzes and advances public policies; develops and operates precollege; university and workforce programs; and disseminates information broadly through publications, conferences and the Internet. Nation's largest private source of scholarships for minorities in engineering.

National Association for Bilingual Education (NABE)

National Association for Bilingual Education

(NABE)

1030 15th St., NW, Ste. 470 Washington, DC 20005- 1503

Contact: Delia Pompa, Executive Director

Telephone: 202-898-1829 Fax: 202-789-2866 E-mail: nabe@nabe.org

Web Site: http://www.nabe.org/

Professional and advocacy association which addresses the educational needs of language-minority students in the U.S. and advances the language competencies and multicultural understanding of many Americans. Members include educators, parents, community members, and leaders of community, governmental, and business organizations. Through research, professional development, public education, and legislative advocacy, it seeks educational policies and practices which (1) ensure equal opportunities for the increasingly diverse students of America and (2) advance U.S. interests in an era of global interdependence and competition.

Publishes NABE News.

National Association for Multicultural Education (NAME)

National Association for Multicultural Education (NAME) 733 15th St., N. W., Ste. 430 Washington, DC 20005 Contact: Jill Moss Greenberg, Executive

Director

Telephone: 202-628-6263 Fax: 202-628-6264 E-mail: jill@nameorg.org

Web Site: http://www.nameorg.org

Area Served: International

Brings together individuals and groups with an interest in multicultural education from all levels of education, various disciplines, and from diverse educational institutions and occupations.

International membership includes educators (preschool through higher education) and representatives from business and local communities.

Hosts international conference annually in the fall.

National Association of Federally Impacted Schools (NAFIS)

National Association of Federally Impacted

Schools (NAFIS)

444 North Capitol St., NW, Ste. 419

Washington, DC 2000 I

Contact: John B. Forkenbrock, Executive

Director

Telephone: 202-624-5455 Fax: 202-624-5468 E-mail: johnfork@sso.org

Web Site: http://www.sso.org/nafis

A nationally recognized advocacy group for children affected by a federal presence. Works to ensure the principles upon which the Impact Aid program was based are maintained in statute, to ensure the program is fully funded, and to provide technical support to member school districts through securing expanded political support and a broadened, informed, and united membership.

National Center for Fair and Open Testing

National Center for Fair and Open Testing (Fair

Test)

342 Broadway

Cambridge, MA 02139 Telephone: 617-864-4810

Fax: 617-497-2224 E-mail: info@fairtest.com

Web Site: http://www.fairtest.org

Area Served: U.S.

Advocacy organization working to end the abuses, misuses, and flaws of standardized testing

and to ensure that evaluation of students and workers is fair, open, and educationally sound. Provides information, technical assistance, and advocacy on a broad range of testing concerns, focusing on three areas: K-12, university admissions, and employment tests, including teacher testing. Places special emphasis on eliminating the racial, class, gender, and cultural barriers to equal opportunity posed by standardized tests.

Publishes quarterly newsletter "The Examiner."

National Congress of American Indians

National Congress of American Indians 1301 Connecticut Ave., N. W., Ste. 200

Washington, DC 20036

Contact: JoAnn K. Chase, Executive Director

Telephone: 202-466-7767 Fax: 202-466-7797

Web Site: http://www.ncai.org

Area Served: U.S.

Representative congress of a broad membership of American Indian and Alaska Native governments aiming for consensus on national priority issues. Stresses the need for unity and cooperation among tribal governments and people for the security and protection of treaty and sovereign rights. Promotes a better understanding of Indian people among the public.

Hosts three conferences: winter, midyear, and fall.

National Indian Child Welfare Association

National Indian Child Welfare Association 5100 S. W. Macadam Ave., Ste. 300

Portland, OR 97230 Telephone: 503-222-4044 Fax: 503-222-4007

E-mail: info@nicwa.org Web Site: http://www.nicwa.org

Area Served: U.S.

Supports three major areas of activities: information exchange, community development, and public policy analysis. Monitors federal legislation and congressional budget processes that impact Indian children and families. Helps tribal communities proactively respond to children's and families' needs, advocates for adequate funding for tribal programs, and ensures proper implementation of the Child Welfare Act.

Hosts an annual spring conference.

National Indian Council on Aging

National Indian Council on Aging 10501 Montgomery Blvd., NE, Ste. 210

Albuquerque, NM 87111 3846

Contact: Dave Baldridge, Executive Director

Telephone: 505-292-2001 E-mail: dave@nicoa.org

Web Site: http://www.nicoa.org

Area Served: U.S.

Betters the lives of the nation's Indigenous seniors through advocacy, employment training, dissemination of information, and data support. Obtains and analyzes Indian-specific health data from the Health Care Financing Administration and the Indian Health Service, and provides summaries to Indian tribes, Indian health care providers, and urban Indian health programs. Offers employment training to more than 800 elders in 14 states.

National Indian Education Association

National Indian Education Association 700 N. Fairfax St., Ste. 210

Alexandria, VA 22314

Contact: John W. Cheek, Executive Director

Telephone: 703-838-2870 Fax: 703-838-1620

E-mail: niea@mindspring.com Web Site: http://www.niea.org

Area Served: U.S.

Aims to support traditional Native cultures and values, enable Native learners to become contributing members of their communities, promote Native control of educational institutions, and to improve educational opportunities and resources for American Indians and Alaska Natives throughout the United States. Unites Indians in changing ineffective education laws and ensuring that the Native voice is not excluded from policy decisions. Provides a forum whereby Indian educators can discuss current and long-range issues.

Hosts annual conference.

National Indian Head Start Directors Association (NIHSDA)

National Indian Head Start Directors

Association (NIHSDA) P.O. Box 6058

Norman, OK 73070

Contact: Ms. Kathryn Helsel, Manager

Telephone: 405-360-2919

Fax: 405-360-3069

E-mail: info@threefeathers.com

Area Served: U.S.

Membership organization for the Tribal Head Start programs funded through the Administration for Children and Families Head Start Bureau. As of July 2001, there were 176 in an area consisting of 26 states.

Publishes monthly "National Indian Head Start Alerts."

Hosts National Indian Head Start/Early Head Start Conference.

National Indian Health Board

National Indian Health Board 1385 S. Colorado Blvd., Ste. A707

Denver, CO 80222

Contact: Yvette Joseph-Fox, Executive Director

Telephone: 303-759-3075
Fax: 303-759-3674
E-mail: yjoseph@nihb.org
Web Site: http://www.nihb.org

Represents tribal governments that operate their own health care delivery systems through contracts and compacts, as well as those receiving health care directly from the Indian Health Service. Presents the tribal perspective while monitoring federal legislation. Searches out opportunities to network with other health care organizations on Indian health care issues. Conducts research, policy analysis,

program assessment and development, national and regional meeting planning, project management, and training and technical assistance programs.

Publishes quarterly newsletter. Hosts annual summer conference.

National Indian Impacted Schools Association

National Indian Impacted Schools Association Wapato School District

P.O. Box 38

Wapato, WA 98951 Telephone: 509-877-4181

Fax: 509-877-6097

E-mail: bgish@mahnomen.k12.mn.us

Area Served: U.S.

Serves school districts across the nation whose revenues are affected by loss of taxes due to the presence of tribal or trust lands. Promotes quality education for all children through lobbying Congress for increases in impact aid to support general operations, upkeep, and improvement of facilities.

Meets three times a year, including twice a year

in Washington, DC with parent organization, the National Association of Federally Impacted Schools.

National Indian School Board Association

National Indian School Board Association P.O. Box 790

Polson, MT 59860

Contact: Carmen Taylor, Executive Director

Telephone: 406-883-3603

Fax: 406-675-4801

E-mail: carmen_taylor@skc.edu

Area Served: U.S.

Provides quality education opportunities from early childhood throughout life to diverse Indian tribes and Alaska Native villages in keeping with their distinct cultural and governmental identities. Works toward achieving Indian control in all matters relating to Indian education through well-trained school board members and parent committees cooperating with their respective tribal governments.

Publishes a leadership manual "Leadership Beyond the Seventh Generation II."

National Johnson O'Malley Association (NJOMA)

National Johnson O'Malley Association

(NJOMA) P.O. Box 1644

Wewoka, OK 74884

Contact: Virginia Thomas, President Telephone: 918-756-8700 ext 608

Fax: 918-758-1499

E-mail: tdeputee@ocevnet.org

Area Served: U.S.

Promotes unity and provides a network of information among JOM programs nationwide. Advocates for changes in federal regulation, federal appropriations, and Indian laws affecting American Indian education in general.

Holds an annual conference.

National School Board Association

National Caucus of American Indian/Alaska Native School Board Members

National School Board Association

P.O. Box 1807

Merrifield, VA 22116 8007

Contact: Barbara Allen, Caucus Liaison

Telephone: 703-838-6157

Fax: 703-548-5516

Web Site: http://www.nsba.org/caucus/

indian-alaska/index.htm

Caucus leadership consists of four national officers and six regional vice presidents. Goals are to: promote quality education for all students; improve collaboration among all AI/AN school board members, their communities, political leaders, state school board associations, tribal education committees, and the National School Boards Association; encourage AI/AN school board members to support local chapter of Caucus; promote county, school district, LEA/REA, state and national legislation to improve educational opportunities and programs for AI/AN students; and promote representation and participation of AI/AN school board members within the National School Boards Association and its governance.

Native American Business Alliance

Native American Business Alliance 30600 Telegraph Rd., Ste. 3155 Bingham Farms, MI 48025 Telephone: 248-988-9344

Fax: 248-988-9348 E-mail: naba@ic.net

Web Site: http://www.native-american-bus.org

Area Served: U.S.

Facilitates mutually beneficial relationships between private and public businesses with Native American owned companies. Educates communities on Native American culture, paving the way for future generations.

Annual convention and seminars.

Native American Fish and Wildlife Society

Native American Fish and Wildlife Society 750 Burbank St.

Broomfield, CO 80020 Telephone: 303-466-1725 Fax: 303-466-5414

Web Site: http://www.nafws.org

Area Served: U.S.

National communications network for the exchange of information and management techniques related to self-determined tribal fish and wildlife management. Supports tribal decisionmakers in their efforts to ensure that resource bases are kept intact for future generations. Shares information on educational, legislative, biotechnical, economic, legal, fiscal, and enforcement programs. Represents professional biologists, natural resource managers, technicians,

and conservation law enforcement officers.

Publishes quarterly "From the Eagle's Nest."

Hosts annual national conference.

Native American Home School Association

Native American Home School Association Ani-Stohini/Unami Nation

P.O. Box 979 Fries, VA 24330

Contact: Misty Dawn Thomas, Chairwoman Web Site: http://expage.com/page/nahomeschool

Area Served: U.S.

Works and networks with families who have withdrawn their children from the public school systems in order to control their ethnic, cultural, religious, and social education. Seeks to provide Native American homeschoolers with the best possible educational sources and connections not only to help parents teach at home, but also to protect their right to do so. Functions on the belief that it is just as important for Native American children to have a knowledge of their languages, religion, history, songs, dances, stories, and crafts as it is for them to know about science, math, and English.

Publishes monthly "Home Education Magazine."

Native American Journalists Association

Native American Journalists Association

3359 36th Ave. S.

Minneapolis, MN 55406

Contact: Mark Anthony Rolo, Interim Executive

Director

Telephone: 612-729-9244

Fax: 612-729-9373 E-mail: info@naja.com

Web Site: http://www.naja.com/

Area Served: U.S.

Serves Native communicators through programs and activities designed to enrich journalism and promote Native cultures. Strives to improve communications among Native people and between Native Americans and the general public. Addresses the widespread barriers and challenges facing Native journalists, and builds on the strengths of Native communications.

Hosts annual spring conference.

Native American Public Telecommunications

Native American Public Telecommunications P.O. Box 83111

Lincoln, NE 68501 Telephone: 402-472-3522 Fax: 402-472-8675 E-mail: native@unl.edu

Web Site: http://www.nativetelecom.org/

Area Served: U.S.

Supports tribal sovereignty by informing, educating, and encouraging the awareness of tribal histories, cultures, languages, opportunities, and aspirations. Promotes full participation of American Indians and Alaska Natives in creating and using all forms of educational and public telecommunications programs and services.

Poverty and Race Research Action Council

Poverty and Race Research Action Council 3000 Connecticut Ave., NW, #200

Washington, DC 20008

Contact: Chester Hartman, Executive Director

Telephone: 202-387-9887
Fax: 202-387-0764
E-mail: info@prrac.org
Web Site: http://www.prrac.org

Established in 1990 by civil rights, antipoverty, and legal services groups, the Council networks researchers and activists working at the intersection of race and poverty; funds and commissions research projects that directly support advocacy work (i.e., litigation, legislation, community organizing, and public education); and rethinks effective antiracism and antipoverty strategies in order to assist other researchers, advocates, and funders.

Publishes bimonthly journal "Poverty & Race."

Society for the Advancement of Chicanos and Native Americans in Science (SACNAS)

Society for the Advancement of Chicanos and Native Americans in Science (SACNAS)

333 Front St., Ste. #104 Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Contact: Ronaldo Ramirez, Executive Director

Telephone: 831-459-0170 Fax: 831-459-0194 E-mail: info@sacnas.org

Web Site: http://www.sacnas.org/

Area Served: U.S.

Promotes opportunities in graduate science education for Chicano/Latino, Native American, and other underrepresented minority students, and provides students with unique opportunities to participate in research. Membership is composed of

science professors, industry scientists, K-12 educators, and students.

Publishes "SACNAS News Journal." Hosts annual national conference.

United South and Eastern Tribes, Inc. (USET)

United South and Eastern Tribes, Inc. (USET) 711 Stewarts Ferry Pike, Ste. 100

Nashville, TN 37214

Contact: James T. Martin, Executive Director

Telephone: 615-872-7900

Fax: 615-872-7417

E-mail: jtmartin@usetinc.org Web Site: http://usetinc.org

Area Served: U.S., South and Eastern tribes
Dedicated to enhancing the development of
Indian tribes, to improving the capabilities of tribal
governments, and assisting the member tribes and
their governments in dealing effectively with public
policy issues and in serving the broad needs of
Indian people, including education.

Sponsors annual meetings and Expo.

1.2 RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, AND TRAINING

American Association of Health Plans (AAHP Foundation)

Minority Management Development Program (MMDP)

American Association of Health Plans (AAHP

Foundation)

1129 20th St., N. W. Washington, DC 20036 Telephone: 202-778-3200 Web Site: http://www.aahp.org/

Area Served: DC, MD, AZ, TX, NM, southern

CA

America's health care education resource. Innovative postgraduate managerial fellowship program for individuals pursuing a career in health plan management. Provides fellows with experience through a seven-week didactic program that is coupled with a full-time practical training rotation. Offers mentoring services and opportunities to network with the nation's leading experts in health plan management and health care academia.

American Indian Air Quality Training Program (AIAQTP)

American Indian Air Quality Training Program (AIAOTP)

Northern Arizona University du Bois Center, Bldg. 64, Rm. 32

P.O. Box 15004 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Bridget Bero, Associate Professor

Telephone: 928-523-9555 Fax: 928-523-1266

E-mail: bridget.bero@nau.edu

Area Served: U.S.

Offers training on air quality topics to tribal

environmental professionals and teachers throughout the United States through workshops, one-on-one assistance, internships, a K-12 outreach program, and a resource center. AIAQTP also manages the "TAMS" (Tribal Air Monitoring Support) Center with EPA-Las Vegas.

Publishes "Native Voices" quarterly.

American Indian Institute

American Indian Institute College of Continuing Education University of Oklahoma 555 Constitution St., Ste. 237 Norman, OK 73072 7820

Contact: David Gover, Developer

Telephone: 405-325-4127

Fax: 405-325-7757

E-mail: aii@cce.occe.ou.edu <aii@cce.occe.ou.edu>

Web Site: http://www.occe.ou.edu/aii/

Area Served: International

Works to assist Indian people in implementing self-determination legislation through its many education/training programs, workshops, conferences, research projects, technical assistance activities, and grant/contract-supported projects. Conducts studies, performs data analyses, designs delivery systems, convenes conferences and meetings, delivers technical assistance, and implements needed projects and training programs. Helps provide solutions to complex problems and challenges facing Indian tribes and people on a statewide, regional, national, and international basis.

Publishes a curriculum and produces videos. Hosts various conferences on different subjects.

11

American Indian Rehabilitation Research & Training Center

American Indian Rehabilitation Research &

Training Center

Northern Arizona University

Institute for Human Development, Bldg. 27A

P.O. Box 5630 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Priscilla Lansing Sanderson, Director

Telephone: 928-523-4791 Fax: 928-523-9127

TDD: 928-523-1695 E-mail: Priscilla.Sanderson@nau.edu Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/~ihd/airrtc/

index.html

Improves the quality of life for American Indians with disabilities through the conduct of research and training that improve employment outcomes.

American Indian Research and Policy Institute

American Indian Policy Center

American Indian Research and Policy Institute 749 Simpson St.

St. Paul, MN 55104

E-mail: airpi@cpinternet.com Web Site: http://www.airpi.org/

Area Served: U.S.

Provides government leaders, policymakers, and the public with accurate information about the legal and political history of American Indian nations, as well as the contemporary situation for American Indians. Provides knowledge and education in hopes of fostering better-informed and culturally-sensitive responses to the challenges of American Indian life.

American Indian Research Group

American Indian Research Group

Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral

Sciences

University of Washington

ZB-20/116 AIR

1660 S. Columbian Way

Seattle, WA 98108

Contact: M. Dow Lambert, Ph. D., Project

Director

Telephone: 206-764-2163

Area Served: U.S.

Staff are conducting a ten-year, two-generation, prospective, longitudinal study of 500 American Indian families residing in the Puget Sound region, making it the largest and longest-funded Indian

research project in the United States. Research is intended to provide a new understanding of the developmental sequence of alcohol and drug use among urban Indians, lead to more effective identification of high risk youth, and contribute to education, prevention, and intervention efforts.

American Indian Science & Engineering Society

American Indian Science & Engineering Society

5661 Airport Blvd. Boulder, CO 80301 2339

Contact: Everett Chavez, Executive Director

Telephone: 303-939-0023 Fax: 303-939-8150

E-mail: pathways@spot.colorado.edu Web Site: http://www.aises.org

Area Served: U.S.

Serves as a catalyst for the advancement of American Indians and Alaska Natives seeking to become self-reliant and self-determined members of society. Nurtures building of community by bridging science and technology with Native values. Provides opportunities for American Indians and Alaska Natives to pursue studies in science, engineering, business, and other academic areas. Provides professional development activities to enable teachers to work effectively with Native students. Builds partnerships with tribes, schools, other nonprofit organizations, corporations, foundations, and government agencies to realize its goals.

Publishes quarterly magazine "Winds of Change"; and annual "American Indian College Guide."

Hosts annual national and regional conferences.

American Indian Science & Technology Education Consortium (AISTEC)

American Indian Science & Technology Education Consortium (AISTEC)

New Mexico Highlands University

TEC Bldg., Rm. 302B Las Vegas, NM 87701 Contact: Jose C'de Baca, Telephone: 505-454-3532

Fax: 505-454-3011

E-mail: jcdb@merlin.nmhu.edu Web Site: http://muspin.gsfc.nasa.gov/

conferences/previous conf/1998/98proceedings/

cdebaca.html

Develops and nurtures American Indian students

for careers in science, engineering, and mathematics (SEM), with a focus on the primary role of the tribal colleges. Consists of ten universities and colleges, ranging from large universities to tribal colleges. Assists its tribal colleges in the development of curricular and technological infrastructure. Develops SEM articulation agreements between and among its tribal colleges, 4-year universities, and their affiliated tribal colleges. Also develops and implements transition and SEM skills development programs at pre-college, 2-year, and university levels.

Center for American Indian Research and Education (CAIRE)

Center for American Indian Research and

Education (CAIRE)

1918 University Ave., Ste. 2A

Berkeley, CA 94704 Telephone: 510-843-8661 Fax: 510-843-8611

E-mail: CAIREberk@aol.com Web Site: http://www.caire.org

Area Served: U.S.

Promotes, develops, and evaluates culturally appropriate health, education, and social programs for American Indians and Alaska Natives nationally. Identifies barriers to optimal utilization of health care resources, and develops culturally sensitive health and social service intervention models. Provides scholarships to American Indian and Alaska Native students.

Publishes books.

Center for World Indigenous Studies

Center for World Indigenous Studies 1001 Cooper Pt. Rd., S. W., Ste. 140-214

Olympia, WA 98502 1107

Contact: Rudolph C. Rÿser, Executive Director

Telephone: 360-754-1990 Fax: 253-276-0084

E-mail: chair@cwis.org
Web Site: http://www.cwis.org
Area Served: International

Serves as a clearinghouse of ideas between Indigenous Nations and state governments. Encourages direct visits between people in their territories through workshops, symposia, and conferences. Offers advanced studies from the perspective of Fourth World peoples in government,

geopolitics, history, philosophy, culture, and the environment.

Publishes biannually "Fourth World Journal."

Council of Energy Resource Tribes

Comprehensive Education Program Council of Energy Resource Tribes 695 S. Colorado Blvd., Ste. 10

Denver, CO 80246

Contact: Carmen Bradley, Chair

Telephone: 303-282-7576

E-mail: info@CERTRedEarth.com
Web Site: http://www.certredearth.com/

Area Served: U.S.

Supports member tribes in developing their capabilities to manage energy resources in ways that will build stable, balanced, self-governing economies.

Publishes "RedEarth Magazine."

Falmouth Institute, Inc.

The Falmouth Institute, Inc. 3702 Pender Dr., Ste. 300 Contact: Michael Lang, Toll-free: 800-992-4489 Telephone: 703-352-2250

Fax: 703-352-2323

E-mail: michael.lang@falmouthinstitute.com
Web Site: http://www.falmouthinstitute.com/
Provides culturally relevant education and
information services for North American Indian
tribes and organizations. Assists its clients in
addressing the challenges posed by self-governance
issues and policies developed by government
agencies entrusted to assist Indian tribes. Offers
training in the areas of law, government, education,
finance, human resources and management, social
services, construction, housing, gaming, natural
resources, law enforcement, and more.

Publishes monthly "Native American Law Digest," "American Indian Report," and more. Hosts several annual conferences.

Foundation for Endangered Languages

Foundation for Endangered Languages Batheaston Villa, 172 Bailbrook Ln.

Bath, BA1 7AA

England

Contact: Nicholas Ostler, President Telephone: +44/(0) -1225-852865 Fax: +44/(0) -1225-859258

13

E-mail: nostler@chibcha.demon.co.uk Web Site: http://www.bris.ac.uk/Depts/

Philosophy/CTLL/

Raises awareness of endangered languages, both inside and outside the communities where they are spoken, through all possible channels and media. Supports the use of endangered languages in all contexts: at home; in education; in the media; and in social, cultural, and economic life. Monitors linguistic policies and practices, and seeks to influence appropriate authorities where necessary. Supports the documentation of endangered languages by offering financial assistance, training, or facilities for the publication of results. Gathers and makes available information useful in the preservation of endangered languages.

Publishes a newsletter.

Hosts annual fall conference.

Four Worlds International Institute for Human and Community Development

Four Worlds International Institute for Human and Community Development

347 Fairmont Blvd.

Lethbridge, AL T1K 7J8

Canada

Telephone: 403-320-7144 Fax: 403-329-8383

E-mail: 4worlds@uleth.ca

Web Site: http://home.uleth.ca/~4worlds

Area Served: International

Focuses on the design and delivery of learning programs for individual and community development. Makes available information and communication technology, particularly to Indigenous and developing populations throughout the world.

Intercultural Development Research Association

Intercultural Development Research Association

5835 Callaghan Rd.

San Antonio, TX 78228 1190

Contact: Maria Robledo Montecel, Director

Telephone: 210-444-1710 Fax: 210-444-1714 E-mail: contact@idra.org

Web Site: http://www.idra.org/default.htm Creates self-renewing schools that value and empower all children, families, and communities. A vanguard leadership development and research team works with people to provide technical assistance, training, and evaluation to public school teachers, administrators, parents, and other decisionmakers; serve as expert witnesses in policy settings, court cases, and committee hearings; and publish research and professional papers, books, videos, and school curricula.

Hosts annual conference.

Labriola National American Indian Data Center

Labriola National American Indian Data Center

Arizona State University Libraries

Arizona State University

P.O. Box 871006

Tempe, AZ 85287 1006

Contact: Patricia A. Etter, Curator

Telephone: 480-965-6490

Fax: 480-965-0776

E-mail: patriciaetter@asu.edu

Web Site: http://www.asu.edu/lib/archives/

labriola.htm

Area Served: U.S.; Canada; Sonora and

Chihuahua, Mexico

Houses a research collection of current and historic information on government, culture, religion and worldview, social life and customs, and tribal history. Contains a strong collection that deals with the multicultural education of Native Americans, including materials on curriculum development in boarding schools, public schools, and reservation schools. Aims to have the most complete collection possible of language and linguistic materials, including dictionaries, grammar, workbooks, readers, and literature on all Native American/Alaska Native groups.

Publishes a seasonal newsletter.

Minorities' Job Bank

Minorities' Job Bank IMDiversity.com 909 Poydras St., 36th Fl. New Orleans, LA 70112 Telephone: 504-523-0154

Web Site: http://www.minorities-jb.com

Area Served: U.S.

Provides career and self-development information to all minorities, specifically African Americans, Asian Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native Americans, and women. Provides access to the largest database of equal opportunity employers committed to workplace diversity. Supplies the tools

and information necessary to succeed in a chosen area.

National Center for American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health Research (NCAIANMHR)

National Center for American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health Research (NCAIANMHR) Department of Psychiatry, North Pavilion University of Colorado Health Sciences Center

4455 E. 12th Ave., A011-13

Denver, CO 80220

Contact: Jan Beals, Director of Research

Toll-free: 800-835-8091 Telephone: 303-315-9232 Fax: 303-315-9579

E-mail: jan.beals@uchsc.edu

Web Site: http://www.uchsc.edu/sm/ncaianmhr/

Area Served: U.S.

Carries out four major components in program:

(1) Research traces four study topics across the developmental life span. (2) Training offers six unique educational opportunities for undergraduates, predoctoral and medical students, residents, postdoctoral trainees, and senior scholars. (3) Information dissemination includes an extensive bibliography of NCAIANMHR staff publications on American Indian and Alaska Native mental health and a professionally refereed journal. (4) Technical assistance identifies needs and refers patients to individuals, programs, and agencies that specifically serve American Indian and Alaska Native communities.

Publishes journal "American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health Research: The Journal of the National Center" three times a year.

National Center for Children in Poverty (NCCP)

National Center for Children in Poverty (NCCP)

School of Public Health Columbia University 154 Haven Ave. New York, NY 10032

Contact: Jane Knitzer, Telephone: 212-304-7100 Fax: 212-544-4200

E-mail: nccp@columbia.edu

Web Site: http://cpmcnet.columbia.edu/dept/

nccp

Area Served: U.S.

Alerts the public to demographic statistics about child poverty and scientific research on the serious

impact of poverty on children. Designs and conducts field-based studies to identify programs, policies, and practices that work best for young children and their families living in poverty. Disseminates information about early childhood care and education, child health, and family and community support. Brings together public and private groups to assess the efficacy of strategies to lower the young child poverty rate and improve the well-being of children, and challenges policymakers to make changes.

National Child Care Information Center

National Child Care Information Center

301 Maple St., Ste. 602 Vienna, VA 22180

Contact: Anne Goldstein, Director

Toll-free: 800-516-2242 Telephone: 800-616-2242 Fax: 800-716-2242

E-mail: agoldstein@acf.dhhs.gov Web Site: http://nccic.org/

Area Served: U.S.

Complements, enhances, and promotes child care linkages, and serves as a mechanism for supporting quality, comprehensive services for children and families. Sponsors tribal program activities. Supports the collection and analyses of child care data and maintains the database of information reported by state, tribal, and territorial grantees.

National Clearinghouse for Bilingual Education (NCBE)

National Clearinghouse for Bilingual Education (NCBE)

Center for the Study of Language and Education

George Washington University 2121 K St., NW, Ste. 260 Washington, DC 20037

Contact: Minerva Gorena, Interim Director

Toll-free: 800-321-6223 Telephone: 202-467-0867 Fax: 800-531-9347

E-mail: askncbe@ncbe.gwu.edu Web Site: http://www.ncbe.gwu.edu

Funded by the U.S. Department of Education's Office of Bilingual Education and Minority Language Affairs. Collects, analyzes, and disseminates information relating to the effective education of linguistically and culturally diverse

learners in the United States. Provides access to information about exemplary practices and research to help states and local school districts develop programs and implement strategies for helping all students work toward high academic standards. Resources include occasional publications, a regular e-mail newsletter, and a comprehensive Web site with a searchable online database and full-text library.

Publishes weekly news bulletin "Newsline."

National Consortium for Graduate Degrees for Minorities in Engineering and Science, Inc.

(GEM)

The GEM Consortium

P.O. Box 537

Notre Dame, IN 46556

Contact: Saundra D. Johnson, Executive

Director

Telephone: 219-631-7771

Fax: 219-287-1486

E-mail: johnson.301@nd.edu

Web Site: http://www.nd.edu/~gem/

Area Served: U.S.

Exists to increase the number of American Indians, African Americans, Mexican Americans, Puerto Ricans, and other Hispanic Americans pursuing graduate degrees in engineering and natural science disciplines. Provides fellowships, seminars, and workshops; also produces publications and videotapes.

Hosts student development seminars and workshops.

National Indian Law Library (NILL)

National Indian Law Library (NILL)
Native American Rights Fund (NARF)

1522 Broadway Boulder, CO 80302

Contact: David Selden, Law Librarian

Telephone: 303-447-8760 Fax: 303-443-7776

E-mail: dselden@narf.org

Web Site:

https://narf.securesites.com/nill/Nillindex.html

Area Served: U.S.

Develops and makes accessible a collection devoted exclusively to Native American law and assists people with their research needs.

National Indian Telecommunications Institute (NITI)

The National Indian Telecommunications

Institute (NITI)

110 N. Guadalupe, Ste. 9

Santa Fe, NM 87501

Contact: Karen Radney Buller, President and

CEO

Telephone: 505-986-3872 E-mail: karen@niti.org

Web Site: http://www.niti.org/ed.html

Area Served: U.S.

Native-founded and operated organization dedicated to using electronic technologies to provide American Indian, Native Hawaiian, and Alaska Native communities with extensive educational tools, equal opportunity, and a strong voice in self-determination. Developed a model for use by teachers to create culturally relevant, tribal-specific Web pages. Contains links to cultural curriculum and technological resources.

Native American Language Center

Department of Native American Studies

University of California, Davis

Hart Hall, Rm 2401 One Shields Ave. Davis, CA 95616

Contact: Stefano Varese, Graduate Program

Advisor

Telephone: 530-754-7874

Fax: 530-752-7097

Web Site: http://cougar.ucdavis.edu/nas/nalc/ An initiative of the Department of Native American Studies at UC Davis. Encourages linguistic research on American Indian languages, and fosters the intergenerational transfer of language knowledge in Native American communities. Develops sustained and productive relationship between American Indian linguistic scholarship and the needs and aspirations of Native American people. Publishes Glyph Dwellers, an electronic journal, available at http://cougar.ucdavis.edu/nas/ Maya/glyphdwellers.html.

Electronic journal "Glyph Dwellers."

Native American Research and Training Center (NARTC)

Native American Research and Training Center (NARTC)

College of Medicine, Family and Community Medicine

The University of Arizona

1642 E. Helen Tucson, AZ 85719

Contact: Lisa Clore, Program Coordinator

Telephone: 520-621-5075

Fax: 520-621-9802

E-mail: lclore@u.arizona.edu

Web Site: http://www.ahsc.arizona.edu/nartc/

Area Served: U.S.

Established in 1983 by The University of Arizona Board of Regents. Serves as a national resource for Native American communities and for persons working with Native American populations. Conducts research and training projects that will help improve the quality of life for Native Americans with disabilities. A primary objective is to promote active participation and partnership of Native Americans and their communities in all NARTC research and training programs.

Native American Technologies, Inc.

Native American Technologies, Inc. 3918 Prosperity Ave., Ste. 220

Fairfax, VA. 22031

Contact: Demetria Carter, TAAMS Project

Director

Toll-free: 800-223-8624 Telephone: 703-641-0251 Fax: 703-206-0437

E-mail: Natec@natecinc.com
Web Site: http://www.natecinc.com/

Well-known for its work within American Indian communities, NATEC is a multifaceted training and technical assistance firm, capable of providing a wide range of consulting services, including research, evaluation, training, technical assistance, program development, and project management. Founded in 1989, it has been built upon principles of personal and professional integrity and an ongoing commitment to excellence. NATEC has developed and published "A Complete Guide to the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act, Public Law 93-638."

Pacific Resources for Education and Learning (PREL)

Pacific Resources for Education and Learning (PREL)

1099 Alakea St., 25th Fl. Honolulu, HI 96813 4513

Contact: John W. Kofel, President and CEO

Telephone: 808-441-1300 Fax: 808-441-1385 E-mail: askprel@prel.org Web Site: http://www.prel.org/ Area Served: HI, American Samoa,

Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Federated States of Micronesia, Guam, Republic of the Marshall Islands, and the Republic of

Palau

Strives to strengthen Pacific Island Native culture, increase literacy, and improve quality of life locally, regionally, and globally. Serves as a clearinghouse for information pertaining to culture and diversity, and provides numerous resources to educators, families, organizations, agencies, community members, and individuals.

Project Success Enrichment

Project Success Enrichment PO Box 22447

Seattle, WA 98122 0447

Contact: Carolyn Bronson, Project Director

Telephone: 206-325-5418 E-mail: bronson@usa.com

Web Site: http://www.projse.com/

Area Served: U.S.

Offers training sessions to teach educators of gifted, regular, at-risk, multicultural, special education, and Chapter One students how to use the specialized language arts and/or visual art curricula. Emphasizes accommodation of different learning styles, academically and cognitively, and instructs teachers to use questioning strategies that enhance students' creativity and critical thinking skills. Teachers learn a structured, organized way to teach writing and thinking skills together, connecting the process to reading, literature, and other disciplines.

Society for the Study of the Indigenous Languages of the Americas (SSILA)

Society for the Study of the Indigenous Languages of the Americas (SSILA) P.O. Box 555

Arcata, CA 95518

Contact: Victor Golla, Secretary-Treasurer

Telephone: 707-826-4324

Fax: 707-677-1676

E-mail: gollav@axe.humboldt.edu

Web Site: http://www.ssila.org/

Founded in December 1981 as the international scholarly organization representing American Indian linguistics, the SSILA was incorporated in 1997. Membership is open to all those interested in the scientific study of the language of the Native peoples of North, Central, and South America.

Publishes monthly electronic "SSILA Bulletin;" publishes quarterly "SSILA Newsletter."

Holds annual meetings.

South and Meso American Indian Rights Center (SAIIC)

South and Meso American Indian Rights Center

(SAIIC)

P.O. Box 7829 Oakland, CA 94601

Contact: Soledad Jerez, Interim Executive

Director

Telephone: 510-534-4882

Fax: 510-834-4264 E-mail: indian@igc.org

Web Site: http://saiic.nativeweb.org/

Area Served: International

Provides information on the Indian people of South and Meso America. Offers technical assistance to Indian organizations and communities. Helps Indian leaders establish contacts with environmental and human rights organizations, policy institutions, and foundations.

Publishes biannual journal "Abya Yala News." Hosts intercontinental conference.

Support Services International, Inc. (SSI)

Support Services International, Inc. 8609 2nd Ave., Ste. 506B

Silver Spring, MD 20910 3362

Contact: Walter Hillabrant, Ph. D., President

Telephone: 301-587-9000 Fax: 301-587-9007 -0264

Area Served: U.S.

Indian-owned consulting firm specializing in areas of health, education, and information processing. Provides training and technical assistance to government agencies, tribes, and organizations in areas such as student substance abuse prevention, maintaining student discipline, increasing school attendance, and school-based budgeting and finance.

Tribal Executive Institute

Tribal Executive Institute

McDonough School of Business

Georgetown University

Rm. G-4, Old North Bldg.

Washington, DC 20057 1008

Contact: Al Razick, Director of Corporate and

Certificate Programs Toll-free: 888-366-0214 Telephone: 202-687-6986

Fax: 202-687-7039

E-mail: razicka@gunet.georgetown.edu Web Site: http://www.tribalexecutive.org

Area Served: U.S.

Advocates for executive leadership programs to prepare Indian tribal governments to deal more effectively with the U.S. Congress, federal agencies, and private corporations. Sponsors quarterly congressional staff forums on various topics related to Indian country.

Tribal Resource Institute in Business, Engineering and Science (TRIBES)

Tribal Resource Institute in Business, Engineering and Science (TRIBES) Council of Energy Resource Tribes 695 S. Colorado Blvd., Ste. 10

Denver, CO 80246 Telephone: 303-282-7576

E-mail: info@CERTRedEarth.com
Web Site: http://www.certredearth.com/

tribesprog.shtml

Offers programs for high school graduates planning to pursue degrees in science, business, engineering, and related fields. In addition to classroom work, Tribal leaders encourage students to appreciate their distinct cultures and retain their traditional values in technical and professional careers.

WestEd Culture & Language in Education

WestEd

4200 Farmhill Blvd. Redwood City, CA 94062

Contact: Sharon Nelson-Barber, Director,

Culture & Language in Education

Fax: 650-381-6401

E-mail: snelson@wested.org

Web Site:

http://www.wested.org/cs/wew/view/rs/82 Identifies, supports, and fosters the development of educational practices and policies that benefit American Indian, Alaska Native, and Pacific Island students. Identifies and supports practices and programs that result in cultural responsive pedagogy, curriculum, instruction, and assessment for Indigenous students. Addresses the priority issue of language preservation and revitalization, and contributes to public awareness about Indigenous language issues through conferences and publication.

Publishes Directory of Indigenous Education Resources: WestEd Region.

1.3 FUNDING AND SPONSORSHIP

American Indian College Fund

American Indian College Fund 8333 Greenwood Blvd. Denver, CO 80221

Contact: Richard Williams, Executive Director

Telephone: 303-426-8900 Fax: 303-426-1200

E-mail: info@collegefund.org

Web Site:

http://www.collegefund.org/main.shtm

Raises money from corporations, foundations, and individuals to support scholarships and other development needs at tribal colleges. Builds an endowment to provide support to tribal colleges in perpetuity. Educates the public to the existence of tribal colleges and the role they play in rebuilding Indian societies. Supports tribal college programs in Indian teacher training, facilities construction, and cultural preservation.

American Indian Graduate Center

Special Higher Education Program American Indian Graduate Center 4520 Montgomery, NE Albuquerque, NM 87109

Contact: Norbert Hill, Executive Director

Telephone: 505-881-4584 Fax: 505-884-0427 E-mail: aigc@aigc.com

Web Site: http://www.aigc.com

Provides fellowships to students who want to enter a full-time masters or doctorate program and are enrolled members of a federally recognized American Indian or Alaska Native tribe in the United States.

Endangered Language Fund

Endangered Language Fund, Inc. Department of Linguistics Yale University P.O. Box 208236 New Haven, CT 06520 8236

Contact: Douglas Whalen, President Web Site: http://sapir.ling.yale.edu/~elf/

index.html

Devoted to the specific study of endangered languages; the support of Native efforts in maintaining endangered languages; and the dissemination, to both the Native communities and the scholarly world, of the fruits of these efforts.

Morris K. Udall Foundation

Morris K. Udall Foundation 110 S. Church Ave., Ste. 3350

Tucson, AZ 85701

Contact: Christopher Helms, Executive

Director

Telephone: 520-670-5529
Fax: 520-670-5530
E-mail: helms@udall.gov
Web Site: http://www.udall.gov

Committed to educating a new generation of Americans to preserve and protect their national heritage through studies in the environment, Native American health and tribal policy, and effective public policy conflict resolution. Annually awards undergraduate scholarships of up to \$5,000 to American juniors and seniors in fields related to the environment, and to Native Americans and Alaska Natives in fields related to health care or tribal policy.

Publishes various books and articles. Hosts annual fall conference.

Native American Congressional Internship Program

Native American Congressional Internship Program

Morris K. Udall Foundation 110 S. Church Ave., Ste. 3350

Tucson, AZ 85701

Contact: Susan Parrott, Administrative Assistant

Telephone: 520-670-5529
Fax: 520-670-5530
E-mail: parrott@udall.gov
Web Site: http://www.udall.gov

Provides people of Native American ancestry with practical experiences in the legislative process, congressional matters, and governmental proceedings. Gives Native American college students an opportunity to learn about the federal government through a ten-week, intensive internship in Washington DC. Interns work full-time in congressional offices performing a variety of tasks ranging from general support work to special research and writing projects.

Native American Scholarship Fund, Inc.

Native American Scholarship Fund 8200 Mountain Rd., N. E., Ste. 203 Albuquerque, NM 87110 Contact: Lucille Kelley, Director of

Recruitment

Telephone: 505-262-2351 Fax: 505-262-0534

E-mail: NScholarsh@aol.com Web Site: http://www.free-4u.com/

native_american_scholarship_fund,_inc__(schol

arships).htm

Awards annually 208 scholarships in varying amounts to American Indians and Alaska Natives pursuing undergraduate or graduate degrees in math, science, business, education, or computer science at an accredited four-year college or university. Open to American Indians and Alaska Natives (one quarter degree or more) who are enrolled as members of a federally recognized, state recognized, or terminated tribe. Application deadlines are March 15, April 15, and September 15.

1.4 YOUTH LEADERSHIP, MENTORING, AND SERVICE

Aboriginal Youth Network

Aboriginal Youth Network P.O. Box 34007, Kingsway Edmonton, AB T5G 3G4

Canada

Contact: Anita Large, Senior Communications

Officer & Site Administrator Toll-free: 866-459-1058 Telephone: 780-459-1058

Fax: 780-419-7266 or 866-419-7266

E-mail: siteadmin@ayn.ca Web Site: http://www.ayn.ca/

Area Served: Canada

Focuses on the following specific areas: current events, expression of ideas, involvement in the community, remedying disadvantages that aboriginal peoples face, and providing communications tools among aboriginal youth. Web site designed by and for Aboriginal youth in an effort to create and maintain a unique online youth community nationwide. Provides a virtual community where youth can visit, browse, meet new friends, and get the information they need on health, education, employment opportunities, as well as the latest news and events across Indian Country.

American Indian Business Leaders (AIBL)

American Indian Business Leaders (AIBL)

Gallagher Business Bldg., Ste. 257

Missoula, MT 59812 1216

Contact: Dave Archambault, AlBL Board Chair

Telephone: 406-243-4879 Fax: 406-243-2086 Area Served: U.S.

Student-based organization designed to promote and support the American Indian business student and entrepreneur. Stimulates student interest in developing culturally appropriate, reservation-based businesses to foster tribal economic growth and stability. Scholarships and internship programs available.

Sponsors annual national conference.

American Indian Scouting Association

American Indian Scouting Association 7802 Crown Top Rd.

Louisville, KY 40241 2702

Contact: Don Thom, Membership Committee

Chair

E-mail: kaybarker@prodigy.net

Web Site:

http://pages.prodigy.net/rose_marshall/

A joint venture of the Girl Scouts of America and the Boy Scouts of America. Assists American Indian and non-Indian troop leaders and administrators in developing their talents through scouting to better serve American Indian youth. Helps American Indian and non-Indian youth recognize their talents and capabilities to better serve their communities. Encourages youth of all tribes and cultures to learn by association to appreciate the wide differences among people of Indian heritage.

National Indian Youth Leadership Project

National Indian Youth Leadership Project 814 S. Boardman

Gallup, NM 87301 4711

Contact: McClellan Hall, Executive Director

Telephone: 505-722-9176

Fax: 505-722-9794 E-mail: niylp@cia-g.com Web Site: http://www.niylp.org

Engages Native youth in challenging activities and meaningful experiences in the community and the natural world, as well as through academic, artistic, and athletic performance. Prepares youth for whole and healthy lives as capable, contributing, and caring members of their families, communities, tribes, and nation through traditional teachings and values.

United National Indian Tribal Youth, Inc. (UNITY)

United National Indian Tribal Youth, Inc. (UNITY)

P.O. Box 800

Oklahoma City, OK 73101 0800

Contact: J. R. Cook, Founder & Executive

Director

Telephone: 405-236-2800

Fax: 405-971-1071

Web Site: http://www.unityinc.org

National network organization that promotes personal development, citizenship, and leadership among Native American youth while working to combat wasted talent and negative peer pressure. Has achieved success in working with Native American youth through youth council development, allowing youth to make a difference in their communities.

Hosts annual midyear national conference.

White Bison, Inc.

White Bison, Inc.

6145 Lehman Dr., Ste. 200 Colorado Springs, CO 80918

Contact: Laura Hom, Executive Director

Telephone: 719-548-1000

Fax: 719-548-9407

E-mail: info@whitebison.org

Web Site: http://www.whitebison.org
Develops and delivers training, technical
assistance, and consulting services for Native
American communities, corporations, nonprofit
organizations, professional associations, educational
institutions, and government agencies. Training
program and related services encompass Native
American teaching and traditions.

Publishes quarterly, online magazine "Wellbriety!"

Section 2 Federal Programs

Section 2 Federal Programs

2.1 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NATIONAL SCHOOL-TO-WORK LEARNING AND INFORMATION CENTER

School-to-Work Opportunities-Development and Implementation Grants for Indian Youth

School-to-Work Opportunities-Development and Implementation Grants for Indian Youth National School-to-Work Learning & Information Center

U.S. Department of Education

400 Virginia Ave., SW Washington, DC 20024

Contact: Stephanie Powers, Director

Toll-free: 800-251-7236 Telephone: 202-401-6222 Fax: 202-488-7395

Fax: 202-488-7395 E-mail: stw-lc@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.stw.ed.gov/

Area Served: U.S.

Awards competitive grants to establish and implement school-to-work opportunities programs for Indian youth.

OFFICE OF BILINGUAL EDUCATION AND MINORITY LANGUAGES AFFAIRS

Office of Bilingual Education and Minority Languages Affairs (OBEMLA)

U.S. Department of Education 330 C St., SW

Washington, DC 20202

Contact: Art Love, Acting Director

Telephone: 202-205-5463 Fax: 202-205-8737 E-mail: art.love@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OBEMLA/

Area Served: U.S.

Provides national leadership in promoting high quality education for the nation's limited English proficient students (LEPs). OBEMLA's mission is to include various elements of school reform in programs designed to assist the language minority agenda. These include emphasis on high academic

standards, an improvement of school accountability, an emphasis on professional development, the promotion of family literacy, the encouragement of early reading, and the establishment of partnerships between parents and the community.

OFFICE OF EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH AND IMPROVEMENT

ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools

ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools

AEL. Inc.

1031 Quarrier St., P.O. Box 1348 Charleston, WV 25325 1348

Contact: Patricia Cahape Hammer, Associate

Director

Toll-free: 800-624-9120 Telephone: 304-347-0400 Fax: 304-347-0487

E-mail: hammerp@ael.org
Web Site: http://www.ael.org/eric/

Funded by the U.S. Department of Education's Office of Educational Research and Improvement. Areas of interest include American Indian and Alaska Native education, Mexican American education, migrant education, outdoor education, rural education, and small schools. Acquires, processes, and abstracts documents, books, and articles for the ERIC database. Answers questions, performs free searches of the ERIC database, and can recommend other resources. Also produces ERIC Digests, books, guides, directories, a newsletter, and a Web page rich in downloadable resources.

OFFICE OF ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

Comprehensive Regional Assistance Centers

Comprehensive Regional Assistance Centers Office of Elementary and Secondary Education U.S. Department of Education

400 Maryland Ave., S.W., Rm. 3E223, FB-6

Washington, DC 20202 6140 Contact: Joyce Murphy, Telephone: 202) 260-9198 Fax: 202) 205-5630

E-mail: Joyce.Murphy@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/EdRes/EdFed/

EdTechCtrs.html Area Served: U.S.

Fifteen Comprehensive Centers provide assistance and information nationwide, and help states, school districts, and schools in "meeting the needs of children served under ESEA, including children in high-poverty areas, migratory children, immigrant children, children with limited-English proficiency, neglected or delinquent children, homeless children and youth, Indian children, children with disabilities, and, where applicable, Alaska Native children and Native Hawaiian children." Assists Title I schoolwide programs and helps local education agencies--and schools funded by the Bureau of Indian Affairs--that have the highest percentages or numbers of children in poverty.

Even Start: Indian Tribes and Tribal Organizations

Even Start: Indian Tribes and Tribal

Organizations

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

U.S. Department of Education

400 Maryland Ave., S. W., Rm. 3W246, FOB6

Washington, DC 20202 6132 Contact: Doris Sligh,

Telephone: 202-260-7764

Fax: 202-260-0999

E-mail: Doris.Sligh@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/office/OESE/CEP

/evenstprogresp.html Area Served: U.S.

Provides grants to federally recognized Indian Tribes and Tribal organizations for family literacy projects and parenting education. Serves families with parents who are eligible under the Adult Education Act and their children from birth through age seven. Projects provide for early childhood education, adult basic education and literacy training, and parenting education, often through cooperative agreements with other public and private community-based groups.

Indian Education Formula Grants to Local Education Agencies

Office of Indian Education

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

U.S. Department of Education

Rm. 3W115, FB-6 400 Maryland Ave., SW Washington, DC 20202 6335 Contact: Cathie Martin, Telephone: 202-260-1683 Fax: 202-260-7779

E-mail: cathie.martie@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OESE/OIE/technical-assistance/formula-grant-program-

guidance.html Area Served: U.S.

Provides grants to support local education agencies for reforming elementary and secondary school programs that serve Indian students. Funded programs must be based on challenging state content and student performance standards, and be designed to assist Indian students meet those standards. Local education agencies, certain schools funded by the Bureau of Indian Affairs, and Indian tribes under specified conditions are eligible to apply.

National Advisory Council on Indian Education

National Advisory Council on Indian Education Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Ave., SW

Washington, DC 20202 Contact: David Beaulieu, Director, Office of

Indian Education

Telephone: 202-260-3774

Fax: 202-260-7779

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OESE/oie/

about oie/nacie.html

A presidentially appointed 15-member advisory council on Indian education established under Section 9151 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as amended (20 U.S.C. 7871). Advises the Secretary of Education and the Congress on funding and administration of programs with respect to which the Secretary has jurisdiction and that include Indian children and adults as participants or in which those children and adults benefit. The meeting of the Council is open to the public. Members of the public may make statements during the meeting, to the extent time permits, and file written statements with the Council

for its consideration. Written statements should be submitted to the address listed above.

Office of Indian Education

Office of Indian Education

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

U. S. Department of Education

400 Maryland Ave., SW

Room 3W111, FOB-6

Washington, DC 20202 6335

Contact: David Beaulieu, Director

Telephone: 202-260-3774

Fax: 202-260-7779

E-mail: david beaulieu@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OESE/oie/

index.html

Area Served: U.S.

Supports the efforts of local educational agencies, Indian tribes and organizations, postsecondary institutions, and other entities to meet the unique educational and culturally related academic needs of American Indians and Alaska Natives so that these students can achieve to the same challenging state performance standards as all students. Primary functions include grants management, evaluation, interagency coordination, and communication.

Professional Development Grants

Office of Indian Education

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

(OESE)

U.S. Department of Education

400 Maryland Ave., SW

Rm. 3W115, FB-6

Washington, DC 20202 6335

Contact: Cathie Martin, Telephone: 202-260-1683

Fax: 202-260-7779

E-mail: cathie.mártin@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OESE/OIE/

Area Served: U.S.

Provides financial assistance to (1) increase the number of qualified individuals in professions that serve Indian people; (2) provide training to qualified Indian individuals to become teachers, administrators, teacher aides, social workers, and ancillary education personnel; and (3) improve the skills of qualified Indian individuals who serve in the capacities described.

OFFICE OF POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION

American Tribally Controlled Colleges and Universities

American Tribally Controlled Colleges and

Universities

Office of Postsecondary Education (OPE)

U.S. Department of Education

1990 K St., NW

Rm. 6032

Washington, DC 20006 8500 Contact: Darlene B. Collins, darlene.collins@ed.gov

Telephone: 202-502-7777

Fax: 202-502-7861

E-mail: darlene.collins@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OPE/

Area Served: U.S.

Helps eligible institutions of higher education increase their self-sufficiency by providing funds to improve and strengthen their academic quality, management, and fiscal capabilities.

Strengthening American Tribally Controlled Colleges and Universities

Office of Indian Education

Office of Postsecondary Education (OPE)

U.S. Department of Education

1990 K St., NW

Washington, DC 20006 8500 Contact: Blanca Westgate,

Telephone: 202-708-8839

E-mail: blanca.westgate@ed.gov

Web Site: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OPE/

Area Served: U.S.

Helps eligible institutions of higher education increase their self-sufficiency by providing funds to improve and strengthen their academic quality, management, and fiscal capabilities.

REHABILITATION SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

American Indian Disability Technical Assistance Center (AIDTAC)

American Indian Disability Technical Assistance

Center (AIDTAC)

Rural Institute on Disabilities

The University of Montana

52 Corbin

Missoula, MT 59812 7056

Contact: LaDonna Fowler, Center Director

Toll-free: 866-424-3822 Telephone: 406-243-5764 Fax: 406-243-2349

E-mail: fowler@selway.umt.edu

Funded by a grant from the U.S. Department of Education's Rehabilitation Services Administration. Committed to helping American Indian tribes and Alaska Native villages build their capacity to develop and implement culturally appropriate laws and policies, cross-cutting infrastructure, and direct program structure.

Vocational Rehabilitation Service Projects for American Indians with Disabilities

Vocational Rehabilitation Service Projects for American Indians with Disabilities Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) Programs U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Ave. SW Rm. 3314, Switzer Bldg. Washington, DC 20202 2650 Contact: David Ziskind, Director

Toll-free: 800-877-8339 Telephone: 202-205-8494

Web Site:

http://www.ed.gov/offices/OSERS/RSA/PGMS/
Provides vocational rehabilitation services to
American Indians and Alaska Natives with
disabilities who reside on or near federal or state
reservations. Applications for these discretionary
grants may be made only by the governing bodies of
Indian tribes or consortia of those governing bodies
located on reservations. Allowable costs under this
program include expenditures for services reflecting
the cultural background of the American Indians
being served, including treatment provided by the
Native healing practitioners.

2.2 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Administration for Native Americans (ANA)

Administration for Native Americans (ANA) Administration for Children and Families Department of Health and Human Services 370 L'Enfant Promenade, Mail Stop HHH 348F

Washington, DC 20447 0002 Contact: Larry A. Guerrero, Acting

Commissioner

Toll-free: 877-922-9262 Telephone: 202-690-7776 Fax: 202-690-7441

E-mail: ana@acf.dhhs.gov

Web Site:

http://www.acf.dhhs.gov/programs/ana/ Promotes the goal of social and economic self-sufficiency of American Indians, Alaska Natives, Native Hawaiians, and other Native American Pacific Islanders, including Native Samoans. ANA provides grants, training, and technical assistance to eligible tribes and Native American organizations.

American Indian Disabilities Services Quality Improvement Center (DSQIC)

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services' Head Start Bureau Three Feathers Associates P O Box 5508

Norman, OK 73070

Contact: Antonia Dobrec, Director of Projects

Telephone: 405-360-2919 Fax: 405-360-3069

E-mail: toni@threefeathersassoc.com

Web Site:

http://www.ihs.gov/nonmedicalprograms/HeadSt

art/DSQIC.htm

Funded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services' Head Start Bureau. Assists grantees in locating, identifying, and providing quality disabilities services to children with disabilities and their families, in collaboration with other disabilities agencies. Provides quality training and technical assistance, responding to grantee identified needs and other input, including Indian grantees, represented by members of the Indian Head Start Associations.

American Indian Head Start Quality Improvement Center

Head Start Quality Improvement Center American Indian Institute University of Oklahoma 555 Constitution St., Ste. 228 Norman, OK 73072 7820 Contact: Helen M. Scheirbeck, Chief

Toll-free: 800-379-3869 Telephone: 405-325-4129 Fax: 405-325-7319

E-mail: aihsqic@ou.edu

Web Site: http://www.aihsqic.ou.edu

Area Served: U.S.

Funded by the American Indian/Alaska Native Program Branch, Head Start Bureau, Administration for Children and Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The primary training and technical assistance provides for American Indian and Alaska Native Head Start programs nationwide. Web site features resource center, director of programs across the United States, and more.

Publishes a newsletter containing information on issues and conferences, a directory of staff and related organizations, and useful tip sheets for educators.

Hosts annual spring conference.

Head Start - American Indian/Alaska Native Programs Branch

American Indian/Alaska Native Programs

Branch

Head Start Bureau

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Switzer Bldg., Rm. 2119

330 C St., SW

Washington, DC 20201 Contact: Eric Locklear, Chief Telephone: 202-205-8437

Fax: 202-205-8436

E-mail: elocklear@acf.dhhs.gov

Web Site:

http://www.ihs.gov/nonmedicalprograms/HeadSt

art/

Area Served: U.S.

Programs offered include Head Start and Early Start. Native American language instruction offered is tribe/program specific. Federally recognized tribes are eligible for assistance from various federal, state, and tribal financial assistance programs.

Hosts National Indian Head Start Director's Association Conference

Head Start Indian Health Service - Headquarters West

Head Start Bureau

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

5300 Homestead Rd., NE Albuquerque, NM 87110

Contact: Cheryl A. Wilson, Program

Coordinator

Telephone: 505-248-4231 Fax: 505-248-4393

Web Site:

http://www.ihs.gov/nonmedicalprograms/HeadSt

art/index.asp

Assists Head Start American Indian Programs Branch (AIPB) grantees in the development of comprehensive health service programs for children and families by promoting preventive health services and intervention, and assists in the development and mobilization of health care systems to ensure ongoing health care. Provides medical, dental, mental health, nutrition, and environmental health technical assistance and training to 150 Head Start AIPB grantees in 26 states, linking them with IHS and Tribal health services.

Indian Health Service

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services Rm 6-35, Parklawn Bldg.

5600 Fishers Ln. Rockville, MD 20857

Contact: Michael H. Trujillo, Indian Health

Service Director

Telephone: 301-443-3593.

Fax: 301-443-0507

Web Site:

http://www.ihs.gov/aboutlHS/IHSintro.asp Provides health services to approximately 1.5 million American Indians and Alaska Natives who belong to more than 557 federally recognized tribes in 34 states. Assists Indian tribes in developing their health programs through activities such as health management training, technical assistance, and human resource development. Facilitates and assists Indian tribes in coordinating health planning, in obtaining and using health resources available through federal, state, and local programs, and in operating comprehensive health care services in health program evaluation. Provides comprehensive health care services, including hospital and ambulatory medical care, preventive and rehabilitative services, and development of community sanitation facilities. Serves as principal Federal advocate for Indians in the health field to ensure comprehensive health services for American Indian and Alaska Native people.

Indian Health Service Scholarship Branch

Scholarship Branch
Indian Health Service Scholarship Branch
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Twinbrook Metro Plaza, 12300 Twinbrook
Pkwy., Ste. 100
12300 Twinbrook Pkwy., Ste. 100

Rockville, MD 20852

Telephone: 301-443-6197 301-443-1180 (IHS)

Fax: 301-443-1522 Area Served: U.S.

Conducts three interrelated scholarship programs to train professional health personnel necessary to staff IHS health programs.

2.3 DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Native Economic Development Guidance and Empowerment (EDGE)

Native Economic Development Guidance and Empowerment (EDGE)
Office of Native American Programs
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development

Toll-free: 877-807-9013

E-mail: francis_l._harjo@hud.gov

Web Site: http://www.nativeedge.hud.gov/

Area Served: U.S.

Native EDGE is an interagency initiative of the federal government to facilitate sustainable economic development within American Indian and Alaska Native communities. Produces Code Talk, a federal interagency Native American Web site designed specifically to deliver electronic information from government agencies and other organizations to Native American communities.

Produces the newsletter "Dreamcatcher."

2.4 DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR

BIA HEADQUARTERS (SELECTED OFFICE LISTINGS)

The Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) Office of Indian Education Program booklet, "2001 Fingertip Facts," reports that the OIEP directly served over 49,000 students and indirectly serves over 400,000 through various education programs it administers. For a copy of this informative booklet, which is regularly updated and lists many more offices than are shown here, contact the program office:

Office of Indian Education Programs (OIEP) Bureau of Indian Affairs

1849 C St., NW MS-3512-MIB Washington, DC 20240

Use main OIEP mailing address (shown above) for all programs listed below unless otherwise indicated.

Adult Education Program

Adult Education Program

Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: 202-208-3478 E-mail: GarryMartin@bia.gov

Web Site: http://www.oiep.bia.edu/contact.htm
Provides supplemental grants to eligible Indian
students seeking an undergraduate degree. Must be a
member of, or at least one-quarter degree descendent
of a member of, a nationally recognized tribe to be
eligible for special programs and services provided
by the United States government.

Branch of Research and Policy Analysis

Branch of Research and Policy Analysis

Contact: Dalton Henry Telephone: 202-208-5820 E-mail: daltonhenry@bia.gov

Responsible for the design and implementation of surveys, studies, policy development, and legislative reviews. Collects and files relevant educational data and research material and, serves as a modest repository of selected studies and other material relative to Indian and Native education from local communities, tribal entities, state agencies, and other Federal agencies.

Branch of Administration

Branch of Administration Contact: Joe Herrin Telephone: 202-208-4555 Fax: 202-208-3271

E-mail: joeherrin@bia.gov

Web Site:

http://www.oiep.bia.edu/administration.htm Processes financial documents and requisitions for BIA schools and dormitories. Also conducts audits and certification reviews. Conducts all the business affairs of the OIEP Central Office, Area/Agency/Region Offices and schools.

Division of Planning

Division of Planning

Contact: Kenneth Whitehorn Telephone: 202-208-4976

Fax: 202-273-0030

E-mail: kennethwhitehorn@bia.gov

Web Site: http://www.oiep.bia.edu/po&e.htm
Responsible for the development of long-range
educational planning and making recommendations
for educational policy. Advises the director on
priorities for OIEP based on analysis of data,
national trends, and emerging needs in Indian
education. Initiates and conducts tribal consultation
meetings systematically across Indian country. Input
from tribes and schools have been gathered to impact
the future direction and plans for OIEP.

Division of School Improvement Resources

Division of School Improvement Resources Contact: Kevin Skenandore, Division Chief

Telephone: 202-208-6123 Fax: 202-208-3312

Web Site:

http://www.oiep.bia.edu/school_improvement.htm
Provides technical assistance and training to
promote quality education opportunities from early
childhood throughout high school to BIA funded
schools and residential programs. Helps to
implement policies, plans, regulations, and
guidelines of the Office of Indian Education
Programs.

Exceptional Education

Exceptional Education Contact: Angelita Felix

Telephone: 505-248-7527 E-mail: angelitafelix@bia.gov

Web Site: http://www.oiep.bia.edu/sped.htm
Provides special education programs and related
services to eligible children with disabilities ages
5-21 enrolled in BIA funded schools. Ensures
access to the general curriculum, early intervention
strategies, and quality professional development.

Higher Education Grant Program

Higher Education Grant Program

Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: 202-208-3478 E-mail: garrymartin@bia.gov

Provides supplemental grants to eligible Indian students seeking an undergraduate degree. Must be a member of, or at least one-quarter degree descendent of a member of, a nationally recognized tribe to be eligible for special programs and services provided by the United States government.

Johnson O'Malley (JOM) Program

Johnson O'Malley (JOM) Program

Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: 202-208-3478 Fax: 202-208-3312

E-mail: garrymartin@bia.gov

Web Site: http://www.oiep.bia.edu/jom.htm
Assists public schools in meeting the unique
needs of eligible Indian students. Administered by
the BIA through contracts with Tribes, Tribal
organizations, public school districts, and state
departments of education.

Office of Indian Education Programs (OIEP)

Office of Indian Education Programs (OIEP) Contact: William A. Mehojah, Jr., Director

Telephone: 202-208-6123 Fax: 202-208-3312

E-mail: williammehojah@bia.gov Web Site: http://www.oiep.bia.edu

Provides quality education opportunities from early childhood through life in accordance with Tribe's needs for cultural and economic well-being in keeping with the wide diversity of Indian Tribes and Alaska Native villages as distinct cultural and governmental entities. Publishes Fingertip Facts, which provides concise information about the schools, colleges and universities, and other

educational programs and activities.

Publishes "Fingertip Facts" (updated annually)

Tribally Controlled Colleges

Tribally Controlled Colleges Contact: Garry Martin Telephone: 202-208-3478 E-mail: garrymartin@bia.gov

Provides supplemental grants to eligible Indian students seeking an undergraduate degree. Must be a member of, or at least one-quarter degree descendent of a member of, a nationally recognized tribe to be eligible for special programs and services provided by the United States government.

EDUCATION LINE OFFICERS

The Office of Indian Education Program has 24 Education Line Officers, all of whom report directly to the Deputy Director of School Operations. These Education Line Officers have direct line authority and supervision responsibility over 69 Bureau operated schools and provide technical assistance to the remaining 116. The OIEP Education Line Officers are located in 24 agency/area/regional offices for education across the country. The 24 Education Line Officers, agency/regional offices and schools are listed as follows:

Anchorage Field Office

Anchorage Field Office Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 3601 C St., Ste. 1100

Anchorage, AK 99503 5947

Contact: Robert Pringle, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 907-271-4120 Fax: 907-271-3678

E-mail: RobertPringle@bia.gov

Liaison with all schools, which became state operated schools in 1985.

Billings Area Office

Billings Area Office Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 316 N 26th St.

Billings, MT 59101 1397

Contact: A. Levon French, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 406-247-7953 Fax: 406-247-7965

E-mail: LevonFrench@bia.gov

Blackfeet Dormitory, Busby, and St. Stephens

Indian School

Cheyenne River Agency

Cheyenne River Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Girls Dorm Bldg. #B

P.O. Box 2020

Eagle Butte, SD 57625 2020

Contact: Cherie Farlee, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 605-964-8722

Fax: 605-964-1155

E-mail: CherieFarlee@bia.gov

Cheyenne-Eagle Butte, Pierre Indian Learning Center, Takini, and Tiospaye Topa School

Chinle Agency

Chinle Agency
Education Line Office
Bureau of Indian Affairs

P.O. Box 6003 Chinle, AZ 86503

Contact: Beverly Crawford, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 520-674-5131 Fax: 520-674-5134

E-mail: BeverlyCrawford@bia.gov Black Mesa Community, Chinle Boarding, Cottonwood Day, Low Mountain, Lukachuka Boarding, Many Farms, Nazlini Boarding, Pinon Dormitory, Rock Point Community, and Rough

Rock Demonstration School

Crow Creek/Lower Brule Agency

Crow Creek/Lower Brule Agency

Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 140 Education Ave.

P.O. Box 139

Fort Thompson, SD 57339

Contact: Dan Shroyer, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 605-245-2398 Fax: 605-245-2399

E-mail: DanShroyer@bia.gov

Crow Creek Reservation, Ft. Thompson Lower

30

Brule, Enemy Swim Day, and Tiospa Zina Tribal

Eastern Navajo Agency

Eastern Navajo Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Main St., Bldg. 222 P.O. Box 328

Crownpoint, NM 87313

Contact: Beatrice Woodard, Acting Education

Line Officer

Telephone: 505-786-6150 Fax: 505-786-6112

E-mail: LarryHolman@bia.gov

Alamo Navajo, Baca Community, Bread Springs Day, Chi ch il Tah/Jones Ranch Crownpoint Community, Dibeyazhi Habitiin Olta, Dlo'ay Azhi Community, Dzilth Na O Dith Hle, Huerfano Dormitory, Lake Valley Navajo, Mariano Lake Community, Na'Neelzhiin Ji'Olta, Ojo Encino Day, Pueblo Pintado Community, Standing Rock Community, To'Hajiilee-He, Wingate Elementary, and Wingate High

Ft. Apache Agency

Ft. Apache Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Hwy. 73 & Elm St. P.O. Box 920 White River, AZ 85941

Contact: Kevin Skenandore, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 520-338-5441 Fax: 520-338-1944

E-mail: BobChiago@bia.gov

Cibecue Community School, John F. Kennedy

Day, and Theodore Roosevelt School

Ft. Defiance Agency

Ft. Defiance Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Bldg. 38, Blue Canyon Hwy. 110

P.O. Box 110

Fort Defiance, AZ 86504 0110

Contact: Beverly Crawford, Acting Education

Line Officer

Telephone: 520-729-7251 Fax: 520-729-7286

E-mail: BeverlyCrawford@bia.gov

Chooshgai Community School, Crystal Boarding, Dilcon Boarding, Greasewood, Holbrook Dormitory, Hunters Point Boarding, Kinlichee Boarding, Pine Springs Boarding, Seba Dalkai Boarding, Wide Ruins Boarding, and Winslow Dormitory

Hopi Agency

Hopi Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Hwy. 264

P.O. Box 568

Keams Canyon, AZ 86034

Contact: John Wahnee, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 520-738-2262 Fax: 520-738-5139

E-mail: JohnWahnee@bia.gov

Havasupai, Hopi Day, Hopi High, Hotevilla Bacavi Community, Keams Canyon Boarding, Moencopi Day, Polacca Day, and Second Mesa

Day

Minneapolis Area Office

Minneapolis Area Office Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Bishop Henry Whipple Federal Bldg.

One Federal Dr., Rm. 550 Ft. Snelling, MN 55111

Contact: Terry Portra, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 612-713-4400, ext. 1090

Fax: 612-713-4438

E-mail: TerryPortra@bia.gov

Bug-O-Nay-Ge-Shig, Bahweting Ojibwa School, Circle of Life Survival School, Circle of Nations, Flandreau Indian School, Fond du Lac Ojibway, Hannahville Indian School, Lac Courte

Oreilles, Menominee Tribal School, Nay Ah

Shing, and Oneida Tribal School

Northern Pueblos Agency

Northern Pueblos Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 1 Mile North of Espanola P.O. Box 4269, Fairview Sta. Espanola, NM 87533

Camtante Educad Davisian Educ

Contact: Edward Parisian, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 505-753-1466

Fax: 505-753-1475

E-mail: EdwardParisian@bia.gov

Jicarilla Dormitory, San Ildefonso Day, San Juan Day, Santa Clara Day, Santa Fe Indian School,

Taos Day, and Tesuque Day

Oklahoma Area Office

Oklahoma Area Office Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 4149 Highline Blvd., Ste. 380 Oklahoma City, OK 73108

Contact: Joy Martin, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 405-605-6051 Fax: 405-605-6057 E-mail: JoyMartin@bia.gov

Carter Seminary, Eufaula Dormitory, Jones Academy, Kickapoo Nation School, Riverside

Indian School, and Sequoyah High

Papago Agency

Papago Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs South Bldg. #49

HC 01, Box 8600 Sells, AZ 85634

Contact: Karen Dawson, Acting Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 520-361-3510 Fax: 520-361-3514 E-mail: JoeFrazier@bia.gov

San Simon, Santa Rosa Boarding, Santa Rosa Ranch, and Tohono O'Odham High School

Pima Agency

Pima Agency

Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs

P.O. Box 10 400 N 5th St. Phoenix, AZ 85001

Contact: John Wahnee, Acting Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 602-379-3944 Fax: 602-379-3946

E-mail: John Wahnee@bia.gov

Blackwater Community, Casa Blanca Day, Gila Crossing Day, and Salt River Day School

Pine Ridge Agency

Pine Ridge Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs

101 Campus Dr. P.O. Box 333

Pine Ridge, SD 57770

Contact: Norma Tibbitts, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 605-867-1306 Fax: 605-867-5610

E-mail: NormaTibbitts@bia.gov

American Horse, Crazy Horse, Little Wound Day, Loneman Day, Pine Ridge, Porcupine Day,

and Wounded Knee School

Portland Area Office

Portland Area Office Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 911 N East 11 Ave. Portland, OR 97232 4169

Contact: John A. Reimer, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 503-872-2743 Fax: 503-231-6219

E-mail: JohnReimer@bia.gov

Chief Leschi, Chemawa Indian School, Coeur D'Alene Tribal, Lummi High, Lummi Tribal School, Muckleshoot Tribal, Paschal Sherman Indian School, Quileute Tribal School, Sho-Ban School, Two Eagle River School, Wa-He-Lut Indian School, and Yakama Tribal School

Rosebud Agency

Rosebud Agency
Education Line Office
Bureau of Indian Affairs
1001 Ave. D

P.O. Box 669 Mission, SD 57555

Contact: Neva Sherwood, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 605-856-4478, ext. 264

Fax: 605-856-4487

E-mail: NevaSherwood@bia.gov

NevaSherwood@bia.gov

Marty Indian School, Rosebud Dormitory, and

St. Francis Indian

Sacramento Area Office

Sacramento Area Office Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 2800 Cottage Way Sacramento, CA 95825

Contact: Fayetta Babby, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 916-978-6057 Fax: 916-978-6056

E-mail: FayettaBabby@bia.gov

Duckwater Shoshone, Noli School, Pyramid Lake High, and Sherman Indian High School

Shiprock Agency

Shiprock Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs Hwy, 666 N

P.O. Box 3239

Shiprock, NM 87420 3239

Contact: Lester Hudson, Education Line Officer

Telephone: 505-368-3400 Fax: 505-368-3409

E-mail: LesterHudson@bia.gov

Aneth Community School, AtsaÆBiya A Zh Community School, Aztec Dormitory, Beclabito

Day, Cove Day, Navajo Preparatory,

Nenahnezad Boarding, Red Rock Day School, Sanostee Day, Shiprock Reservation Dormitory, Shiprock Alternative Kindergarten and High School, T'iis Naz'Bas Boarding, and Tohaali

Southern and Eastern States Agency

Southern and Eastern States Agency

Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs

3701 Fairfax Dr., Ste. 260 Mailroom

Arlington, VA 22203

Contact: LaVonna Weller, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 703-235-3233 Fax: 703-235-3351

E-mail: LavonnaWeller@bia.gov

Isleta Elementary, Jemez Day, Mescalero, Pine Hill School, San Felipe Pueblo Elementary, Sky City Community, Zia Day, Laguna Elementary,

and Laguna Middle School

Southern Pueblos Agency

Southern Pueblos Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs 1000 Indian School Rd., NW Albuquerque, NM 87103

Contact: Benjamin Atencio, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 505-346-2431 Fax: 505-346-2408

E-mail: BenjaminAtencio@bia.gov
Ahfachkee Day, Beatrice Rafferty, Boque
Chitto, Cherokee Elementary, Cherokee Central
High School, Chitimacha Day, Choctaw Central
High School, Choctaw Central Middle School,
Conehatta Elementary, Indian Island School,
Indian Township School, Miccosukee Indian
School, Red Water Elementary, Standing Pine
Elementary, and Tucker Elementary

Standing Rock Agency

Standing Rock Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs

Agency Ave. P.O. Box E

Fort Yates, ND 58538

Contact: Emma Jean Blue Earth, Education

Line Officer

Telephone: 701-854-3497 Fax: 701-854-7280

E-mail: EmmaJeanBlueEarth@bia.gov Little Eagle Day, Rock Creek Day, Standing Rock Community, Theodore Jamerson Elementary, and Tate Topa Tribal School

Turtle Mountain Agency

Turtle Mountain Agency Education Line Office Bureau of Indian Affairs

School St. P.O. Box 30 Belcourt, ND 58316

Contact: Loretta DeLong, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 701-477-3463 Fax: 701-477-5944

E-mail: LorettaDeLong@bia.gov

Dunseith Day, Mandaree Day, Ojibwa Indian School, Turtle Mt. Elementary, Turtle Mt. Middle School, Turtle Mt. High School, Twin Buttes Day, White Shield School, and Trenton

School

Western Navajo Agency

Western Navajo Agency **Education Line Office** Bureau of Indian Affairs

Hwy, 160 & Warrior Dr., Bldg. 407

P.O. Box 746

Tuba City, AZ 86045

Contact: Andrew M. Tah, Education Line

Officer

Telephone: 520-283-2218

Fax: 520-283-2286

E-mail: AndrewTah@bia.gov

Chichinbeto Day, Dennehotso Boarding, Flagstaff Dormitory, Greyhills High, Kaibeto Boarding, Kayenta Boarding, Leupp, Little Singer Community, Navajo Mountain Boarding, Richfield Dormitory, Rocky Ridge Boarding School, Shonto Boarding, Tonalea, and Tuba

City Boarding School

2.5 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Division of Indian and Native American **Programs**

Division of Indian and Native American

Programs

Employment and Training Administration

U.S. Department of Labor

200 Constitution Ave., N. W., Rm. C4318

Washington, DC 20210

Contact: James De Luca, Chief

Telephone: 202-693-3754

Fax: 202-693-3818

E-mail: jdeluca@doleta.gov Web Site: http://wdsc.org/dinap

Provides job training and employment activities for Indians and other Native Americans. Program is administered in a manner consistent with the traditional cultural values, beliefs, and ways of the people it is designed to serve. Policies reflect the Department of Labor's commitment to Indian

self-determination.

2.6 CONGRESS

Committee on Education and the Workforce

Committee on Education and the Workforce

U. S. House of Representatives 2181 Rayburn House Offc. Bldg.

Washington, DC 20515

Contact: John A. Boehner, Chairman

Telephone: 202-225-4527

Web Site: http://edworkforce.house.gov/

index.htm

Known previously as the Committee on Economic and Educational Opportunities, this Congressional Committee has basic jurisdiction over education and labor matters.

Committee on Indian Affairs

Committee on Indian Affairs

U.S. Senate

838 Hart Offc. Bldg. Washington, DC 20510

Contact: Ben Nighthorse Campbell, Chairman

Telephone: 202-224-2251

Web Site: http://indian.senate.gov

Studies the unique problems of American Indian, Native Hawaiian, and Alaska Native peoples and proposes legislation to alleviate these difficulties. Primary areas of concern include Indian education, economic development, land management, trust responsibilities, health care, and claims against the United States. All legislation specifically pertaining to American Indians, Native Hawaiians, or Alaska Natives proposed by Members of the Senate comes also under the jurisdiction of this committee.

2.7 NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

Louis Stokes Alliances for Minority Participation Program (LSAMP)

Louis Stokes Alliances for Minority Participation Program (LSAMP)

Directorate of Education and Human Resources

National Science Foundation 4201 Wilson Blvd., Ste. 815 Arlington, VA 22230

Contact: A. James Hicks, Dr., Program Director

Telephone: 703-292-8640 Fax: 703-292-9018 E-mail: ahicks@nsf.gov

Web Site:

http://www.ehr.nsf.gov/EHR/HRD/amp.asp Comprehensive, multidisciplinary program designed to increase substantially the quantity and

quality of undergraduate students, especially African American, Hispanic, and Native American, pursuing degrees and careers in science, mathematics, engineering, and technology. Requires each awardee to establish meaningful partnerships with academic institutions, and encourages the inclusion of government agencies and laboratories, industry, and professional organizations.

Tribal College Rural Systemic Initiative

Tribal College Rural Systemic Initiative Turtle Mountain Community College

P.O. Box 340

Belcourte, ND 58316 Contact: Jerry Gourneau, Telephone: 701-477-6704 Fax: 701-477-8896

E-mail: tcrsi@giizis.turtle-mountain.cc.nd.us

Web Site: http://tcrsi.net

Area Served: MN, MT, ND, NE, SD, WY Funded by the National Science Foundation.

Collaborative effort of 20 Indian nations, to promote science, mathematics, and technology (SMT). Uses resources available in its tribal college and three school districts to address systemic initiatives that are changing the way SMT is taught. Prepares young Native Americans for tomorrow's science, mathematics, and technology challenges with the help of leadership from tribal governments, school boards, elders, parents, teachers, students, and community members.

2.8 SMITHSONIAN INSTITUTION

Minority Internship Program

Minority Internship Program Office of Fellowships and Grants **Smithsonian Institution** 955 L'Enfant Plaza, Ste. 7000, MRC 902 Washington, DC 20560 0152

Contact: Jake Homiak, Director Telephone: 202-357-1976

Fax: 202-633-8049 E-mail: naa@nmnh.si.edu

Web Site: http://www.si.edu/ofg/intern.htm Offers Native American Internships to students who are formally or informally related to a Native American community to pursue internship projects related to Native American topics and using Native American resources at the Smithsonian. Appointments of 10 weeks are available to undergraduate or graduate students, and provide

stipends and a travel allowance. Publishes "Smithsonian Opportunities for Research and Study."

National Museum of Natural History

Anthropology Outreach Office National Museum of Natural History Smithsonian Institution 10th St. & Constitution Ave., N. W.

Washington, DC 20560

Contact: Ann Kaupp, Head, Anthropology

Outreach Office

Telephone: 202-357-1592 E-mail: kaupp.ann@nmnh.si.edu

Web Site: http://www.nmnh.si.edu/rtp/amp/ Publishes the "Critical Bibliography on North American Indians" for K-12, which assists with the often difficult task of finding culturally sensitive and historically accurate materials in the area of American Indian and Alaska Native studies. Provides antibias guidelines and critiques to help educators critically evaluate books and teaching curricula and provide a foundation for assessing the value of materials about other cultures or ethnic groups.

National Museum of the American Indian

National Museum of the American Indian Smithsonian Institution 4220 Silver Hill Rd. Suitland, MD 20746

Contact: Rick West, Founding Director

Telephone: 301-238-6624

Web Site: http://www.nmai.si.edu/

Established by an act of Congress in 1989, the museum works in collaboration with the Native

peoples of the Western Hemisphere to protect and foster their cultures by reaffirming traditions and beliefs, encouraging contemporary artistic expression, and empowering the Indian voice. Comprising three facilities, collections span all major culture areas of the Americas, representing virtually all tribes of the United States, most of those of Canada, and a significant number of cultures from Middle and South America as well as the Caribbean.

OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Library Services for Indian Tribes and Hawaiian Natives Program

Library Services for Indian Tribes and Hawaiian Natives Program Institute of Museum and Library Services 1100 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Washington, DC 20506

Contact: Beverly Sheppard, Acting Director

Telephone: 202-606-5227 Fax: 202-606-8636

E-mail: imlsinfo@imls.gov Web Site: http://www.imls.gov

Promotes the extension of public library services to Alaska Native villages and American Indian tribes by encouraging the establishment and expansion of library programs. Offers grants to support core library operations; to provide professional development, needs assessment, and guidance for improvement; and to improve overall operations of libraries.

Section 3 Media, Periodicals, Publishers, and Producers

Section 3 Media, Periodicals, Publishers, and Producers

Abya Yala News

Abya Yala News

South and Meso American Indian Rights Center

(SAIIC)

P.O. Box 7829 Oakland, CA 94601

Contact: Soledad Jerez, Interim Executive

Director of SAIIC

Telephone: 510-834-4263

Fax: 510-834-4264 E-mail: indian@igc.org

Web Site: http://saiic.nativeweb.org/ayn/

Unique source of news and analysis relating to Indigenous issues in Meso and South America from Indigenous peoples' perspectives. Includes interviews with Indigenous leaders of the continent, analyses of continental organizing efforts, and reports on issues affecting Indigenous communities such as biodiversity, intellectual property rights, self-determination, and health care. Published biannually.

Alberta Journal of Educational Research

Faculty of Education

University of Alberta

Rm. 845, Faculty of Education

Edmonton, AB T6G 2G5

Canada

Contact: George H. Buck, Editor

Telephone: 780-492-3751 Fax: 780-492-0236

E-mail: ajer@ualberta.ca

Web Site:

http://www.education.ualberta.ca/educ/journals/

ajer.html

Quarterly journal devoted to the dissemination, criticism, interpretation, and encouragement of all forms of systematic inquiry into education and fields related to or associated with education. Back issues are available.

American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health Research: Journal of the National Center

Department of Psychiatry
University of Colorado Health Sciences Center
National Center for American Indian and
Alaska Native Mental Health Research

University N. Pavilion A011-13

4455 East 12th Ave. Denver, CO 80220

Contact: Billie K. Greene, Publications

Specialist

Telephone: 303-315-9226 Fax: 303-315-9579

E-mail: billie.greene@uchsc.edu

Web Site:

http://www.uchsc.edu/sm/ncaianmhr/jover.htm
Professionally refereed scientific journal that
contains empirical research, program evaluations,
case studies, unpublished dissertations, and other
articles in the behavioral, social, and health sciences
which clearly relate to the mental health status of
American Indians and Alaska Natives. All topical
areas relating to this field are addressed, such as
psychology, psychiatry, nursing, sociology,
anthropology, social work, and specific areas of
education, medicine, history, and law. Published
three times annually by the University Press of
Colorado.

American Indian Culture and Research Journal

American Indian Studies Center University of California, Los Angeles 3220 Campbell Hall, Box 951548 Los Angeles, CA 90095 1548

Telephone: 310-825-7315 Fax: 310-206-7060

E-mail: aiscpubs@ucla.edu

Web Site:

http://www.sscnet.ucla.edu/esp/aisc/index.html
Foremost refereed research journal of American
Indian Studies, released quarterly by the UCLA
American Indian Studies Center Publications Unit.
Each issue is packed with timely, well-researched
articles, haunting lyrical literature, and the latest
reviews of the academic literature available.
Welcomes the submission of academic articles,
poetry, and commentary pertaining to American
Indian issues.

American Indian Quarterly

University of Nebraska Press 233 N 8th St. Lincoln, NE 68588 0255 The following three directories are available from the U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs, 1849 C Street NW/MS-3512 MIB, Washington, DC 20240-0001; telephone: 202/208-4553; fax: 202/208-3271; email: cherylbranum@bia.gov.

Office of Indian Education Programs: Education Directory (updated yearly), 63 pp., free. http://www.oiep.bia.edu/Directory/2001directory.pdf

This directory includes contact information for the OIEP central office and divisions, special education coordinators, Family and Child Education coordinators, and field education officers, followed by an alphabetical index of BIA schools. The school directory contains addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, e-mail addresses, and names of administrators for all BIA schools and dormitories, arranged by field education office, and for postsecondary institutions, tribally controlled community colleges and universities, and BIA region offices.

Office of Indian Education Programs: Fingertip Facts (updated yearly), 23 pp., free.

http://www.oiep.bia.edu/finger/2001%20fingertipfacts.pdf

This directory includes background information about the Office of Indian Education Programs of the BIA, including its mission statement, long-range goals, statistical information about students served and schools/dormitories operated and funded, as well as descriptions and contact information for Education Line Offices and for each of the programs and services offered by the OIEP.

Tribal Leaders Directory (updated yearly), 122 pp., free. http://www.doi.gov/bia/areas/agency.html
This directory includes listings of addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, and e-mail addresses for
directors of all BIA regional offices; BIA representatives in field offices; and chiefs, chairmen,
chairwomen, governors, and presidents of all federally recognized tribes and Alaska villages.

Contact: Devon A. Mihesuah, Editor

Toll-free: 800-755-1105

E-mail: Devon.Mihesyuah@nau.edu Web Site: http://unp.unl.edu/aiq.html

A peer-reviewed interdisciplinary journal of the histories, anthropologies, literatures, religions, and arts of Native America. Devoted to charting and inciting debate about the latest developments in method and theory. See editor's Web site for more information at http://jan.ucc.nau.edu/~mihesuah/.

Audio-Forum

Jeffrey Norton Publishers

96 Broad St.

Guilford, CT 06437 Toll-free: 800-243-1234 Telephone: 203-453-9794

Fax: 888-453-4329 or 203-453-9774

E-mail: info@audioforum.com
Web Site: http://www.audioforum.com/

Publisher and distributor of self-instructional, personal development, and educational audiovisual materials, including a large selection of courses and related cultural materials for Native American languages. Carries a large line of personal development audio and video programs, and many English as a Second/Foreign Language instructional courses. Provides quality programs to both individual consumers and educational institutions throughout the United States and the world.

Bilingual Research Journal

Center for Bilingual Education and Research

College of Education

Arizona State University

P.O. Box 871511

Tempe, AZ 85287-1511

Contact: José M. González, Director, Center for

Bilingual Education and Research

Telephone: 480-965-7134

Fax: 480-965-5164 E-mail: josue@asu.edu Web Site: http://brj.asu.edu/

Recognizes flourishing bilingual education programs and highlights their achievements for the purpose of informing the educational and academic community. Geared toward research studies on successful bilingual programs/schools representing

different models. Papers may examine the areas of curriculum, instruction, student outcomes, school or program outcomes, and community response to the school/program.

Canadian Journal of Native Education

First Nations House of Learning University of British Columbia

1985 W. Mall

Vancouver, BC V6T 1Z2

Canada

Contact: Jo-Ann Archibald, Director

Telephone: 604-822-8940

Fax: 604-822-8944

Web Site: http://longhouse.ubc.ca/ Published twice yearly with occasional

supplement issues.

Chariot Distribution

Chariot Distribution 1274 Lambert Cir. Lafayette, CO 80026 Toll-free: 800-477-5128 Fax: 303-666-5808

E-mail: info@chariotdist.com

Web Site: http://www.chariotdist.com/

Distributes video and instructional programs for television and schools. Native American videos are organized by the following topics: Health and Wellness; History and Culture; History and Culture for Children; and Teen prevention programs. Programs are invaluable resources for: Treatment programs, Indian education's programs, Health and Social Service Agencies, Colleges and Schools, Parent/Community Groups.

Cherokee Heritage Indian Education Foundation (CHIEF)

Cherokee Heritage Indian Education Foundation

(CHIEF) 2934 E. 76th Pl. Tulsa, OK 74136

Telephone: 918-491-6062

Fax: 918-491-6062

E-mail: chief@galstar.com

Cherokee history and language are preserved through audio books, cassettes, flash cards, videos, and the written word. Produces audiovisual materials for teaching the language and history of Cherokee people. Reproduces books and audio books about Cherokee history

to preserve Cherokee songs, and to republish early writings about the Cherokees. Helps produce and distribute video documentaries about the history, language, and culture of the Cherokee people.

Cherokee Messenger

Cherokee Cultural Society of Houston

P.O. Box 23187

Houston, TX 77228 3187 Telephone: 713-866-4085 E-mail: vhenrichs@earthlink.net

Web Site:

http://www.powersource.com/cherokee/

Contains news articles, family histories, poetry, and other items of interest concerning the Cherokee culture. Its purpose is "to build community, to preserve Cherokee heritage, to perpetuate the Cherokee culture, and to build the future of [its] people."

Cherokee Quarterly

Cherokee Quarterly

Territorial Book Foundation

P.O. Box 4873

Tulsa, OK 74159 0873

Publishes a journal in March, June, September, and December, dedicated to sharing knowledge of Cherokee history and culture with particular interest in this Nation's contributions to the annals of American history.

Children's Theatre Plays.com

Children's Theatre Plays.com 3936 Millsbrae Ave. Cincinnati, OH 45209

Contact: Kathryn Schultz Miller,

Telephone: 513-351-9978

E-mail: kschultzmiller@mindspring.com

Web Site: http://www.childrenstheatreplays.com
Educates young children through plays featuring
Native American appropriate material. Web site
also provides links to other Native American related
Web sites.

Clear Light Publishers

Clear Light Publishers 823 Don Diego Santa Fe, NM 87501 Toll-free: 888-253-2747

Fax: 505-989-9519

E-mail: service@clearlightbooks.com

Web Site: http://www.clearlightbooks.com/ Books address such topics as community development, the environment, Pueblo nations, and Indian heroes. Organized into different diversity-related topics, one of which is titled, "Native American."

Common Ground

Publications

Archeology and Ethnography Program

National Park Service

1849 C St., NW

Washington, DC 20240 Telephone: 202-343-4101

Web Site:

http://www.cr.nps.gov/aad/aepubs.htm

Quarterly magazine read by nearly 12,000 archaeologists, land managers, preservation officers, museum professionals, Native Americans, law enforcement agents, educators, and the public. Each issues offers in-depth coverage of a topic, such as working with Native Americans, managing sites in wilderness lands, or African American archeology, as well as hard-to-find or otherwise unavailable information on protecting sites, public outreach, caring for collections, training, publications, and more.

Directory of United States Arctic Researchers

Directory of United States Arctic Researchers

ARCUS

3535 College Rd., Ste. 101 Fairbanks, AK 99709 3710 Contact: Diane Wallace, Editor

Telephone: 907-474-1600 Fax: 907-474-1604 E-mail: arcus@arcus.org

Web Site:

http://www.arcus.org/researcher/fr_about.html
Tracks international arctic researchers. Aids
links among individual investigators, institutions,
funding agencies, and arctic stakeholders and,
thereby, facilitate arctic research and education
efforts. Contents of the directory were developed by
extensive surveys of individual arctic researchers
and institutions. Online directory is updated weekly.

Diversity Database

Diversity Database University of Maryland College Park, MD 20742 Telephone: 301-405-1000
E-mail: diversity@mail.umd.edu
Web Site: http://www.diversityweb.org/
Comprehensive database contains index of
campus, local, national, and international academic
material relating to the following areas of diversity
as defined by the Office of Human Relations
Programs at the University of Maryland: age, class,
disability, ethnicity, gender, national origin, race,
religion, and sexual orientation.

Four Winds Indian Books

Four Winds Indian Books

P.O. Box 544

York, NE 68467 0544 Telephone: 402-362-5654

Fax: 402-362-6994

E-mail: fourwind@inebraska.com

Web Site: http://www.fourwindsbooks.com/ Specialty mail order company dealing in only Native American books and related items. Offers the following topics: Arts and Crafts; Language; Tribal Specific; Music and Dance; Literature; and Outdoor Activities.

Fourth World Journal

Fourth World Journal

Center for World Indigenous Studies 1001 Cooper Pt. Rd., S. W., Ste. 140-214

Olympia, WA 98502 1107

Contact: Rudolph C. Rser, Editor in Chief

Telephone: 360-754-1990 Fax: 253-276-0084 E-mail: fwj@cwis.org

Web Site: https://www.cwis.org/fwj/fwjsub.html Journal dedicated to publication of articles written from the perspective of the world's more than 6,000 Indigenous Nations. Invites submissions in the fields of history, politics, the arts, traditions, philosophy, and current affairs bearing on the interests of Fourth World peoples.

Great Promise for Young American Indians

Great Promise

1103 Hatteras

Austin, TX 78753 2063

Contact: Vincent Bland, Director

Telephone: 512-459-6325

Fax: 512-452-1058

E-mail: V bland@yahoo.com

Articles and features in this magazine are aimed mostly at students in grades 5-8 and their teachers

and parents. Materials and programs also strive to help those of other races to understand more about American Indians. Contains cultural information about various tribes and culturally relevant curriculum. Helps children explore the history of their families and tribes and profiles contemporary American Indian men and women who are successful in various fields. Encourages children to excel academically, and stresses reading, writing, drawing, mathematics, and science.

Independent American Indian Review (IAIR, Inc.), The

IAIR Inc.

1840 E. Warner Rd., Ste. A105

Tempe, AZ 85284

Contact: Mimi McBride, Senior Editor

Telephone: 480-839-8355

Fax: 480-820-1749

E-mail: wvi@worldviewsintl.com

wvi@worldviewsintl.com

Web Site: http://www.worldviewsintl.com/iair/

Publishes articles written about contemporary diverse American Indian nations, and reviews written from American Indian perspectives.

Appropriate for general readers and educators at all levels who are interested in contemporary American Indian communities and reviews of books, CDs, tapes, and other multimedia available on the market today, and highlights other American Indian review resources. Published three times annually. Articles share economic development information and feature interviews and/or information on contemporary American Indian leaders who have broken today's negative stereotypes and who are working to gain control of their community's destiny.

Indian Country Today

Indian Country Today P.O. Box 4250 1920 Lombardy Dr. Rapid City, SD 57703 Telephone: 605-341-0011

Fax: 605-341-6940

E-mail: editor@indiancountry.com

Web Site: http://www.indiancountry.com/

Founded in 1981, the 29 Indian colleges and Indian elementary and high schools across the nation have come to rely on the paper as an invaluable source of information and education. Multimedia technologies are being used to better serve a growing worldwide audience. Audio clips are currently

available and a searchable archive database will become available for researchers and policymakers.

Journal of American Indian Education

Journal of American Indian Education Center for Indian Education Arizona State University P.O. Box 871311

Tempe, AZ 85287 1311

Contact: Octaviana V. Trujillo, Editor

Telephone: 480-965-6292

Fax: 480-965-8115

E-mail: jaie@cie.ed.asu.edu Web Site: http://jaie.asu.edu/ Area Served: International

Peer reviewed scholarly journal that publishes papers specifically related to the education of American Indians and Alaska Natives. Focuses on basic applied research; however, explicative or interpretive perspectives are considered for publication as well. Of particular interest are publications that express the viewpoint of American Indians or Alaska Natives and are based on research that is initiated, conducted, and interpreted by Natives. Published three times a year.

Journal of Ethnic & Cultural Diversity in Social Work

The Haworth Press, Inc.

10 Alice St.

Binghamton, NY 13904

Contact: Diane de Anda, Editor Telephone: 800-429-6784

Fax: 800-895-0582

Web Site: http://www.haworthpressinc.com/ Retitled from the Journal of Multicultural Social

Work to reflect its greater focus on culturally diverse populations. Dedicated to the examination of multicultural social issues as they relate to social work policy, research, theory, and practice. Helps readers develop knowledge and promote understanding of the impact of culture, ethnicity, and class on the individual, group, organization, and community on the delivery of human services.

Lisa Mitten's Native American Sites

Lisa Mitten's Native American Sites CHOICE Magazine 100 Riverview Ctr. Middleton, CT 06457

Contact: Lisa Mitten, Social Sciences Subject

Editor of CHOICE Magazine Telephone: 603-649-6120

E-mail: mitten@nativeculture.zzn.com Web Site: http://www.nativeculture.com/

lisamitten/indians.html

Provides access to various pages on the Internet relevant to Native American education. Organized into seven sections: Native education organizations; tribal colleges, Indian/Native studies departments; Indian students organizations; K-12 Indian schools and organizations; general Indian education resources; and a list of all Native American and Canadian Indian tribes, nations, and groups.

MSSR Electronic Books

MSSR Electronic Books

P.O. Box 8745

Missoula, MT 59807 Telephone: 406-549-4128

Web Site: http://www.mssrbooks.com/ Variety of Native American publications available in PC and Mac formats. Publications are available for paid download or free examination in

HTML.

National Native Information Center (NNIC)

National Native Information Center (NNIC)

MIGIZI Communications, Inc.

3123 E. Lake St.

Minneapolis, MN 55406-2028

Contact: Rosy Simas

Telephone: 612-721-6631 x219

Fax: 612-721-3936

E-mail: questions@nnic.com

Web Site: http://www.nnic.com/nnicsite/

default.html Area Served: U.S.

Provides information and services to people or organizations with an interest in American Indian issues. Provides affordable Web services for community nonprofit organizations and businesses; its mission is to be the premier provider of American Indian Web design devices. Host institution runs an internship program to educate young people about technology and connect them to contacts in the local business community. Also maintains a Family Education Center and offers technology training services to people of all ages.

Native American Times

Native American Times Oklahoma Indian Times P.O. Box 692050 Tulsa, OK 74169

Contact: Elizabeth Gaines-Gray, Founder and

Copublisher

Telephone: 918-438-6548 Fax: 918-438-6545 E-mail: editor@okit.com Web Site: http://www.okit.com/

Area Served: U.S.

Monthly newspaper that covers nationwide

events.

Native Americas Journal

Native Americas Journal

Akwe:kon Press of the American Indian Program

Cornell University 450 Caldwell Hall Ithaca, NY 14853

Contact: José Barreiro, Editorial staff

Telephone: 607-255-4308 Fax: 607-255-0185

E-mail: nativeamericas@cornell.edu

Web Site: http://nativeamericas.aip.cornell.edu/ Features articles that cover issues of concern to Native peoples throughout the Western Hemisphere. Staff members firmly rooted in Native American community life strive to synthesize the many perspectives currently presented in the news media. Published quarterly.

Native Book Centre

Native Book Centre

Contact: Harold Medjuck, President E-mail: webmaster@nativebooks.com Web Site: http://www.nativebooks.com/

Established in 1986 in response to the growing interest and demand for Native Indian educational and historical books. Has become one of the world's largest suppliers of Native American Indian books, videos, audios, and CD-ROMs, with over 1,500 titles in 37 different categories. Customers range from Canada's smallest Native Indian school to the world's largest public library.

Native Child

Native Child P.O. Box 23559 Flagstaff, AZ 86002 Telephone: 520-214-6124

Fax: 520-214-6125

Web Site: http://www.nativechild.com/

Publishers of developmentally and culturally appropriate curriculum materials for schools, preschools, Head Start programs, and day care centers, or other educational organizations and institutions. Many items available in English and Dine (Navajo) languages.

Native Monthly Reader

RedSun Institute

15061 Adam Dr.

Pauma Valley, CA 92061 Telephone: 760-742-4416 E-mail: nmr@pacbell.net

Web Site: http://www.sweetsites.net/nmr.html
Designed exclusively to meet the cross-cultural
education and information needs of Native and
non-Native students. Targeted for grades 5 through
12 and reaches classrooms throughout the United
States and Canada. Published eight months out of
the school year beginning in October and ending in
May.

Native Peoples Magazine

Native Peoples Magazine 5333 N. 7th St., Ste. C-224 Phoenix, AZ 85014 2804

Contact: Stephen Phillips, Circulation Manager

Toll-free: 888-262-8483 Telephone: 602-265-4855 Fax: 602-265-3113

E-mail: editorial@nativepeoples.com Web Site: http://www.nativepeoples.com

Area Served: AZ, OK, WA

Offers stories that help bring an understanding of Native peoples of the Americas in a high quality, full color, bimonthly magazine. Written for a diverse audience, articles cover a range of topics, from serious to entertaining, and focus on events and issues reflecting today's Native peoples.

Native Village

Native Village

Web Site: http://www.nativevillage.org/

A Web site for youth, educators, families, and friends who wish to celebrate the rich, diverse cultures of the Americas' First Peoples. Includes resource libraries, messages from the People, funding, and scholarship information to enrich the lives of those from Turtle Island.

Publishes weekly "Native Village Drum News" and "Native Village Youth and Educational Highlights."

NativeWeb. Inc.

NativeWeb, Inc. 16 Cross Rd. Dewitt, NY 13224

Contact: Marc Becker, President

Fax: 253-541-3701

E-mail: advertising@nativeweb.org
Web Site: http://www.nativeweb.com
Disseminates information from and about
Indigenous nations, peoples, and organizations
around the world. Fosters communication between
native and nonnative peoples. Conducts research
and provides resources, mentoring, and services to
facilitate Indigenous peoples' use of technology and
the Internet.

News from Native California

News from Native California P.O. Box 9145 Berkeley, CA 94610

Contact: Malcolm Margolin, Publisher

Telephone: 510-549-2802 Fax: 510-549-1889

E-mail: news@heydaybooks.com
Web Site: http://www.heydaybooks.com/

Area Served: CA

Quarterly magazine devoted to California's Indigenous people. Announces and reports on Native events. Articles range from ceremonial regalia and traditional use of tobacco to environmental issues and California archaeology. Regular features address California Indian languages, the arts, books, skills and technology, law, and more.

Northern Review, The

Yukon College P.O. Box 2799 Whitehorse, Yk Canada Y1A 5K4

Contact: Amanda Graham, Managing Editor

Telephone: 867-668-8773 Fax: 867-668-8828

E-mail:

agraham@ayamdigut.yukoncollege.yk.ca

Web Site:

http://www.yukoncollege.yk.ca/review/

A refereed journal published twice each year, "The Northern Review" is the only scholarly journal published North of 60 in Canada. Has published over 50 literary pieces and more than 130 papers, in

both general and special thematic issues, in the arts, social sciences, and humanities. Papers have covered a broad range of circumpolar human issues and topics.

Northland Publishing

Northland Publishing

2900 N. Fort Valley Rd., P.O. Box 1389

P.O. Box 1389 Flagstaff, AZ 86001 Toll-free: 800-346-3257 Telephone: 520-774-5251

Fax: 520-774-0592, 800-257-9082 E-mail: info@northlandpub.com

Web Site: http://www.northlandpub.com/
Has evolved from a small printing press to a
book publisher known primarily for its finely crafted
books about the American West. Works towards its
vision, to ensure that the diverse history of our
region would continue to flourish for years to come.
Dedicated to preserving the traditions and the
cultures of the West, it continues to make significant
contributions toward a greater understanding of its
history and its peoples.

Northwest Education Magazine

Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory 101 SW Main, Ste. 500 Portland, OR 97204

Contact: Lee Sherman, Co-Editor

Telephone: 503-275-9500

Web Site: http://www.nwrel.org/nwedu/ Quarterly magazine of the Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory offering various topics of interest with each issue. Can be accessed online.

RED INK Magazine

American Indian Studies Programs University of Arizona 1621 E. 7th St. Tucson, AZ 85719

Telephone: 520-622-3504 Fax: 520-791-3735

E-mail: redink@u.arizona.edu

Web Site:

http://w3.arizona.edu/~aisp/redink.htm Cultivates and highlights Native American intellectual and creative expression through the media of poetry; short stories; creative nonfiction; scholarly articles; original artwork and photography; and book, music, and film reviews. Promotes an

ongoing discourse with students, professors, tribal

leaders, tribal members, and other interested communities (Native and non-Native) regarding critical and timely issues. Provides a vital forum for both students and non-students to engage in an open dialogue with other Native American researchers and writers in their respective fields.

Studies in American Indian Literatures (SAIL)

Association for the Study of American Indian Literatures (ASAIL) University of Richmond 28 Westhampton Way, Box 112 Richmond, VA 23173 0112 Contact: Robert Nelson, Fax: 804-289-8313

E-mail: rnelson@richmond.edu

Web Site: http://www.richmond.edu/faculty/

ASA1L/sail-hp.html

Published four times a year, it focuses exclusively on American Indian literatures. With a wide scope of scholars and creative contributors, it is always on the cutting edge of activity in the field. Keeps all members informed of current opportunities for scholarship and interaction in the field, as well as recent publications and developments. Provides access to the dozens of reviews of anthologies, reprints, scholarly monographs, bibliographies, poetry, fiction, and criticism in SAIL and calls for papers, conference announcements, and recent book releases covered in "ASAIL Notes."

Teaching Indigenous Languages

Center for Excellence in Education Northern Arizona University

P.O. Box 5774

Flagstaff, AZ 86011 5774 Contact: Jon Reyhner, Telephone: 928-523-5342 Fax: 928-523-1929

E-mail: Jon.Reyhner@nau.edu

Web Site: http://jan.ucc.nau.edu/~jar/TIL.html An outgrowth of a series of annual conferences started in 1994 at Northern Arizona University focusing on the linguistic, educational, social, and political issues related to the survival of the endangered indigenous languages of the world.

Tribal College Journal of American Indian Higher Education

Tribal College Journal of American Indian Higher Education American Indian Higher Education Consortium P.O. Box 720

Mancos, CO 81328

Contact: Marjane Ambler, Editor

Telephone: 970-533-9170 Fax: 970-533-9145

E-mail: info@tribalcollegejournal.org Web Site: http://www.tribalcollegejournal.org/

Published quarterly, provides information to those interested in American Indian higher education. Addresses subjects important to the future of American Indian and Alaska Native communities by publishing both journalistic and scholarly articles. Has received several awards from the Native American Journalists Association for

Vision Maker

general excellence.

Vision Maker Native American Public Telecommunications P.O. Box 83111 1800 N 33rd St. Lincoln, NE 68501-3111

Contact: Frank Blythe, Executive Director

Telephone: 402-472-3522 Fax: 402-472-8675

E-mail: native@unl.edu

Web Site: http://www.nativetelecom.org

Seasonal publication of Native American Public Telecommunications. American Indian and Alaska Natives employ all forms of telecommunications to inform and educate the public concerning tribal histories, cultures, languages, and opportunities.

Winds of Change

Winds of Change American Indian Science and Engineering

Society

Society

4450 Arapahoe Ave., Ste. 100

Boulder, CO 80303 Telephone: 303-448-8853 Fax: 303-444-6607

Web Site: http://aises.uthscsa.edu/winds/ Associated with the American Indian Science and Engineering Society (AISES) headquartered in

and Engineering Society (AISES) headquartered in Albuquerque, New Mexico, "Winds of Change" is the only American Indian-published and nationally distributed full-color magazine with a focus on career and educational advancement for Native people. Articles highlight cross-cultural issues of interest to both Native and non-Native people.

Section 4

State and Territorial Government and Nongovernment Organizations

Section 4 State and Territorial Government and Nongovernment Organizations

ALASKA

Alaska Association for Bilingual Education

Alaska Association for Bilingual Education

PO Box 221663 Anchorage, AK 99522

Contact: Mike Travis, President

Telephone: 907-349-0651 Fax: 907-349-0652

E-mail: miket@akrac.k12.ak.us

Web Site: http://www.akrac.k12.ak.us/AKRAC/

Programs/multires1.html

Area Served: AK

An affiliate of the National Association for Bilingual Education (NABE) and Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL), this statewide association promotes bilingualism, the improvement of bilingual/bicultural education, and the teaching of English as a second language at all levels of education in Alaska. Activities include collecting and disseminating information about bilingual/bicultural education and ESL instruction and providing opportunities for professional development to educators.

Publishes quarterly newsletter "AKABE Newsletter."

Cosponsors annual conference.

Alaska Head Start Directors Association

Alaska Head Start Directors Association

Rural CAP

P.O. Box 200980

Anchorage, AK 99520

Contact: Shirley Pittz, Chairperson

Toll-free: 800-478-7227 Telephone: 907-279-2511

Fax: 800-478-6343 E-mail: pittz@ruralcap.com

Area Served: AK, Region X & Region XI

grantees

The majority of grantees belonging to the Association serve Alaska Native children and their families through Head Start and Early Head Start services.

Alaska Native Curriculum and Teacher Development Project

Alaska Native Curriculum and Teacher

Development Project

Institute of Social and Economic Research

University of Alaska Anchorage

3211 Providence Dr. Anchorage, AK 99508

Contact: Bill McDiarmid, Director

Telephone: 907-786-7739

E-mail: afgwm@UAA.ALASKA.EDU Web Site: http://www.alaskool.org/

Area Served: AK

Supported by a grant from the U.S. Department of Education, this project brings together teams of teachers, elders, and community members from various parts of Alaska with university-based specialists. Develops curricula on Alaska Native studies and language. Products available to all schools through the Internet or on CD.

Publishes newsletters

Alaska Native Heritage Center

Alaska Native Heritage Center 8800 Heritage Ctr. Dr. Anchorage, AK 99506

Contact: Shannon Johnson, Executive Assistant

Toll-free: 800-315-6608 Telephone: 907-330-8000 Fax: 907-330-8030

E-mail: info@alaskanative.net

Web Site: http://www.alaskanative.net/

Opened in 1999, the Center has become Alaska's premier interactive cultural destination by offering many ways to experience Alaska's Native cultures for young and old alike. Diverse people are able to gather and expand their understanding of one another, enhancing self-esteem among Native people, and encouraging exploration of cross-cultural communication exchanges with non-Natives. The Center represents five groupings of the 11 distinct Alaska Native culture: Athabascan; Yup'ik/Cup'ik; Inupiaq and St. Lawrence Island Yupik; Aleut and Alutiiq; Eyak, Tlingit, Haida, and Tsimshian.

Alaska Native Knowledge Network

Alaska Native Knowledge Network University of Alaska Fairbanks

P.O. Box 757520 Fairbanks, AK 99775 Contact: Frank Hill, Telephone: 907-474-5086 E-mail: fyankn@uaf.edu

Web Site: http://www.ankn.uaf.edu/

Area Served: AK

Serves as a resource for compiling and exchanging information related to Alaska Native knowledge systems and ways of knowing. Assists Native people, government agencies, educators, and the general public in gaining access to the knowledge base that Alaska Natives have acquired through cumulative experience over millennia.

Alaska Native Language Center

Alaska Native Language Center University of Alaska Fairbanks

P.O. Box 757680 Fairbanks, AK 99775

Contact: Larry Kaplan, Director Telephone: 907-474-7874

Fax: 907-474-6586 E-mail: ffldk@uaf.edu

Web Site: http://www.uaf.edu/anlc/index.html

Area Served: AK

Serves as a center for research and documentation of the 20 Native languages of Alaska. Provides materials for bilingual teachers and other language workers throughout the state, assists social scientists and others who work with Native languages, and provides consulting and training services to teachers, school districts, and state agencies involved in bilingual education.

Publishes teaching and research materials.

Association of Village Council Presidents, Inc. (AVCP, Inc.)

Association of Village Council Presidents, Inc.

(AVCP, Inc.) P.O. Box 219

Bethel, AK 99559 0219

Contact: Arthur J. Lake, President

Toll-free: 800-478-3521 Telephone: 907-543-7300 Fax: 907-543-3369

E-mail: Arthur_Lake@avcp.org Web Site: http://www.avcp.org Area Served: AK

Works with the 56 member federally-recognized tribes on the Yukon Kuskokwim River Delta to develop programs and projects, seek funding, and promote Tribal infrastructures that will improve the quality of life for all Native people in the region. Advocates for the preservation of diverse cultures and traditions.

Institute of Social and Economic Research

Institute Social and Economic Research

University of Alaska Anchorage

3211 Providence Dr. Anchorage, AK 99508

Contact: G. Williamson McDiarmid, Dr.,

Director

Telephone: 907-786-7710 Fax: 907-786-7739

E-mail: ayiser@uaa.alaska.edu

Web Site: http://www.iser.uaa.alaska.edu/

Area Served: AK

Performs wide-range research used by policymakers and private citizens alike on topics such as Alaska Native history, education, and social issues. Draws communities, school districts, and universities, as well as Native and other private organizations, into its research projects. Publishes and provides access to all research findings through the offices at the University of Alaska Anchorage. Web site makes available a variety of information resources.

Hosts annual summer conference.

Maniilaq Association

Maniilaq Association P.O. Box 256 Kotzebue, AK 99752

Contact: Margaret Frazier, Education

Coordinator -4789791

Telephone: 907-442-7652

Fax: 907-442-2381

E-mail: mfrazier@maniilaq.org Web Site: http://www.maniilaq.org

Area Served: AK

Provides services for Alaska Natives who are enrolled in the NANA Regional Corporation and scholarships for those eligible to pursue a degree at an accredited college or university. Also offers an adult vocational training scholarship.

ARIZONA

Action Reading, Inc.

Action Reading, Inc. P.O. Box 4944

Cave Creek, AZ 85327

Contact: Jeanie Eller, Founder Toll-free: 800-378-1046 Telephone: 480-988-1967 E-mail: reading1@goodnet.com

Web Site: http://www.actionreading.com/

Area Served: AZ

Teaches Native children to read with songs, games, exercises, activities, and step-by-step instruction in phonics, comprehension, spelling, and handwriting. Makes learning to read more fun for Native children with processes that involve all their senses and are more natural to their culture. The program has also been used to teach older students and adults to read.

Arizona Commission of Indian Affairs

Arizona Commission of Indian Affairs 1400 W Washington, Ste. 300

Phoenix, AZ 85007

Contact: Ron S. Lee, Executive Director

Telephone: 602-542-3123 Fax: 602-542-3223

Web Site: http://www.indianaffairs.state.az.us

Area Served: AZ

Enhances communications between the state of Arizona and the 21 Indian tribes and nations of Arizona. Promotes economic development opportunities for Indian communities emphasizing the unique government-to-government relationship between tribal, state, and federal entities.

Publishes quarterly "ACIA Newsletter," and a biannual "Resource Directory."

Heard Museum

Educational Services Program

Heard Museum 2301 N Central Ave. Phoenix, AZ 85004

Contact: Anne Kessler, Telephone: 602-252-8848 Web Site: http://www.heard.org/

Area Served: AK

Educates the public about the heritage and the living cultures of Native peoples, with an emphasis on the American Southwest.

Navajo Nation--Johnson O'Malley Department

Department of Johnson O' Malley

Navajo Nation P.O. Box 1950

Window Rock, AZ 86515

Contact: Rebecca Manymules, Program Director, Office of Educational Research and

Statistics

Telephone: 928-871-7473 Fax: 928-871-7464

E-mail: rizzo_mm@hotmail.com Area Served: AZ, CO, NM, UT

Each of the 35 subcontractors has Native American/Navajo language, culture, history, and government as a top priority. Native student support is available through extended day/year tutoring, Indian clubs, and individual student support, or activities funds upon request.

Publishes Navajo Nation Statistics, and book "Close Up."

Hosts September NCA/DODE Education Conference.

Bilingual Rural Inclusive Development for General & Exceptional Educators (BRIDGE)

Northern Arizona University

Eastburn Education Center, Bldg. 27, Rm. 206

P.O. Box 5774 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Patricia Peterson, Telephone: 928-523-4005/9507

Fax: 928-523-8750

E-mail: Patricia.Peterson@nau.edu

A federally funded (Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services) collaboration between Northern Arizona University and Arizona rural school districts with a focus on training teachers to serve children with high-incidence disabilities from Native American (Navajo and Hopi) and Mexican-American backgrounds.

Center for American Indian Economic Development

Northern Arizona University

Business Administration, Bldg. 70, Rm. 6

P.O. Box 15066

Flagstaff, AZ 86011-5066

Contact: N. Levi Esquerra, Director

Telephone: 928-523-7320 Fax: 928-523-5837

E-mail: nle4.cba@nau.edu; awang-h.cba@nau.edu

Enables Arizona's Native Americans to achieve economic self-sufficiency by stimulating individual and tribal entrepreneurship.

Educational Opportunity Centers

Northern Arizona University University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 240

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Erin Grisham, Project Director

Telephone: 928-523-1100 Fax: 928-523-9466

E-mail: Erin.Grisham@nau.edu

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/edsup/EOC Provides assistance and information to adults who seek to enter any postsecondary education program (trade school, two- and four-year colleges).

Institute for Tribal Environmental Professionals

Northern Arizona University

du Bois Center, Bldg. 64, Lower Level

P.O. Box 15004 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Virgil Masayesva, Director

Telephone: 928-523-7792 Fax: 928-523-1266

E-mail: http://www.cet.nau.edu/itep Web Site: Virgil.Masayesva@nau.edu

Acts as a catalyst among tribal governments; research and technical resources at Northern Arizona University; various federal, state, and local governments; and the private sector in support of environmental protection of Native American natural resources.

Navajo/Hopi Statewide Academic Programs

Northern Arizona University

P.O. Box 4116 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Tanya Gorman-Keith, Regional

Director

Telephone: 928-523-6741 Fax: 928-523-1169

E-mail: Tanya.Keith@nau.edu

Provides distance learning educational opportunities using interactive television, online courses, and local instruction statewide, with an emphasis on Native Americans from the northern Arizona area.

CALIFORNIA

California Department of Education--American Indian Education Office

American Indian Education Office California Department of Education 721 Capitol Mall, 2nd Fl.

P.O. Box 944272

Sacramento, CA 94244 2720

Telephone: 916-657-3700

California Indian Legal Services, Inc.

California Indian Legal Services, Inc.

510 16th St., 4th Fl. Oakland, CA 94612 Toll-free: 800-829-0284 Telephone: 510-835-0284

Fax: 510-835-8045

E-mail: calindian@calindian.org Web Site: http://www.calindian.org

Area Served: CA

Nihewan Foundation of Native American Education

Nihewan Foundation for Native American

Education

9595 Wilshire Blvd., Ste. 1020

Beverly Hills, CA 90212

Web Site: http://www.nihewan.org

Area Served: CA

Encourages Native American students to participate in learning while helping people of all backgrounds learn about Native American culture. Supports college-bound students, prepares lower grade students for future college enrollment; and promotes a better, more accurate understanding of the roles of Native peoples—past, present, and future—in the global community.

COLORADO

Colorado Commission on Indian Affairs

Colorado Commission on Indian Affairs

130 State Capitol Denver, CO 80203

Contact: Karen Wilde-Rogers, Executive

Secretary

Telephone: 303-866-3027 Fax: 303-866-5469

E-mail:

karen.wilde-rogers@centennial.state.co.us

52

Web Site: http://www.state.co.us/gov dir/ltgov/ indian/indian.htm

Coordinates intergovernmental dealings between tribal governments and the state, explains the needs of American Indians in Colorado, reviews all proposed legislation affecting American Indians in Colorado, contracts with public and private bodies to provide services and facilities for American Indians, and publishes reports of findings and recommendations.

Publishes biennially "Colorado Directory of Indian Resources."

CONNECTICUT

Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection

Connecticut Indian Affairs Council (CIAC) Department of Environmental Protection State of Connecticut

79 Elm St.

Hartford, CT 06106 5127

Contact: Ed Sarabia, Indian Affairs Coordinator

Telephone: 860-424-3066 Fax: 860-424-4058

E-mail: Edward.Sarabia@po.state.ct.us

Area Served: CT

Publishes history of Connecticut's Indians and a

bibliography.

FLORIDA

Billy Osceola Memorial Library

Seminole Tribal Library System Seminole Tribe of Florida Billy Osceola Memorial Library

Rt. 6

Okeechobee, FL 34974

Contact: Deborah Johns, Assistant Director

Telephone: 941-763-4236 Fax: 941-763-0679

E-mail: libbrsem@okeechobee.com Web Site: http://www.seminoletribe.com

Area Served: FL

Supports a comprehensive preschool child development program for Seminole children, ages six weeks to five years old. This public library, specializing in Seminole material, houses over 23,000 titles, numerous periodicals, videos, CD-ROMs, photo collections, audiotapes, and news articles spanning 40 years. Adult and children's

computers that offer Internet access are available for educational and recreational purposes.

Publishes "Seminole Tribune."

Florida Department of Education

Programs for Disadvantaged & Limited English

Proficient Students

Florida Department of Education

325 W Gaines St. #701 Tallahassee, FL 32399 0400

Contact: Jane Silveria, State Supervisor, Programs for Disadvantaged and Limited

English Proficient Students Telephone: 850-487-1603 Fax: 850-487-1735

E-mail: silverj@mail.doe.state.fl.us Web Site: http://www.firn/doe

HAWAII

Hale Kuamo'o Center for Hawaijan Language and Culture

Hale Kuamo'o Center for Hawaiian Language

and Culture

College of Hawaiian Language

University of Hawaii at Hilo

200 W Kawili St. Hilo, HI 96720 4091 Telephone: 808-933-3339

Fax: 808-933-3686

E-mail: keiki@leoki.uhh.hawaii.edu

Area Served: HI

Encourages expansion of the Hawaiian language as a medium of communication in education, business, government, and social contexts in Hawaii and beyond. Produces and distributes literature in Hawaiian for publication and broadcast media; compiles Hawaiian language dictionaries and grammars; provides curriculum support and resource services for Hawaiian language coursework and programs.

Publishes instructional materials.

Native Hawaiian Leadership Project

Native Hawaiian Leadership Project College of Business Administration University of Hawaii at Manoa Bus. Ad., Ste. A405 (a)

2404 Maile Way

Honolulu, HI 96822

Contact: Manu Ka'iama, Principal Investigator

Telephone: 808-956-7258

E-mail: nhlp@busadm.cba.hawaii.edu

Web Site: http://www.cbs.hawaii.edu/asiapac/

nhlp.asp

Area Served: HI

Participants develop leadership skills to utilize in their own Native Hawaiian communites. Incorporates a theme of leadership throughout its financial support, counseling, mentoring, and community service projects. Other small fellowships available for counselors of Native Hawaiian students majoring in education who are student teaching. Recipients take leadership roles in the community service aspects of their fellowship and may be expected to present their experiences at conferences or meetings. Awards approximately 30 scholarships to full-time undergraduate and graduate degree seeking students.

IDAHO

Bureau of Federal Programs

Idaho State Department of Education

P.O. Box 83720 650 W State St.

Boise, ID 83720 0027

Contact: Tom C. Farley, State Indian Education

Coordinator

Toll-free: 800-432-4601 Telephone: 208-332-6891

Fax: 208-334-2094

E-mail: tcfarley@sde.state.id.us Web Site: http://www.sde.state.id.us

Area Served: ID

Provides curriculum, assessment, and standardized materials to better prepare Idaho teachers to meet the multicultural educational needs of their students.

Publishes curriculum, assessment, and standardized materials.

Hosts quarterly Native American education meetings.

ILLINOIS

Illinois Association for Multilingual Multicultural Education (IAMME)

Illinois Association for Multilingual Multicultural Education (IAMME) 1588 Mt. Prospect Rd. Des Plaines, IL 60018 1805 Contact: Melissa Wolf, President

Telephone: 847-803-3112 E-mail: melissa@iamme.org Web Site: http://www.iamme.org

Area Served: IL

Professional association for educators involved with linguistically and culturally diverse students. Promotes educational services for Illinois students with an emphasis on multilingualism and multiculturalism, and disseminates related information and materials.

Holds seminars and conferences.

INDIANA

Indiana Department of Education

Language Minority & Migrant Programs Indiana Department of Education State House, Rm. 229

Indianapolis, IN 46204

Contact: Lauren Cronin, Education Consultant

Telephone: 317-232-0555 Fax: 317-233-1175 Area Served: IN

IOWA

Iowa Department of Education

Bureau of Administration, Instruction & School

Improvement

lowa Department of Education Grimes State Office Bldg. Des Moines, IA 50319 0146

Contact: Thomas A. Anderson, Consultant for

Equity in School Improvement Telephone: 515-281-8170

Fax: 515-281-7700

E-mail: tom.anderson@ed.state.ia.us

Area Served: 1A

Indian education is currently dealt with in the context of the lowa multicultural education requirement.

KENTUCKY

Kentucky Indian Manpower

Council of Three Rivers American Indian Center, Inc. NIA Center, Ste. 300 2900 W Broadway Louisville, KY 40211 1279 54

Contact: Annette Jones, Employment and

Training Counselor Toll-free: 800-595-8721 Telephone: 502-636-4214 Fax: 502-636-4214

E-mail: ajones@louky.org

Area Served: KY

Dedicated to reducing unemployment among American Indians. Services available include manpower training services, classroom training, on-the-job training, job placement, and counseling. Must be either an American Indian, Alaska Native, or a Native Hawaiian. Works to meet the service and cultural needs of the American Indian and other Native American people.

LOUISIANA

Louisiana Governor's Office of Indian Affairs

Louisiana Governor's Office of Indian Affairs

365 N Fourth St. P.O. Box 94004

Baton Rouge, LA 70804 Contact: Pat Arnold, Toll-free: 800-219-7556 Telephone: 225-219-7556

Fax: 225-219-7551

E-mail: pla@indianaffairs.com

Area Served: LA

Only agency within state government whose sole purpose is to address Indian issues. Administers programs relative to Louisiana Indians. Collects facts and statistics, and conducts special studies of conditions pertaining to the employment, health, education, financial status, recreation, social adjustment, or other conditions affecting the welfare of Indian people. Provides for mutual exchange of ideas and information on national, state, and local levels. Serves as the official negotiating agent of the state upon which the federally recognized tribes in Louisiana may serve notice of any request to negotiate state tribal compacts.

MAINE

Maine Department of Education

ESL and Bilingual Education Maine Department of Education #23 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333 0023

Contact: Barney Berube, Project Director

Telephone: 207-287-5984 Fax: 207-287-5876

E-mail: barney.berube@state.me.us

Web Site: http://www.state.me.us/education/esl

Area Served: ME

Supports American Indians by offering a comprehensive academic curriculum about Maine Indians required in all schools. Conducts a Wabanaki education conference for American Indian children on the state's four reservations and provides technical assistance.

Conducts ESL Conference annually in October.

MARYLAND

Maryland Commission on Indian Affairs

Maryland Commission on Indian Affairs Division of Historical and Cultural Programs Maryland Department of Housing and

Community Development

100 Community Pl.

Crownsville, MD 21032 2023

Contact: Dixie Henry, Administrator

Toll-free: 800-756-0119 Telephone: 410-514-7616

Fax: 410-987-4071

Web Site: http://www.dhch.state.md.us

Area Served: MD

Promotes a better understanding of both historical and contemporary Native American contributions to life in Maryland. Assists state, local, and private agencies responsible for addressing the educational, social, and economic needs of Native American communities in Maryland. Offers classroom materials, speakers bureau, resource directory, traveling exhibits, and oral history collections.

Publishes "MCIA Newsletter."

MICHIGAN

Section 41 Michigan Bilingual Education Program

Section 41 Michigan Bilingual Education

Program

Office of Field services

Michigan Department of Education

P.O. Box 30008

Lansing, MI 48909

Contact: Mazin Heiderson, Coordinator

Telephone: 517-373-6066

Fax: 517-335-2886

E-mail: heidersonm@state.mi.us Web Site: http://www.state.mi.us/mde

Area Served: MI

Educates children of limited English-speaking ability by using their primary language in a variable manner to promote English proficiency and subject area competence.

Conducts Michigan Association for Bilingual Education Annual Conference.

MINNESOTA

Minnesota Independent School Forum

Multicultural Education Resource Center Minnesota Independent School Forum 1200 Pioneer Bldg., 336 N. Robert St.

St. Paul, MN 55101 1506 Telephone: 651-297-6716

Fax: 651-297-6718 E-mail: info@misf.org

Web Site: http://www.misf.org/

Area Served: MN

Provides information to all K-12 nonpublic or private schools in the state and refers parents interested in private education to schools in their community. Provides research, diversity, technology, values-building, and leadership programs for teachers and students. Committed to the creation of a truly democratic, pluralistic society that embraces the diversity and interconnectedness of all people. Fosters the development of inclusive, equitable school communities that acknowledge, respect, and empower all members of our multicultural society.

MISSOURI

Southwest Missouri Indian Center

Southwest Missouri Indian Center

543 S Scenic

Springfield, MO 65802

Contact: Kenneth L. Estes, Executive Director

Telephone: 417-869-9550

Fax: 417-869-0922 Area Served: MO

Nonprofit community service organization for low income Native Americans. Serves 21 nations surrounding (and including) Springfield, Missouri. Assists in placing Indian children into adoptive families and foster care. Also works in the areas of

child abuse, alcohol and drug prevention, and domestic violence. Assists people in learning about Indian culture through cultural programs and speaking engagements presented to college groups, Scout meetings, schools, care centers, and other organizations wanting to gain knowledge of intercultural traditions.

MONTANA

Montana Advisory Council for Indian Education

Montana Advisory Council for Indian Education

Office of Public Instruction

P.O. Box 202501

Helena, MT 59620 2501

Contact: Harold Dusty Bull, Chairperson

Toll-free: 888-231-9393 Telephone: 406-444-3013

Web Site: http://www.metnet.state.mt.us

Area Served: MT

Advisory to the State Board of Public Education and the Office of Public Instruction on American Indian Educational Issues. Members consist of one member from each of the seven tribes in Montana, and one member from each of the following Indian organizations in the state: MABE, Impact Aid, Urban Indians, Higher Education, and Montana Wyoming Indian Education Association. Members with no vote include the Montana School Board Association, MEA/AFT, and the School Adminstration of Montana.

Bilingual Education

Montana Office of Public Instruction P.O. Box 202501

P.O. BOX 202501

Helena, MT 59620 2501

Contact: Lynn Hinch, Bilingual Specialist

Telephone: 406-444-3482

Fax: 406-444-3924

E-mail: lhinch@state.mt.gov

Area Served: MT

Division of Educational Opportunity and Equity

Montana Office of Public Instruction

P.O. Box 202501

Helena, MT 59620 2501

Contact: Denise Juneau, Indian Education

Specialist

Toll-free: 888-231-9393 Telephone: 406-444-3013

Fax: 406-444-1373

56

E-mail: djuneau@state.mt.us

Web Site: http://www.metnet.state.mt.us/

IndianEd/HTM Area Served: MT

Assures that Indian students and communities receive a quality and equitable education, and that all students leave the public education system with an understanding of the rich history and contemporary issues of Montana's Indians. Recognizes the distinct and unique cultural heritage of American Indians and is committed in its educational goals to the preservation of their cultural integrity. Dedicated to providing leadership, education, and information to school districts, students, parents, and educational agencies in the state of Montana.

Montana Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education

Office of Commissioner of Higher Education Montana University System

2500 Broadway

Helena, MT 59620 3101

Contact: Ellen Swaney, Director, American

Indian/Minority Achievement Telephone: 406-444-6570 Fax: 406-444-1469

E-mail: eswaney@oche.oche.montana.edu Web Site: http://www.montana.edu/wwwoche

Area Served: MT

Assists campuses in the development of action plans for Indian recruitment and retention. Provides cultural diversity training services, and coordinates with tribal governments and tribal colleges. Provides an advanced quality education for and about American Indians of Montana, the region, and the nation. Aims to increase the number of American Indian faculty.

Montana Office of the Governor

Coordinator of Indian Affairs Montana Office of the Governor Rm. 202, State Capitol Helena, MT 59620

Contact: Lari K. Ryan, Administrative Officer

Telephone: 406-444-3702 Fax: 406-444-1350 Area Served: MT

Montana Small Schools Alliance

Montana Small Schools Alliance

Ste. 516, Power Block 7 W Sixth Ave. Helena, MT 59601

Contact: Claudette Morton, Executive Director

Telephone: 406-447-4218 Fax: 406-447-4255

E-mail: cmorton@metnet.state.mt.us

Area Served: MT

Provides efficient and effective use of resources through partnerships with its member groups and the small schools of Montana to achieve a higher level of excellence in governance, management, teaching, learning, and teacher education for the benefit of Montana's children, public schools, and communities. Programs and services include research, technical assistance, and workshops; publishes reports and guides. Member groups include Montana Association of County School Superintendents; Montana School Boards Association; College of Education, Health and Human Development, Montana State University-Bozeman; and the Montana Rural Education Center at Western Montana College of the University of Montana.

Montana United Indian Association

Montana United Indian Association 207 N Broadway Billings, MT 59403

Contact: Mike Lafromboise, Executive Director

Toll-free: 800-654-9085

Web Site: http://www.muia.org/

An Indian resource and advocacy organization with five offices around the State of Montana: Billings, Butte, Great Falls, Helena, and Miles City. Program is geared to help off-reservation Native Americans find employment, training, and education. Goal is to develop employment skills through an educational process with financial and ongoing counseling support.

NEBRASKA

Nebraska Department of Education

Nebraska Department of Education 301 Centennial Mall S P.O. Box 94987 Lincoln, NE 68509

Contact: Nancy Rowch, Director

Telephone: 402-471-8127 Fax: 402-471-0117

E-mail: nrowch@nde.state.ne.us

Area Served: NE

Provides technical assistance to school districts with Native American students. Collects data on the number of Native American students and their educational status. Convenes an Advisory Council on Native Education that establishes goals and priorities to help guide NDE in its provision of services.

Holds annual summit on Native American education

Nebraska Indian Commission

Nebraska Indian Commission State Capitol, 6th Fl. E P.O. Box 94981

Lincoln, NE 69509 4981

Contact: Judi Morgan, Executive Director

Telephone: 402-471-3475 Fax: 402-471-3392

Web Site: http://www.indianaffairs.state.ne.us

Area Served: NE

Promotes legislation beneficial to Nebraska Indians. Coordinates and develops programs related to housing, economic development, and public safety. Works with agencies and officials, and provides the public with information about the Indian community.

Nevada Department of Education

Educational Equity Branch Nevada Department of Education 700 E Fifth St., Ste. 113 Carson City, NV 89701 5096

Contact: Leon Oo-sah-we, Indian Education

Consultant

Telephone: 775-687-9166

Fax: 775-687-9101

E-mail: loosahwe@nsn.k12.nv.us

Area Served: NV

NEW MEXICO

New Mexico Office of Indian Affairs

New Mexico Office of Indian Affairs La Villa Rivera Bldg. 228 E Palace Ave. Sante Fe, NM 87501

Contact: Terry Aguilar, Executive Director

Telephone: 505-827-6440

Fax: 505-827-6445

E-mail: terry.aguilar@state.nm.us

Area Served: NM

NEW YORK

New York State Association for Bilingual Education

New York State Association for Bilingual

Education

Bilingual/ESL Ctr. St. John's University Marillax Hall 304 8000 Utopia Pkwy.

Jamaica, NY 11439

Telephone: 718-279-0090 Fax: 718-279-8820

Web Site: http://www.nysabe.org

Area Served: NY

Advocates for the equitable education of language minority students. The organization's delegate assembly is partly comprised of language delegates, one of which represents Native American language instruction and issues.

New York State Education Department

Native American Education Unit New York State Education Department Rm. 374, EBA

Albany, NY 12234

Contact: Adrian Cooke, Acting Coordinator

Telephone: 518-474-0537 Fax: 518-474-3666 Area Served: NY

Participant in the Student Aid for Native Americans at Postsecondary Institutions in the State of New York, which provides funding for American Indian students from tribes located within the state. Eligible Native American students can receive grant awards up to \$1,750 per year for attending any approved, accredited postsecondary institution in New York state. Students also may receive student aid for less than four years of study and for part-time study.

NORTH CAROLINA

North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs

North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs 1317 Mail Service Ctr.

Raleigh, NC 27699 1317

Contact: Gregory A. Richardson, Executive

Director

Telephone: 919-733-5998 Fax: 919-733-1207

E-mail: greg.richardson@ncmail.net

Web Site: http://www.doa.state.nc.us/doa/cia/

indian.htm Area Served: NC

Studies, accumulates, and disseminates information on Indian affairs. Conducts public hearings on matters relating to Indian affairs and subpoena any information deemed necessary. Establishes appropriate procedures for legal recognition by the state and provides for official recognition. Instills a positive vision for American Indians through preserving cultural identity by promoting and advocating the rights, beliefs, and opportunities which impact quality of life. Provides Educational Talent Search program, financial aid workshops, and College Survival Skills Workshop.

North Carolina Native American Youth Organization (NCNAYO)

North Carolina Native American Youth Organization (NCNAYO) 1317 Mail Service Ctr. Raleigh, NC 27699 1317

Contact: Brett A. Locklear, Coordinator

Telephone: 919-733-5998 Fax: 919-733-1207 Area Served: NC

Comprised of 50 youth representing seven tribes in North Carolina. Its primary purpose is to promote a sense of unity and cultural development for Indian youth in the state, to provide a forum to voice concerns and issues that affect them and their communities, and to establish a setting conducive for the development of leadership activites and educational achievements and opportunities.

Tuscarora Center of Eastern North Carolina

The Tuscarora Center of Eastern North Carolina

106 Heverly Dr.

Emerald Isle, NC 28594 Contact: Teresa Morris, Telephone: 252-354-4187 E-mail: teresa@tuscaroras.com

Web Site: http://www.carolinadata.com/

teresa/2000/

Solicits public donations of clothing, goods, and services needed by Native people. Heightens awareness of environmental problems affecting

Native people and the need to include Native studies in the schools. Encourages native youth to become visible role models. Offers summer Indigenous arts camp for youth and "Ethnoscience" studies for teachers and adults.

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Department of Public Instruction

Bilingual Education

North Dakota Department of Public Instruction 600 E Boulevard Ave., Dept. 201

Bismarck, ND 58505 0440

Contact: Mari Rasmussen, Assistant Director

Telephone: 701-328-2958 Fax: 701-328-4770

E-mail: mrasmus@mail.dpi.state.nd.us

Web Site:

http://www.dpi.state.nd.us/bilingul/index.shtm

Area Served: ND

Offers programs to encourage cultural and linguistic diversity, and sponsors bilingual education projects and grants. Provides teacher training, technical assistance, and materials. Supplies information on North Dakota limited English proficiency programs and related pending federal legislation.

North Dakota Department of Public Instruction

Native American Education

North Dakota Department of Public Instruction

600 E Boulevard Ave., Dept. 201

Bismarck, ND 58505

Contact: Cheryl Kulas, Director

Telephone: 701-328-2250

Fax: 701-328-4770

E-mail: ckulas@mail.dpi.state.nd.us

Web Site: http://www.dpi.state.nd.us/natived/

index.shtm Area Served: ND

Offers school support programs, Native American funding links, grant information, cultural and linguistic programs, and curriculum development programs. Provides information on Native American education legislation, Native American Web sites, and activities of the North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission. Conducts Title IX Indian Education Act formula grant technical assistance workshops.

OHIO

North American Indian Cultural Center, Inc.

North American Indian Cultural Center, Inc.

1062 Triplett Blvd. Akron, Oh 44306

Contact: V. Lanna Samaniego, Executive

Director

Telephone: 330-724-1280 Fax: 330-724-9298 E-mail: NAICC2@aol.com

Web Site: http://members.aol.com/NAICC2/

NAICC.html

A nonprofit social service center, it serves as a focal point for American Indian/Native Americans and non-Indians in Ohio, offering the necessities of life in an urban environment. Offers programs such as Indian Job Training Partnership Act, State Native HIV/AIDS Prevention Education, Food Pantry Program, Mentor Program, Native Youth Awareness, and the Speakers' Bureau.

OKLAHOMA

American Indian Research and Development, Inc.

American Indian Research and Development,

Inc.

2233 W Lindsay, Ste. 100 Norman, OK 73069 Telephone: 405-364-0656 Fax: 405-364-5464

E-mail: airdsat@ionet.net

Web Site: http://www.crosswinds.net/~aird/ Private Indian-owned (women majority) nonprofit organization. Provides educational services and technical assistance to local educational agencies, state educational agencies, institutions of higher education, and tribes to improve the quality of education to Indian learners. Serves as a liaison and advocate for Indian education on the local, state, national, and tribal levels in the state of Oklahoma and across the nation.

OREGON

Mother Earth's Children

Mother Earth's Children 9140 Cape Arago Hwy. Coos Bay, OR 97420 9645 Telephone: 541-888-4584

Area Served: OR

Nonprofit corporation that promotes Indian educational, economic, and social improvements through the development of innovative programs. Offers the Ann C. Thornton Memorial Fund Scholarship to four Alaska Native or American Indian students who live in Oregon. Maintains the American Indian Repertory Theater and serves as fiscal agent for the South Coast Indian Education Summer Camp.

Publishes quarterly "Indian Education Newsletter" and curriculum guides

SOUTH CAROLINA

South Carolina State Department of Education

Multicultural/Equity Issues
South Carolina State Department of Education

1429 Senate St., Rm. 801G

801 Rutledge Bldg. Columbia, SC 29201

Contact: Thomas E. Rivers, Jr., Education

Associate

Telephone: 803-734-8356

Fax: 803-734-6142

E-mail: trivers@sde.state.sc.us

Web Site: http://www.myscschools.com

Area Served: SC

SOUTH DAKOTA

American Indian Culture Research Center

American Indian Culture Research Center

P.O. Box 98

Marvin, SD 57251 0098 Telephone: 605-398-9200

Fax: 605-398-9201

E-mail: indian@bluecloud.org

Web Site: http://www.bluecloud.org/dakota.html

Area Served: SD

Supports Indian leaders and educators in their ambitions for rebuilding the Indian community. Instructs the non-Indian public in the culture and philosophy of the Indian. By associating with local colleges, it gives undergraduate credit for structured courses in Indian studies. Acts as an advisor to schools and community groups on all the reservations.

Girl Scouts of Black Hills

Girl Scouts of Black Hills

P.O. Box 1846

Rapid City, SD 57709

Contact: Patricia Quyle, Executive Director

Toll-free: 800-658-3391 Telephone: 605-343-6355

Fax: 605-343-9508

E-mail: gsbhc@rapidnet.com

Area Served: SD

Provides special programs for girls of Native American heritage to help them explore their culture. Activities sponsored on reservations include Girl Scout Whiz Kids, Daisy Head Start to Literacy, and Girl Scouting in the School Day.

Native Cradle Learning Project

Native Cradle Learning Project P.O. Box 724

Martin, SD 57551

Contact: Jean Bedell Bailey, Native Education

Specialist, Researcher, and Educator

Telephone: 605-685-6057 E-mail: pijiki@hotmail.com

Web Site: http://www.jbedellbailey.go.

coolebiz.com Area Served: SD

Conducts research on educational curricula that reinforce traditional Native practices and nurture Native self-identities. Members do consulting, conduct educational research (including survey research), and offer workshops and training. Focus on education that balances contemporary education with Native learning techniques and classes.

South Dakota Department of Education and Cultural Affairs

Comprehensive Services for Children &

Families

South Dakota Department of Education and

Cultural Affairs 700 Governors Dr. Pierre, SD 57501 2291 Telephone: 605-773-3134

Fax: 605-773-6139

Web Site: http://www.state.sd.us/deca

Area Served: SD

State government organization relating to K-12 education issues.

TENNESSEE

Tennessee Commission on Indian Affairs

Tennessee Commission on Indian Affairs

7th Fl., L&C Towers/Annex Nashville, TN 37243 0439 Contact: Toye Heape, Director Telephone: 615-532-0745

Fax: 615-532-0046

E-mail: theape@mail.state.tn.us

Web Site: http://www.state.tn.us/environment/

cia

Area Served: TN

Provides aid and technical assistance to
Tennessee's Native American population for social
and economic development, and promotes
recognition of the right of Indians to pursue cultural
and religious traditions considered by them to be
sacred and meaningful. Meets quarterly and is
comprised of five members appointed by the
Governor.

Tennessee State Department of Education

Bilingual/ESL Education

Tennessee State Department of Education

5th Fl., Andrew Johnson Tower 710 James Robertson Pkwy. Nashville, TN 37243 0379

Contact: Carol Irwin, ESL Consultant

Telephone: 615-532-6245 Fax: 615-532-8536

E-mail: cirwin2@mail.state.tn.us

Area Served: TN

TEXAS

Texas Association for Bilingual Education

Texas Association for Bilingual Education 6323 Sovereign Dr., Ste. 178

San Antonio, TX 78229

Contact: Jose Hernandez, President

Toll-free: 800-822-3930 Telephone: 210-979-6390 Fax: 210-979-6485 E-mail: txtabe@aol.com

Web Site: http://www.tabe.org

Area Served: TX

State advocacy organization for the rights of language minority children. Comprised of local school district and university student affiliated groups representing all major geographical regions

of Texas. Members include parents, early childhood education personnel, elementary and secondary school teachers and administrators, college students, professors, and university researchers. Affiliated with the National Association for Bilingual Education.

Publishes a newsletter and journal.

WASHINGTON

Friends of American Indians in Education

Friends of American Indians in Education P.O. Box 45554

Seattle, WA 98145

Contact: Augustine McCaffery, President,

Board of Directors Telephone: 206-527-9458

Fax: 206-685-3234

E-mail: amccaf@u.washington.edu

Area Served: WA

Nonprofit, charitable, education organization having as its primary purpose to raise funds for the Washington State American Indian Endowed Scholarship Program. Scholarships are available on a competitive basis to undergraduate, graduate, and professional students who attend public or private institutions in Washington state and who are residents of the state.

Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission

Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission 6730 Martin Way, E

Olympia, WA 98516 5540

Contact: Jim Anderson, Executive Director

Telephone: 360-438-1180 Fax: 360-753-8659

E-mail: contact@nwifc.wa.gov

Web Site: http://www.nwifc.wa.gov/ Area Served: WA

Committed to restoring and protecting the great
Northwest salmon and other marine resources in
Washington. Co-manages the resource with the state

and, in the process, participates fully in harvest management, enhancement, and habitat protection. Educating the public is a vital part of this effort. Involved in activities ranging from news releases to

school curriculum.

Publishes quarterly newsletter, publications, and documentaries about tribal fisheries management, which are available to schools and community groups.

South Puget Intertribal Planning Agency (SPIPA)

South Puget Intertribal Planning Agency (SPIPA)

SE 2750 Old Olympic Hwy.

Shelton, WA 98584

Contact: Amadeo T. Tiam, Executive Director

Telephone: 360-426-3990 Fax: 360/427-8003 Area Served: WA

Provides planning, technical assistance and direct services to each tribe's administration as well as to individual American Indians residing within the SPIPA service area. Offers Welfare-to-Work and Native Employment Works programs to assure that needy families with children obtain the education, training, and employment necessary to avoid long-term welfare dependency. Clients may receive the following services: education, including remedial education; job readiness counseling; job skills training; job placement and development; job search assistance; and support services.

Washington State Governor's Office of Indian Affairs

Governor's Office of Indian Affairs

531 15th Ave., S.E.

Olympia, WA 98504 0909

Contact: Kimberly Craven, Executive Director

Telephone: 360-753-2411 Fax: 360-586-3653

E-mail: goia@goia.wa.gov

Web Site: http://www.goia.wa.gov

Area Served: WA

Acts as a liaison between tribal, local, state, and federal governments. Assists the governor in developing legislation and public policies, and serves as advisor to agencies and constituents. Conducts state-tribal relations training for agency personnel who work with Indian people and Tribes.

Western Washington Native American Education Consortium

Western Washington Native American Education Consortium 5802 20th St., E

Tacoma, WA 98424

Contact: Phyllis Covington, Chairperson & Indian Education Program Coordinator

Telephone: 253-922-6697

Fax: 253-922-3382

E-mail: pcovington@mail.fife.k12.wa.us

Area Served: WA

Membership composed of Native American educational programs in school districts throughout Western Washington, including individuals and organizations who support the goals of Indian education. Supports local educational agencies in their efforts to reform elementary and secondary school programs. Also ensures that such programs serving Native American students are based on challenging state content and state student performance standards used for all students and are designed to assist Native American students to meet those standards.

WEST VIRGINIA

Appalachian American Indians of West Virginia, Inc.

Appalachian American Indians of West Virginia,

Inc

HC 81, Box 280D Lewisburg, WV 24901

Contact: Larry Brown, Tribal Officer

Telephone: 304-645-1042

E-mail: tworivers40@hotmail.com Web Site: http://www.AAIWV.org

Area Served: WV

A state-recognized, intertribal tribe. Members of the tribe provide educational programs about Native American culture in West Virginia to schools and community groups.

WISCONSIN

Wisconsin Indian Education Association

Wisconsin Indian Education Association

P.O. Box 397 Keshena, WI 54135 Contact: Virginia Nuske, Telephone: 715-799-5110

Fax: 715-799-1364 E-mail: vnuske@itol.com

Web Site: http://www.wiea.org/

Area Served: WI

Advocates for Indian people in all aspects of education, such as necessary legislation when appropriate, and addresses issues at the tribal, local, state, and national levels. Receives, updates, and disseminates information on educational programs and concerns affecting Indian people in the state, and aids in the implementation of such programs. Establishes a communications network among organizations involved in Indian education, and assists in developing training/workshops for those who work with Indian people. Maintains educational scholarships, awards, and grants for American Indian students residing in Wisconsin.

Develops and maintains the Wisconsin Indian Education Resource Directory.

	}	Section 5		
Colleges and Universit			s, Native Lang for Native Stı	tion
		_		

Section 5

Colleges and Universities Offering Native Studies, Native Language Instruction, Supportive Services, or Scholarships for Native Students

ALASKA

ALASKA PACIFIC UNIVERSITY (APU) Rural Alaska Native Adult (RANA) Program

Alaska Pacific University (APU) 4101 University Dr. Anchorage, AK 99508

Contact: Theresa John, Director, Assistant

Professor of Liberal Studies T-elephone: 907-564-8222 E-mail: rana@alaskapacific.edu Web Site: http://rana.alaskapacific.edu

Area Served: AK

An Internet-based, distance education program. Aims to provide rural Alaska Natives the opportunity to earn professional certificates, associate of arts degrees, and bachelor of arts degrees in business and education without leaving their home communities. Offers institutional scholarships to qualified students. Provides counseling and advising for students and prospective students, as well as face-to-face visits during their studies.

UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA, ANCHORAGE Native Student Services

University of Alaska, Anchorage 3211 Providence Dr., BEB 108

Anchorage, AK 99508

Contact: Barbara Fleek, Director Telephone: 907-786-4000

Fax: 907-786-4009

E-mail: anbjf@uaa.alaska.edu

Web Site: http://www.uaa.alaska.edu/nss/
Improves the retention and success of Alaska
Native and American Indian students in
achieving their educational goals. Promotes and
fosters scholastic excellence; supports Native
students' sense of identity, belonging,
empowerment, and leadership; and facilitates an
affirming academic and cultural climate for
Native Students at UAA. Native Corporation
Scholarships, Native Education Foundation
Scholarships, and Chancellors Scholarships
available. Support services for Native students
include: AISES, Native Students Center, Native

computer lab, and Native Student Council.

Offers language instruction in Aleut and Tup'ik.

UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA, FAIRBANKS

University of Alaska, Fairbanks

P.O. Box 757480 Fairbanks, AK 99775

Contact: JoAnn Ducharme, Director, Rural

Student Services

Telephone: 907-474-7500 E-mail: fyrss@uaf.edu Web Site: http://www.uaf.edu/

A land, sea, and space grant university and international research center. Advances and disseminates knowledge through creative teaching, research, and public service with an emphasis on Alaska, the North and their diverse peoples. Offers B.A.'s, A.A.S, and certificates in various Native studies programs. Alaskan Indian languages and Eskimo language instruction courses available. BIA grants, Native Corporation Scholarships, and numerous private scholarships and grants available for Native students. Also offers the Rural Student Services (advising) Center.

UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA, SOUTHEAST JUNEAU

Professional Education Center

University of Alaska, Southeast Juneau 1108 F St.

Juneau, AK 99801

Contact: Rhonda Hickok, Telephone: 907-465-8757

Fax: 907-465-2166

E-mail: rhonda.hickok@uas.alaska.edu
Web Site: http://www.uas.alaska.edu/
Beginning and intermediate Tlingit language
instruction available. "Preparing Indigenous
Teachers for Alaskan Schools" scholarship
available for Native students. Special support
services for Native students include: Wooch'een
Native Rural Student Center, the presence of
Native Student Advisor, and Native Community
Advisor (dorm assistant).

ARIZONA

AMERICAN INDIAN COLLEGE OF THE ASSEMBLIES OF GOD, INC.

American Indian College of the Assemblies of

God. Inc.

10020 N Fifteen Ave. Phoenix, AZ 85021

Contact: Joseph J. Saggio, Academic Dean

Toll-free: 800-933-3828 Telephone: 602-944-3335 Fax: 602-943-8299

E-mail: jsaggio@aicag.edu Web Site: http://www.aicag.edu

The only regionally accredited Pentecostal Bible college for American Indians and Alaska Natives in the United States. Offers a BA in Christian ministry, a BA in elementary education, and an

AA in business. Its Learning Resource Development program provides foundational instruction for students needing remedial help in reading, writing, and mathematics. Cooperates fully with Title IV funding and has several scholarships for qualified Native American students.

ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY Indian Legal Program

College of Law

Arizona State University

P.O. Box 877906

Tempe, AZ 85287 7906

Contact: Siera Taketchera Russell, Director

Telephone: 602-965-6204

Web Site: http://www.asu.edu/law/

Provides an in-depth foundation of knowledge in the following areas: Native American legal systems; the doctrine, theory and policy of federal Indian Law; and the complex issues confronting Indian nations and individuals. Encourages legal scholarship and provides public service to tribal governments. Makes available mentoring and social services to ensure the academic success of Native American students in all disciplines.

Hosts biannual national conferences.

American Indian Institute

Arizona State University Engineering Annex Bldg.

P.O. Box 879909 Tempe, AZ 85287 9909

Contact: Cal Seciwa, Director

Telephone: 602-965-8044

Fax: 602-965-7201

E-mail: AMERIND@MAINEX1.ASU.EDU Web Site: http://aii.asu.edu/home.html Coordinates and complements student

recruitment and retention services for American Indians at Arizona State University. Serves as an information and resource center for students

new to this university.

American Indian Students United for Nursing Project (ASUN)

College of Nursing Arizona State University

Sta. 2602

Tempe, AZ 85287 2602 Telephone: 602-965-0123 Fax: 480-965-0212

E-mail: nursingweb@asu.edu

Web Site: http://www.asu.edu/nursing/asun/ Helps Native American students successfully complete their studies in nursing with the goal of increasing the number of both Native American nurses and those nurses providing care to Native Americans. Augments curriculum material and supports clinical opportunities that focus on Native American health issues. Postgraduate work with the Indian Health Service is required

of all recipients.

Center for Indian Education

College of Education Arizona State University

P.O. Box 871311

Tempe, AZ 85287 1311

Contact: Octaviana V. Trujillo, Ph.D., Director

Telephone: 480-965-6292 Fax: 480-965-8115 E-mail: yaqui@asu.edu

Web Site: http://www.asu.edu/educ/cie/ Promotes studies in American Indian and Alaska Native policy to increase the quality of scholarship, professional education training, and tribal capacity. Fosters relations between Arizona State University and sovereign tribes; and supports training and technical assistance for community programs, bringing scholars and

major research and resource center for Indian education and related fields.

Publishes internationally "Journal of American Indian Education"

tribal community members together. Serves as a

Sponsors conferences.

COCONINO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Coconino County Community College 3000 N 4th St., Ste. 25

Flagstaff, AZ 86004

Contact: Pete Yanka, Assistant Director for

Student Development Telephone: 520-526-1222 E-mail: pyanka@coco.cc.az.us

Stepping stone towards attendance at Northern Arizona University (NAU), working closely with its Native American programs. Offers language

instruction courses in beginning and

intermediate Navajo.

DINÉ COLLEGE

Center for Diné Teacher Education

Diné College P.O. Box 407 Tsaile, AZ 86556

Contact: Daniel J. McLaughlin, Interim Director

Telephone: 928-724-6703 Fax: 928-724-3327

E-mail: djm@crystal.ncc.cc.nm.us Web Site: http://cdte.ncc.cc.nm.us/

Serves Navajo schools and communities by preparing teachers who promote linguistically and culturally appropriate schooling for Navajo learners. Programs offered include A.A. in Elementary Education, A.A. in Early Childhood Education, B.A. in Elementary Education, M.Ed. in Curriculum and Instruction, and the Center for Diné Teacher Education. Also houses the Diné College TechShare Project that posts multimedia materials, mainly in Navajo, on the Internet.

NORTHERN ARIZONA UNIVERSITY

Native American Student Services

Northern Arizona University University Union, Rm. 236

P.O. Box 5653

Flagstaff, AZ 86011 5653

Contact: Joshua K. Mihesuah, Director

Telephone: 520-523-8086

Fax: 520-523-8855

E-mail: Joshua.Mihesuah@nau.edu Web Site: http://jan.ucc.nau.edu/nass

Establishes a resource network representing the academic colleges and key service areas to increase persistence and graduation rates for Native American students. Provides culturally

sensitive support services to all Native American and Alaska Native students to help them make the sometimes difficult transition from home to university.

Education Technology Improvement Plan Project (ETIP)

Center for Excellence in Education

Northern Arizona University

P.O. Box 6025 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Larry Nicole Snow, Arizona Project

Director

Toll-free: 800-522-2283 Telephone: 520-523-2560 Fax: 520-523-6395

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/~ifwfd/ETIP.htm

Composed of 98 member schools from

throughout the Navajo Nation and nine project partners. Conducts training sessions at four locations in New Mexico and Arizona to equip administrators, teachers, and parents to return to their schools as trainers in the latest methods of standards-based instruction.

American Indian Science and Engineering Society (AISES)

Northern Arizona University

Engineering and Technology, Bldg. 69, Rm. 243

P.O. Box 15600 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Elizabeth Bahe, Advisor

Telephone: 928-523-2110

Fax: 928-523-8951

E-mail: elizabeth.bahe@nau.edu

Supports the success of Native American

students in their chosen fields.

American Indian Quarterly

Northern Arizona University

Southwest Forest Science Complex, Bldg. 82,

Rm. 132 P.O. Box 15020 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Devon Mihesuah, Professor

Telephone: 928-523-5159 Fax: 928-523-8010

E-mail: aiquarterly@nau.edu

Web Site:

http://jan.ucc.nau.edu/~mihesuah/American Indi

an Quarterly.html

Editor of the American Indian Quarterly, a referenced international interdisciplinary journal of the histories, anthropologies, religions,

literatures, and arts of Native North America. (See Section 3 for publisher and subscription information.)

Applied Indigenous Studies

Northern Arizona University

School of Forestry, Bldg. 82, Rm. 126

P.O. Box 15018 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Ronald L. Trosper, Interim Chair

Telephone: 928-523-6653/1378

Fax: 928-523-1080

E-mail: Ronald.Trosper@nau.edu

Addresses the needs of Native Americans who plan to return home upon graduation and contribute to their community. Prepares undergraduates for careers serving American Indian communities in areas such as economic development, policy and administration, and environmental sciences.

Associated Students for Women's Issues

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 202

P.O. Box 6003 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Anika Olson-Yanka, Advisor

Telephone: 928-523-6946/5181

Fax: 928-523-6946

E-mail: Anika.Olson@nau.edu

Addresses women's issues by providing a forum for student concerns and develops student

leadership.

BF STAR Scholars Program

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 235

P.O. Box 5677 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Hilda Ladner, Interim Director

Telephone: 928-523-2549/5656

Fax: 928-523-9444

E-mail: Hilda.Ladner@nau.edu

Fifteen BF STAR (Successful Transition and Academic Readiness) scholars provide support to their STAR peers, maintaining contact and a community environment among program

participants.

Capacity Building for American Indians Project

Northern Arizona University

Institute for Human Development, Bldg. 27A

P.O. Box 5630 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Priscilla Lansing Sanderson, Director

Telephone: 928-523-4791 Fax: 928-523-9128

E-mail: Priscilla.Sanderson@nau.edu

Web Site: http://

www.nau.edu/~ihd/airrtc/indexhtml

Enhances the capacity building and increases the participation of American Indians to compete successfully for discretionary grants under Title I through VIII of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.

Career Services Multicultural Leadership Program

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 142

P.O. Box 4097

Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Tessie Moate, Associate Director

Telephone: 928-523-6045

Fax: 928-523-1117

E-mail: Tessie.Moate@nau.edu

Provides leadership training to ethnically diverse students from a wide variety of academic majors.

Commission of Ethnic Diversity

Northern Arizona University Babbitt Administration, Bldg. 51

P.O. Box 4135 Flagstaff, AZ 86011 Contact: Sara Aleman,

Telephone: 928-523-8686/2230

Fax: 928-523-0708

E-mail: ced-p@jan.ucc.nau.edu

Works to create an environment and recruitment of diverse faculty, staff, and students. Educates the campus community on cultural issues, serves as a role model for the appreciation of diversity, and encourages diversity in the curriculum.

Cultural Diversity in Education

Northern Arizona University

Eastburn Education Center, Bldg. 27, Rm. 13

P.O. Box 5774 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

riagstarr, AZ 60011

Contact: Virginia Rojas, Administrative

Assistant

Telephone: 928-523-9195

Fax: 928-523-1929

Maintains a center of research, especially a database listing new culturally diverse students and staff, in order to understand retention patterns and issues.

Educational Support Programs

Northern Arizona University

68

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 240

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Ray Rodriquez, Director

Telephone: 928-523-1100 Fax: 928-523-9466

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/edsup

Provides programs that enhance the academic experience of junior high, high school, and college students, and other adults who would otherwise have difficulty achieving postsecondary education and training.

NORTHERN ARIZONA UNIVERSITY (Continued)

Educational Talent Search Program

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 238C

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Elsie Watchman Brown, Project

Director

Telephone: 928-523-9152 Fax: 928-523-9466

E-mail: Elsie.Watchman-Brown@nau.edu
Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/edsup/ETS
Provides services that enhance the academic
experience of junior high, high school, and
college students, and other adult students who
would otherwise have difficulty achieving
postsecondary education and training.

Four-Corners Upward Bound Math and Science Program

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 265

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Terry Hubbard, Project Director

Telephone: 928-523-1315 Fax: 928-523-9466

E-mail: Terry.Hubbard@nau.edu

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/edsup/UBMS

Works to increase the likelihood that

low-income/first-generation high school students will obtain baccalaureate degrees in the field of

mathematics and science.

Hopi Senom Club

Northern Arizona University University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 235 P.O. Box 5677 Flagstaff, AZ 86011 Contact: Laurel Sekakuku, Advisor

Telephone: 928-523-8086

Fax: 928-523-8855

E-mail: Laurel.Sekakuku@nau.edu

Provides varied support to its members while promoting the traditional Hopi culture.

Institute for Future Work Force Development

Northern Arizona University

Riles Bldg. 15, 2nd Fl.

P.O. Box 6025

Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Jerry Cox,

Telephone: 928-523-2190

Fax: 928-523-6395

E-mail: Jerry.Cox@nau.edu

Provides for the advancement of today and tomorrow's work force through technology, training, education, and community service.

Institute for Native Americans

Northern Arizona University

Blome Bldg. 2, Rm. 103

P.O. Box 4085

Flagstaff, AZ 86011v

Contact: Laurence Gishey, Director

Telephone: 928-523-9557

Fax: 928-523-7740

E-mail: Laurence.Gishey@nau.edu Web Site: http://www4.nau.edu/ina

Enhances the visibility and standing of Native American programs, both academic and service

oriented, by serving as a catalyst and

coordinating body for NAU.

International Indigenous Peoples Resource Center

Northern Arizona University

Anthropology Bldg. 60, Rm. 220

P.O. Box 16200

Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Robert Trotter,

Telephone: 928-523-4521

Fax: 928-523-1075

E-mail: robert.trotter@nau.edu

Provides support with cooperative universities in Australia and New Zealand, and among Native

Hawaiian and Native American groups.

Learning Assistance Centers

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 254

P.O. Box 6035

Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Gwen Crites, Assistant Director ESP

Telephone: 928-523-5524 Fax: 928-523-0359

E-mail: Gwen.Crites@nau.edu Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/lac

Provides academic support through two resource centers for NAU students who wish to acquire

the problem-solving skills, academic

background, learning strategies, and confidence necessary for independent learning. Free

program to all NAU students.

MA in TESL (Teaching English as a Second Language)

Northern Arizona University

Liberal Arts Bldg. P.O. Box 6032 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: MA/TESL advisors, English

Department

Telephone: 928-523-4911 Fax: 928-523-7074

E-mail: MA-TESL.eng@nau.edu
Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/~english
Provides preparation for teaching English as a
second language and offers concentrations in
language teaching or applied linguistics.
Requires passage of a comprehensive exam or
(for certified teachers only) completion of a
research project.

Minority Biomedical Research Support Program

Northern Arizona University

Biological Sciences, Bldg. 21, Rm. 423

P.O. Box 5640 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Kissa Nishikawa, Director

Telephone: 928-523-8102 Fax: 928-523-7500

E-mail: Kissa.Nishikawa@nau.edu
Works to increase the number of Native
American professionals in the field of
biomedical research by providing opportunities
for Native American undergraduate and graduate
students to conduct biomedical research with
NAU faculty.

Minority Student Development Program

Northern Arizona University

Biological Sciences, Bldg. 21, Rm. 423

P.O. Box 5640 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Kiisa Nishikawa, Director

Telephone: 928-523-8102 (Biles), 928-523-9497

(Nishikawa)

Fax: 928-523-7500

E-mail: Celeste.Biles@nau.edu, Kiisa.Nishikawa@nau.edu

Web Site: http://www2.nau.edu/msd

Strives to increase the academic performance,

retention, and graduation rates of

underrepresented minority students, who are or could become interested in careers in biomedical professions. Funded by the National Institute of Health (NIH). Goal is to increase rates of acceptance into the completion of postgraduate degree programs in biomedical sciences at NAU as well as at other institutions across the nation.

Multicultural Student Center

Northern Arizona University University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 235

P.O. Box 5677 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Hilda Ladner, Interim Director

Telephone: 928-523-2549/5656

Fax: 928-523-9444

E-mail: Hilda.Ladner@nau.edu Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/mcsc

Works to graduate first generation, low income, and historically underrepresented students so they may become leaders who enrich a dynamic and diverse society. Also provides emergency funds, including a book loan, Native American Emergency Loan, and the Hispanic Loan Fund.

NASA/Space Grant (American Indian Mobile Educational Resource-AIMER)

Northern Arizona University

Physical Sciences, Bldg. 19, Rm. 200

P.O. Box 6010 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: David Cole, Assistant Director

Telephone: 928-523-8014 Fax: 928-523-8688

E-mail: spacegrant@nau.edu

AIMER utilizes a mobile computer laboratory to teach physics, astronomy, and engineering to Native American students at reservation schools, where it is also used for telescope shows and other astronomy-related presentations to community groups.

Native American Alumni Association (NAAA)

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 236A

P.O. Box 5653 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Sharon Doctor, Coordinator

Telephone: 928-523-6960/6229 Fax: 928-523-8855/7740

E-mail: Sharon.Doctor@nau.edu;

Kathleen.Frank@nau.edu

70

Provides a forum for all Native American alumni to interact with each other and to stay in touch with NAU through participation in NAAA sponsored events and all university activities.

NORTHERN ARIZONA UNIVERSITY (Continued)

Native American Business Organization

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 236A

P.O. Box 5653 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Sharon Doctor, Advisor

Telephone: 928-523-8086

Fax: 928-523-8855

E-mail: Sharon.Doctor@nau.edu

Combines business projects with Native

American views to enhance students' learning experiences and provides activities that promote teamwork and cultural communication and

awareness.

Native American Engineering Program

Northern Arizona University

Engineering and Technology, Bldg. 69, Rm. 153

P.O. Box 15600 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Elizabeth Bahe, Director

Telephone: 928-523-2110

Fax: 928-523-2300

E-mail: Elizabeth.Bahe@nau.edu

Provides academic and support services to Native American students pursuing engineering

degrees.

Native American Forestry Program

Northern Arizona University

Southwest Forest Science Complex, Bldg. 82,

Rm. 126 P.O. Box 15018

Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Ronald L. Trosper, Interim Chair

Telephone: 928-523-6653/1378

Fax: 928-523-1080

E-mail: Ronald.Trosper@nau.edu

Offers Native American students a premier forestry program in conjunction with a strong support system. Helps students achieve their academic goals by providing support services

and referrals for students and their families.

Native American Recruitment Team (NART)

Northern Arizona University North Union, Bldg. 3, Rm. 108

P.O. Box 4084 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Roberta Tohannie, Program

Coordinator

Telephone: 928-523-5511/9349

Fax: 928-523-0226

E-mail: Roberta.Tohannie@nau.edu

Visits Arizona high schools and community colleges located near or on the reservations. Assists and supports Native American and other underrepresented groups in applying for admissions, financial aid, housing, and the

STAR (Successful Transition and Readiness) Program.

Native American Student Services

Northern Arizona University North Union, Bldg. 3, Rm. 236

P.O. Box 5650 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Joshua K. Mihesuah, Director

Telephone: 928-523-8086

Fax: 928-523-8855

E-mail: http://www2.nau.edu/nass Web Site: Joshua.Mihesuah@nau.edu

Provides culturally-sensitive services that assist Native American and Alaskan Native students in achieving academic and personal success.

Native Americans United

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 235

P.O. Box 5677 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Shane Pablo, Advisor

Telephone: 928-523-1193

Fax: 928-523-0359

E-mail: Shane.Pablo@nau.edu

Works to promote knowledge, appreciation, pride, and preservation of the Native American

culture and heritage; to encourage the

membership to demonstrate achievement and excellence in education; and to conduct fundraising efforts to finance club activities and

Navajo-Hopi School Administrator Fellows (NHSAF)

Northern Arizona University Center for Excellence in Education P.O. Box 5774 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Joseph Martin, Associate Professor

Telephone: 928-523-8791 Fax: 928-523-8750

E-mail: Joesph.Martin@nau.edu or

Gaetano.Senese@nau.edu

Addresses the need for qualified Navajo and Hopi principals for K-12 schools. Uses mentorship, cultural inclusion, problem-based learning, collaboration, and clinical learning administrative training approaches.

Navajo Nation Archaeology Department, NAU Branch

Northern Arizona University

Bilby Research Center, Bldg. 52, Rm. 52

P.O. Box 6013 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Miranda Warburton, Director

Telephone: 928-523-9151 Fax: 928-523-7290

E-mail: Miranda.Warburton@nau.edu
Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/~nnad-p/
Provides archaeological services to residents of
the western portion of the Navajo reservation
and archaeological training to Navajo and other
Native American graduate and undergraduate
anthropology students.

Nizhoni Academy

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 259

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Barry Eagle, Project Director Telephone: 928-523-6982 or 800-628-4494

Fax: 928-523-9466

E-mail: Barry.Eagle@nau.edu or

nizhoni@nau.edu

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/edsup/nz
Encourages students to stretch beyond their high
school years and become lifelong learners.

Provides students with the tools necessary for passage into higher education.

Northern Arizona University Summer EPA Intern Program

Northern Arizona University

P.O. Box 15004 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Alexis Baca-Spry, Telephone: 928-523-8871 Fax: 928-523-1266 E-mail: alexis.baca-spry@nau.edu Web Site: http://www.cet.nau.edu/itep

Strives to increase the future pool of qualified Native Americans seeking environmental jobs by helping students secure full-time positions. Also

helps to augment the staffs of current government agencies working to address important environmental protection issues.

Office of Academic Services, College of Business Administration

Northern Arizona University

College of Business Administration, Bldg. 70

P.O. Box 15066 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Sharon Culotta, Program Coordinator

Telephone: 928-523-4111 Fax: 928-523-6559

E-mail: Sharon.Culotta@nau.edu
The College of Business awards several
scholarships specifically designated for Native
Americans.

Ph.D. In Applied Linguistics

Northern Arizona University Liberal Arts Bldg. 18, Rm. 318

P.O. Box 6032 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Mary McGroarty,

Telephone: 928-523-6273 or 928-523-6156

Fax: 928-523-7074

E-mail: phd.appling@nau.edu

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/~english

This Ph.D. program, requiring a minimum of 81 credit hours, prepares researchers, scholars, and teacher trainers in the areas of the learning and teaching of languages, the analysis of language, and the design of language-related research. Recently, studies have been related to the language proficiency profiles, writing skills, and reading development of Native American

STAR (Successful Transition and Academic Readiness) Program

Northern Arizona University University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 235

students in Arizona schools.

P.O. Box 5677

Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Hilda Ladner, Interim Director

Telephone: 928-523-2549

Fax: 928-523-9444

E-mail: Hilda.Ladner@nau.edu Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/mcsc Prepares program participants for academic success and a positive transition from high school to college.

NORTHERN ARIZONA UNIVERSITY (Continued)

Student Summer Internship Program

Northern Arizona University Dubois Center, Bldg. 64, Rm. 32

P.O. Box 15004 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Alexis Baca, Summer Intern Specialist

Telephone: 928-523-8871 Fax: 928-523-1266

E-mail: Alexis.Baca-Spry@nau.edu Web Site: http://www.cet.nau.edu/itep

Places Native American and other students in tribal and EPA environmental offices during the summer where they do substantial projects furthering the missions of the environmental

offices.

Student Support Services

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 245

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Kathie Oehme, Project Director

Telephone: 928-523-6980 Fax: 928-523-9466

E-mail: Kathie.Oehme@nau.edu

Web Site: http://www.nau.edu/edsup/sss Improves retention and graduation rates of low income, first generation, or disabled students.

Tribal Air Quality

Northern Arizona University

P.O. Box 15600 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: William M. Auberle, Associate

Professor

Telephone: 928-523-5845

Fax: 928-523-8951

E-mail: William.Auberle@nau.edu

Utilizes educational and cultural resources at NAU to advance air-quality management knowledge and skills of tribal officials.

Upward Bound

Northern Arizona University

University Union, Bldg. 30, Rm. 238D

P.O. Box 6035 Flagstaff, AZ 86011

Contact: Eliot Schipper, Project Director

Telephone: 928-523-6999 Fax: 928-523-9466

E-mail: http://www.nau.edu/edsup/ub Web Site: Eliot.Schipper@nau.edu

Provides educational services and assistance through an academic-year program and summer residential academy for high school students who want to attend college, but who may not have the financial and educational resources to

do so.

NORTHLAND PIONEER COLLEGE

Northland Pioneer College

P.O. Box 610

Holbrook, AZ 86025 0610

Contact: Betsyann Wilson, Admissions

Coordinator

Toll-free: 800-266-7845 Telephone: 928-536-6257

Fax: 928-536-3382

Web Site: http://www.northland.cc.az.us/ Native language instruction offered in the form of conversational Navajo and Hopi. Offers program in Native American enterprise. Tribal scholarships (Navajo and White Mountain Apache) are available. Native students can also participate in a Native American Club.

PRESCOTT COLLEGE

Prescott College 220 Grove Ave. Prescott, AZ 86301

Contact: Vicky Young, Coordinator for Native

American Students Toll-free: 800-628-6343

Telephone: 520-778-2090, x2100

Fax: 520-776-5242

E-mail: vyoung@prescott.edu Web Site: http://www.prescott.edu/

Establishes individualized programs to provide Native American students with the opportunity to complete degrees in education including elementary, secondary, special education, early childhood, bilingual, and English-as-a-Second-Language (ESL) endorsements. The Adult Degree Program's community-based model allows students to incorporate their own language and culturally appropriate practices into their programs. Works closely with all tribal scholarship offices.

UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA Tribal Law and Policy Program

College of Law University of Arizona 1615 E 7th St. Tucson, AZ 85721

Contact: Robert A. Williams, Jr., Professor

Telephone: 520-621-5622 Fax: 520-621-9140

E-mail: Williams@law.arizona.edu

Web Site:

http://w3.arizona.edu/~aisp/tlaw_pol.htm
Offers the services of law students to strengthen
American Indian tribal self-governance and
address community-defined problems. Provides
pro bono legal research and advocacy assistance;
arranges law and graduate student internship and
clinical placements; and holds community
workshops and training programs.

American Indian Studies Program

University of Arizona Harvill Bldg., Rm. 430 P.O. Box 210076 Tucson, AZ 85721 0076

Contact: Vernon Masayesva, Director of Arizona Native Scholastic Enrichment and

Resources Program Telephone: 520-621-7108

Fax: 520-621-7952

E-mail: jstauss@u.arizona.edu

Web Site: http://w3.arizona.edu/~aisp/index.htm Strives to increase understanding of America's Indigenous peoples, their traditions, and their aspirations for sovereignty. Interdisciplinary graduate and outreach program promotes opportunities for Indian self-determination as defined by Indian tribes and communities. Offers advanced study in American Indian law and policy, languages and literatures, societies and cultures, and education.

Publishes biannual journal, "Redink."

American Indian Graduate Center

University of Arizona 1439 E Helen St. Tucson, AZ 85721

Contact: Glenn Johnson, Director

Telephone: 520-621-7989 Fax: 520-626-3535

E-mail: gjohnson@u.arizona.edu

Web Site: http://w3.arizona.edu/~aisp/aigc.htm Offers financial aid and supports cultural,

academic, and social activities for American Indian graduate and professional students at the University of Arizona.

Hosts annual spring conference

ARKANSAS

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS

University of Arkansas Administration Bldg., Ste. 425 Fayetteville, AR 72701

Contact: Maribeth Lynes, Director of

Recruitment

Toll-free: 800-377-8632 Telephone: 501-575-5346 E-mail: mlynes@uark.edu Web Site: http://www.uark.edu/

Special support services available to Native American students include Multicultural Student Services, providing support services; and the Native American Students Association (NASA),

an active on-campus organization. NASA hosts annual pow wow.

CALIFORNIA

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY

Multicultural Center

California Polytechnic State University

1 Grand Ave.

San Luis Obispo, CA 93407

Contact: Manzar Foroohar, Acting Chair of

Ethnic Studies

Telephone: 805-756-1707 E-mail: ytlscare@calpoly.edu

Web Site: http://www.cla.calpoly.edu/es/

index.html

Dedicated to respect for human rights and the development of the full potential of each of its individual members. Committed to providing an environment where all share in the common responsibility to safeguard each other's rights, encourage a mutual concern for individual growth, and appreciate the benefits of a diverse campus community.

Publishes "Cal Poly Magazine."

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, SAN BERNADINO

California State University, San Bernadino

5500 University Pkwy. San Bernadino, CA 92407

Contact: Mary Texeira, Coordinator, Ethnic

Studies

Telephone: 909-889-5547 Fax: 909-880-5942 E-mail: texeira@csusb.edu

Web Site: http://csbs.csusb.edu/ethnicstudies/
Offers a minor in ethnic studies, with
specialization in Native American studies.
Several Inland Area tribes support Native
American-centered activities on-campus such as
pow wows and other cultural programs.
Hosts California Indian Cultural Awareness
Conference; Inland Area Pow Wow.

D-Q UNIVERSITY

D-Q University P.O. Box 409 Davis, CA 95617

Contact: Morgan Otis, President

Telephone: 530-758-0470 Fax: 530-758-4891

Web Site: http://www.dqu.cc.ca.us/

An accredited two-year postsecondary institution of learning, dedicated to the progress of Indigenous peoples through education.

Designated as a tribally-controlled community college under the Tribally Controlled Community Colleges Assistance Act. Offers quality instruction and a culturally supportive environment for those wishing to learn. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

Publishes student literary journal "Over the Fence."

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS Department of Native American Studies

University of California, Davis Hart Hall, Rm. 2401 One Shields Ave. Davis, CA 95616

Telephone: 530-754-7874

Fax: 530-752-7097

Web Site:

http://cougar.ucdavis.edu/nas/department/grad/pr

ogram.html

Focuses on the Indigenous peoples of the Americas, on the peoples, nations, tribes, and communities whose ancestors have lived in North, Central, and South America from earliest times. Uses interdisciplinary scholarly approach to the world of American Indian peoples, offering a comprehensive and comparative perspective, including attention to the increasing dislocation and diaspora of indigenous people throughout the Americas.

HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY Indian Teacher and Educational Personnel Program

Humboldt State University Spidell House #85

Arcata, CA 95521

Contact: Lois Risling, Interim Director

Telephone: 707-826-3672 Fax: 707-826-3675

Web Site: http://www.humboldt.edu/~hsuitepp/ Academic program designed to train American Indian students as credentialed teachers, counselors, program administrators, and other leaders in public schools, tribal education programs, community organizations, and institutes of higher learning. Offers counseling, tutorial services, computer access and training, peer support and mentoring, and advocacy.

Department of Native American Studies

Humbolt State University

1 Harpst St.

Arcata, CA 95521 8299

Contact: Diana Ferris, Native American Studies

Secretary

Telephone: 707-826-4329

Fax: 707-826-4418

E-mail: ferris@laurel.humboldt.edu Web Site: http://www.humboldt.edu/~nasp/ Provides students with a realistic appreciation for Native culture, history, and values while increasing their understanding of the unique political status, rights, and responsibilities of Tribal nations. Students pursuing a Native American Studies (NAS) degree may engage in either a general NAS course of study or choose a specialized option in law and government, language and literature, society and culture, or natural resources and the environment. Native student support programs include the Indian Natural Resource, Science, and Engineering Program, and the Indian Teacher and Education Personnel Program. One of 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY

San Francisco State University 1600 Holloway Ave. San Francisco, CA 94132

Contact: Clayton Dumont, Acting Chair,

American Indian Studies Telephone: 415-338-1054 Fax: 415-338-7186 E-mail: luiseno@sfsu.edu Web Site: http://www.sfsu.edu/

Offers a minor in American Indian Studies.

Scholarship and grant opportunities for

American Indian students include: the Jacques E. Johnet Scholarship for Native Americans, the Wallace Scholarship for Diversity, the Gates Millenium Scholarship, the National Urban/Rural Fellowship, and the Working Assets Scholarship. Support services for Native students include: the American Indian Outreach Office, the Student Kouncil of Intertribal Nations Student (SKINS) Organization, and the

American Indian Studies Community Learning

Program.

SONOMA STATE UNIVERSITY

Sonoma State University 1801 E Cotati Ave. Rohnert Pk., CA 94928 Contact: Edward D. Castillo, Telephone: 707-664-2880

E-mail: edward.castillo@sonoma.edu Web Site: http://www.sonoma.edu

Offers a minor in Native American Studies. Program is designed to provide students with a multidisciplinary approach to Native Americans through ethnography, history, sociology, and the

humanities.

STANFORD UNIVERSITY American Indian, Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian Program

Stanford University Clubhouse #12, 524 Lasuen Mall Stanford, CA 94305 3064

Contact: Winona Simms, Director

Telephone: 650-725-6944 Fax: 650-725-6900

E-mail: wsimms@stanford.edu

Web Site:

http://www.stanford.edu/group/aip/program.htm

Handles administration, academic assistance, program coordination, and advising in support of the Native American community at Stanford. Advocates for concerns of importance to the Native American community while serving as liaison to local, state, and national Native organizations. Additional services include student, personal, and academic counseling; educational and cultural programming; and resource center.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, BERKELEY Native American Studies

University of California, Berkeley 528 Barrows Hall, Ste. 2570 Berkeley, CA 94720 2570

Contact: Ruth Hopper, NAS Undergraduate

Advisor

Telephone: 510-642-6613

E-mail: redcorn@uclink.berkeley.edu
Web Site: http://www.berkeley.edu
Offers courses dealing with historical and
cultural analysis of Native American life as well
as contemporary legal and social institutions that
affect Native American societies. Provides
special support services for Native American
students, and encourages involvement by all
students in field work or studies directed toward
community situations and problems.

American Indian Graduate Program

University of California, Berkeley

316 Sproul Hall #5900 Berkeley, CA 94720 5900

Contact: Carmen Foghorn, Coordinator

Telephone: 510-642-3228 Fax: 510-643-8909

E-mail: aigp@uclink.berkeley.edu
Web Site: http://www.grad.berkeley.edu/
Advances Native American communities by
broadening academic and professional
opportunities for American Indians and Alaska
Natives through graduate education. Ensures
that graduate programs are more accessible to
interested, qualified Indian applicants as a result
of its recruitment and advocacy efforts. Assists
students in finding housing, child care, and in
keeping students up-to-date on events in the
Indian community. Student room provides
meeting and study space for Indian students.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, IRVINE **Native American Studies**

University of California, Irvine

Irvine, CA 92697

Contact: Tanis Thorne, Director, Native

American Studies Telephone: 949-824-5011 E-mail: tcthorne@uci.edu

Web Site:

http://www.hnet.uci.edu/IDP/nativeam/ Offers a minor in Native American Studies. Special support services for Native students include: American Indian Student Association (AISA), Minorities for Medical School (m4m's), Minority Association for Pre-Health Students; and Na Opio O Ka'aina (Hawaii club). Publishes transfer guide for Native American college students "Dream Catchers."

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, RIVERSIDE **Native American Studies**

University of California, Riverside 900 University Ave.

Riverside, CA 92521

Contact: Earl Sisto, Director, Native American

Student Programs

Telephone: 909-787-4143

Fax: 909-787-7368

E-mail: earl.sisto@ucr.edu Web Site: http://www.ucr.edu/

Four year institution that provides classes in Native American studies as well as Native American students programs dedicated to providing a supportive educational, cultural, and social environment in which American Indian students may reach academic and personal goals while maintaining their cultural identities. Publishes "Indian Times" newspaper. Hosts annual pow wow, "Medicine Ways"

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SANTA **CRUZ**

Native American Resource Center

University of California, Santa Cruz

1156 High St.

Santa Cruz, CA 95064

Contact: Alfreda L. Mitre, Director

Telephone: 831-459-5453

Fax: 831-459-5867

E-mail: amnative@cats.ucsc.edu Web Site: http://www.ucsc.edu/

Works in collaboration with the Student Alliance

of North American Indians, Native faculty, and the graduate student Native Research and Pacific Research Clusters to establish an interdisciplinary, interethnic, western hemispheric, and transoceanic center. Offers a variety of support, including advocacy related to Native Indigenous Sovereignty and Epistemology; advising to student organizations. leadership training, and event planning; academic and personal advising; and educational, cultural, and social programming which celebrates cultural diversity of Native communities to promote global understanding.

LEEWARD COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Leeward Community College

96-045 Ala Ike

Pearl City, HI 96782 3393

Contact: Warren Mau, Coordinator of

Admissions & Records Telephone: 808-455-0642

Fax: 808-454-8804

E-mail: lccar@hawaii.edu

Web Site: http://www.lcc.hawaii.edu/

Instruction related to Native Hawaii is available in several forms: "Outdoor Recreation: Hawaiiana" focuses on traditional Hawaiian cultural activities including an overview of Hawaii's progression from earliest history to the period of discovery, and field experiences at historic sites. Offers a course on Hawaiian Culture that explores the socioeconomic system, geography, religion, values, music, dance, and origin of the Hawaiians. Also offers four levels

HAWAII

UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII AT HILO

of Hawaiian language courses.

University of Hawaii at Hilo 200 W Kawili St.

Hilo, HI 96720 4091

Contact: Gail Makuakane Lundin, Director, Hawaiian Leadership Development Program

Toll-free: 800-897-4456 Telephone: 808-974-7413 Fax: 809-974-7691

E-mail: gailml@hawaii.edu

Web Site: http://www.uhh.hawaii.edu/ Offers a BA in Hawaiian studies and MA in Hawaiian language and literature. Financial aid

programs include Western Undergraduate

Exchange (WUE) to all Alaska residents and other participating western region states that are members of WICHE; merit-based tuition awards available for Hawaiians; and in-state tuition for nonresidents with Hawaiian ethnicity. Special support services include the Hawaiian Leadership Development Program, Minority Access and Achievement Program, Student Support Services Program, and Title III.

UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII AT MANOA Center for Hawaiian Studies

University of Hawaii at Manoa 2444 Dole St.

Student Services Ctr., Rm. 309

Honolulu, HI 96822

Contact: Lilikala Kame 'eleihiwa, Director

Telephone: 808-973-0989 E-mail: lilikala@hawaii.edu Web Site: http://www.hawaii.edu/

Empowers students' identities through the study of language, culture, art, and music. Through the study of history, politics, and resource management, Hawaiian studies majors learn to serve the nation. Offers Kua'ana Student Services to provide support for Native students. Grants/scholarships available for Native students from Kamehameha Schools Scholarship and Native Hawaiian Leadership Project. Hawaiian Leadership Conference

IDAHO

IDAHO STATE UNIVERSITY

Idaho State University

921 S 8th

Pocatello, ID 83209 Telephone: 208-282-4429

Web Site: http://www.isu.edu/NativeEvents/ Offers language instruction in Shoshone and a minor in American Indian Studies. Provides students with numerous social and educational organizations of interest to Native Americans. Native American scholarships are available.

INDIANA

INDIANA UNIVERSITY

American Indian Studies Research Institute

Indiana University 422 N Indiana Ave. Bloomington, IN 47405

Contact: Wally Hooper, Program Designer

Telephone: 812-855-4086 Fax: 812-855-7529 855-4123 E-mail: aisri@indiana.edu

Web Site:

http://www.indiana.edu/~aisri/index.htm Provides the institutional structure necessary to carry out interdisciplinary research and educational projects related to the Native peoples of the Americas. Current projects focus on Plains Indian languages, cultures, and history, and include software development that enhances linguistic documentation, analysis, and publication, as well as innovative instructional media for teaching Native American languages. Publishes language learning books.

PURDUE UNIVERSITY

Purdue University

West Lafayette, IN 47907 1080 Contact: Andy Robinson, Telephone: 765-494-1776

Fax: 765-494-0544

E-mail: robinson@purdue.edu Web Site: http://www.purdue.edu/

One of the nation's largest universities and a vital Indiana resource, renowned worldwide for the excellence of its teaching and research. Scholarships for minority students available. Support services for Native students include the Native American Student Association and an

AISES chapter.

IOW A

UNIVERSITY OF IOWA

University of Iowa 107 CALH

Iowa City, IA 52242

Contact: Joe Coulter, Associate Provost

Toll-free: 800-553-4692 Telephone: 319-335-3500

Fax: 319-335-1535

E-mail: joe-coulter@uiowa.edu

Web Site: http://www.uiowa.edu/~ainsp

Offers undergraduate and graduate certificates in Native studies, as well as a minor in American Indian/Native Studies. "Opportunity at Iowa Scholarship" awards 50-100 qualifying members of underrepresented groups (African American, Hispanic/Latino[a], Native American/American Indian, or Alaska Native) \$5,000 a year for up to four years. Special support services available to

Native students include American Indian Science and Engineering Society, American Indian Student Association, and Native American Law Student Association.

KANSAS

HASKELL INDIAN NATIONS UNIVERSITY

Haskell Indian Nations University

155 Indian Ave.

Box 5030

Lawrence, KS 66046 4800

Contact: Karen Gayton Swisher, President

Telephone: 785-749-8497 Fax: 785-749-8411

E-mail: mnichols@ross1.cc.haskell.edu

Web Site: http://www.haskell.edu/

Students represent federally recognized tribes from across the United States and are very culturally diverse. Students select programs that will prepare them to enter baccalaureate programs in elementary education, American Indian studies, business administration, and environmental science; transfer to another baccalaureate degree-granting institution; or to enter directly into employment. Integrates American Indian/Alaska Native culture into its curricula. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

MAINE

UNIVERSITY OF MAINE Office of Native American Programs

University of Maine 5724 Dunn Hall, Rm. 308 Orono, ME 04469 5724

Contact: Maureen E. Smith, Director

Telephone: 207-581-1417 Fax: 207-581-4760

Web Site: http://www.ume.maine.edu/~NAP Dedicated to increasing the understanding and appreciation of Native people. Heightens awareness of the Indigenous nations of the Northeast through teaching, research, and service to students and the public. Promotes the unique cultural identity of Native Americans while making significant contributions to the development of curricula and programming.

MASSACHUSETTS

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS, AMHERST

Certificate Program in Native American Indian Studies

Anthropology Department

University of Massachusetts, Amherst

E-25, Machmer Hall

English Dept., Bartlett Hall (director's dept.)

Amherst, MA 01003

Contact: Ron Welburn, Director, CPNAIS

Telephone: 413-577-1607 Fax: 413-545-9494

E-mail: rwelburn@english.umass.edu

Web Site: http://www.umass.edu/nativestudies/

Requiring six courses, program offers undergraduates a structured introduction to historical and contemporary issues affecting the western Hemisphere's First Nations. Supervises carefully considered outreach to Native communities and Native-related institutions. Language instruction available includes Western Abenaki and Massachusett-Wampnoag linguistics biannually; Kahnawake Mohawk offered in Spring 2001; and Western Apache course is being developed. Josephine White Eagle Scholarship is available for continuing students. Native American Student Support Services, the Dr. Josephine White Eagle Memorial Cultural Center, NASA, and AISES are all available for Native student participation.

MICHIGAN

BAY MILLS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Bay Mills Community College 12214 W Lakeshore Dr.

Brimley, MI 49715

Contact: Martha McLeod, Dr., President

Toll-free: 800-844-BMCC Telephone: 906-248-3354 Fax: 906-248-3351

E-mail: root@bmcc.org

Web Site: http://www.bmcc.org/

One of the 33 member institutions of the

American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

Provides comprehensive postsecondary

education which addresses both traditional and contemporary aspects of learning. Focuses on educating students to live successfully by

assisting each in reaching a goal that is desirable and attainable for their needs in this multicultural world. Committed to assisting students in every way possible to define and pursue their career goals and to provide them with a variety of cultural and social activities to enrich their college experiences.

CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Central Michigan University Mount Pleasant, MI 48859

Contact: Lisa Tiger, Native American Programs

Director

Telephone: 989-774-2508

E-mail: Lisa.Linda.Lee.Tiger@cmich.edu

Web Site:

http://www.cmich.edu/insdiv/nativ/natprog.html Offers programs in Native American Indian cultures and elementary and intermediate Ojibwe language instruction. Scholarships are available as well as the Michigan Indian Tuition Waiver.

KEWEENAW BAY OJIBWA COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Keweenaw Bay Ojibwa Community College 107 Bear Town Rd.

Baraga, MI 49908

Contact: Debra J. Parrish, President

Telephone: 906-353-8161 Fax: 906-353-8107

Web Site: http://www.kbocc.org/

Provides a professional, dedicated, open-minded, and enthusiastic faculty, teaching a challenging, intellectually rigorous and relevant curriculum in a culturally sensitive environment that is conducive to learning. Promotes the preservation of the customs and beliefs of the Ojibwa people. Integrated to foster understanding and to prepare all students for responsible citizenship, academic competence, and career success which will enhance the economic base of the reservation and surrounding communities. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

NORTHERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Northern Michigan University 1401 Presque Isle Ave. Marquette, MI 49855

Contact: April Lindala, Assistant Director,

Diversity Student Services Toll-free: 800-682-9797 Telephone: 906-227-2650 Fax: 906-227-1747

E-mail: alindala@nmu.edu Web Site: http://www.nmu.edu/

Over 180 academic programs offered at baccalaureate, associate, certificate, and master's degree levels. All full-time students receive an IBM ThinkPad notebook computer for their use as part of tuition and fees. Offers a minor in Native American Studies, Native language instruction in Ojibwe, and several available scholarships. Student support services include Center for Native American Studies, Diversity Student Services Office, Native American Student Association, and Ojibwe Language & Culture Club.

UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN

University of Michigan 1220 Sab, Ste. 1229 Ann Arbor, MI 48109

Contact: Jennifer Trudeau, Admissions Counselor, Native American Recruiting

E-mail: jtrudeau@umich.edu
Web Site: http://www.umich.edu/
Offers instruction in the Ojibwe language.
Native Studies programs available include
American Culture and Native American Studies.
Scholarship and grants of interest to Native
students include the Allen Hirsch Memorial
Native American Scholarship and the Rackham
Merit Fellowship. Special support services for
Native students include the Native American
Student Association, the American Indian
Science and Engineering Society, and the Native
American Law Students Association.

MINNESOTA

CONCORDIA COLLEGE

Concordia College 901 8th St. S

Moorhead, MN 56562

Contact: Bernice Horizons, Director of Native

American Programs
Telephone: 218-299-4171
E-mail: grandboi@cord.edu
Web Site: http://www.cord.edu

Enhances and supports the education of

American Indian students. Offers the financial aid program, "Broader Horizons." Provides Native studies programs, including Native American literature every other year, and is part of tri-college which offers Native Studies. Special support services for Native students include AISES, MIEA (Minnesota Indian Education Association), Native American Programs Office, and a Tribes Club. Publishes "Tribal College Magazine," "Native Art," "Circle," and surrounding reservation papers.

FOND DU LAC TRIBAL AND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Fond du Lac Tribal and Community College

2101 14th St.

Cloquet, MN 55720

Contact: Lester Jack Briggs, President

Toll-free: 800-657-3712 Telephone: 218-879-0800 Fax: 218-879-0814

E-mail: ljbriggs@ezigaa.fdl.cc.mn.us
Web Site: http://www.fdl.cc.mn.us/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Provides higher education opportunities for its
communities in a welcoming, culturally diverse
environment. Promotes scholarship and
academic excellence through transfer and career
education, and provides access to higher
education by offering developmental education.
Provides opportunity, experience, and access to
current technology, preparing students for the
future. Celebrates cultural diversity and
promotes global understanding.

LEECH LAKE TRIBAL COLLEGE

Leech Lake Tribal College 6530 U.S. Hwy. 2, NW Cass Lake, MN 56633

Contact: Penny DeVault, Director of Student

Services

Toll-free: 888-829-4240 Telephone: 218-335-4200 Fax: 218-335-4209 E-mail: penny@lltc.org Web Site: http://www.lltc.org/

Committed to creating and maintaining an atmosphere in which the traditional and

contemporary values of the Anishinaabeg are honored and practiced. Provides all persons with a quality education grounded in the spirituality, history, and culture of the Anishinaabeg. Offers courses in Anishinaabe studies and in the Ojibwe language. Financial aid is available through the American Indian College Fund, as well as the State of Minnesota Indian Scholarship. Developmental education tutoring is available. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA, DULUTH American Indian Learning Resource Center

School of Medicine

University of Minnesota, Duluth 209 Bohannon Hall, 10 University Dr.

Duluth, MN 55812 2496 Contact: Rick J. Smith, Toll-free: 800-232-1339 Telephone: 218-726-6379 E-mail: mlyons@d.umn.edu

Web Site: http://www.d.umn.edu/ailrc

Provides support services to promote the success

of UMD students and to enhance their educational experiences. Increases the recruitment and retention of American Indian and Alaska Native students, while promoting a more culturally diverse campus environment.

UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA, MORRIS

University of Minnesota, Morris 600 E 4th St. Morris, MN 56267

Contact: Mike Miller, Coordinator of Cultural Programs in the Minority Student Program

Office

Telephone: 320-589-6095 E-mail: millermr@mrs.umn.edu

Web Site: http://www.mrs.umn.edu/services/msp Offers Dakota language instruction and an anthropology degree with concentration in American Indian studies. Student involvement is encouraged through research opportunities and organizational responsibilities for the annual Pow Wow. Qualifying Native students receive a

tuition waiver.

Publishes "Indian Country Today."

WHITE EARTH TRIBAL AND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

White Earth Tribal and Community College 202 S Main St.

Mahnomen, MN 56557

Contact: Deb Bakken, Registrar

Telephone: 218-935-0417

E-mail: debra_bakken@hotmail.com Web Site: http://www.wetcc.org

One of the 33 member institutions of American Indian Higher Education Consortium. This tribally-controlled institution of higher education serves the Anishinaabe people and other residents of the White Earth Reservation. Offers degree and certificate programs as well as adult and continuing education courses.

MONTANA

BLACKFEET COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Blackfeet Community College P.O. Box 819

Browning, MT 59417

Contact: Carol Tatsey-Murray, President E-mail: uanet141@gemini.oscs.montana.edu Web Site: http://www.montana.edu/wwwbcc/ One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Fully accredited, two-year, higher education institution. Provides a core of general education instruction that results in identifiable student competence in written and oral communication, quantitative reasoning, critical analysis and logical thinking, with literacy achieved in the discourse or technology appropriate to the student's program of study. Committed to providing opportunities for lifelong education including basic skills development, high school completion, GED, continuing education and high quality community service programs.

DULL KNIFE MEMORIAL COLLEGE

Dull Knife Memorial College

P.O. Box 98

Lame Deer, MT 59043

Contact: Richard Littlebear, President

Telephone: 406-477-6215 Fax: 406-477-6219

E-mail: rlbear@dkmc.cc.mt.us
Web Site: http://www.dkmc.cc.mt.us/
One of the 33 member institutions of the

American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Serves the reservation and surrounding communities. Offers Associate in Arts and Associate in Applied Science degrees as well as Certificate programs. Its faculty is committed and dedicated to making the educational experiences of its students meaningful and rewarding.

FORT PECK COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Fort Peck Community College

P.O. Box 398 Poplar, MT 59255

Contact: Robert McAnally, Vice President of

Student Services

Telephone: 406-768-5551

Fax: 406-768-5552

E-mail: bobmc@fpcc.cc.mt.us Web Site: http://www.fpcc.cc.mt.us/ Serves the constituency of reservation populations by maintaining an occupational training program based on the needs of people living on or near the reservation and on potential employment opportunities available in the region. Offers A.A. degree in American Indian Studies. Native language instruction available includes Assiniboine Language I and II and Dakota Language I and II. Scholarships for Native high school students available, as well as those offered by the American Indian College Fund. Student organizations available include American Indian Business Leaders, Student Senate, and the Indian Club. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

LITTLE BIG HORN COLLEGE

Little Big Horn College

P.O. Box 370

Crow Agency, MT 59022

Contact: Henry Real Bird, Acting President

Telephone: 406-638-3100

Fax: 406-638-2229

Web Site: http://www.lbhc.cc.mt.us/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Public two-year community college chartered by
the Crow Tribe of Indians, offers nine associate
of arts degrees. Courses of study offered are
directed to the economic and job opportunities in
the Crow Indian Reservation area. Dedicated to

the professional, vocational, and personal development of individual students for their advancement in the workplace or in higher education, and committed to the preservation, perpetuation, and protection of Crow culture and language.

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BILLINGS

Montana State University, Billings

1500 N 30th St.

Billings, MT 59101 0298 Contact: Quentin Gilham, Toll-free: 800-565-MSUB Telephone: 406-657-2182

E-mail: QGilham@msubillings.edu
Web Site: http://www.msubillings.edu/
Offers a minor in Native studies. Provides
students with multicultural student services,
AISES chapter, American Indian Business
Leadership chapter, and Intertribal Indian Club.
Native students make up 6% of the student body.
Publishes Multicultural Student Services
newsletter.

Sponsors American Indian Heritage Day in September and annual ITIC Collegiate Pow Wow.

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY, GREAT FALLS

Montana Indian Student Fee Waiver

Montana State University, Great Falls 2100 16th Ave. S P.O. Box 6010

Great Falls, MT 59405

Contact: Ellen Swaney, Director, American

Indian/Minority Achievement Toll-free: 800-446-2698 Telephone: 406-771-4300 Fax: 406-771-4317

E-mail: eswaney@oche.montana.edu Web Site: http://www.msugf.edu/

Registration and tuition fees waived for any person of one fourth (1/4) or more Indian blood.

Need- and/or merit-based. Seven other

universities in the state of Montana particate as

well.

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY, NORTHERN

Montana State University, Northern P.O. Box 7751 Havre, MT 59501 Contact: Faye Red Fox, Multicultural

Coordinator

Toll-free: 800-662-6132 E-mail: msunadmit@msun.edu Web Site: http://www.msun.edu

Offers a minor in Native American studies with an emphasis on either tribal leadership and administration or nonprofit administration. Provides students with the Sweet Grass Society, student support services, and a multicultural advisor. Offers a fee waiver for those with proof of Indian heritage and financial need.

ROCKY MOUNTAIN COLLEGE

Rocky Mountain College

1511 Poly Dr.

Billings, MT 59102 1796 Contact: Carolyn Pease-Lopez,

Toll-free: 800-877-6259
Telephone: 406-657-1026
E-mail: admissions@rocky.edu
Web Site: http://www.rocky.edu/

Area Served: MT

Educates its students and the ever-changing community, recognizing the importance of the liberal arts as the foundation of all learning for academic, professional, and lifelong personal development. Offers courses in Native American studies and Indian religious thought. Special support services include AISES, and Native American student advisor. Financial support programs for Native students include Native American Scholarship, and Bridge to Bachelors Scholarship.

SALISH KOOTENAI COLLEGE

Salish Kootenai College P.O. Box 117

P.O. Box 117 Pablo, MT 59855

Contact: Joe McDonald, Dr., President

Telephone: 406-675-4800 Fax: 406-675-4801

E-mail: dana_grant@skc.edu. Web Site: http://www.skc.edu/

One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Provides assistance to tribal institutions and departments in staff preparation, planning, research, and evaluation services according to identified needs. Fosters curricula and programs through the baccalaureate level that are designed

to meet the special needs of the Native American population.

STONE CHILD COLLEGE

Stone Child College Box 1082, Rural Rt. #1 Box Elder, MT 59521

Contact: Steve Galbavy, President

Telephone: 406-395-4313 Fax: 406-395-4836

Web Site:

http://www.montana.edu/~wwwai/scc.html
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Offers programs of study that can lead to
Associate of Arts and Associate of Science
Degrees and Certificates as authorized by the
Commission of the Northwest Association of
Schools and College. Programs designed to
meet the specific needs of the Chippewa-Cree
tribe. Committed to meeting the needs of the
community, tribal members, tribal programs, and
dedicated to helping promote pride in each tribal
member's Chippewa-Cree heritage.

UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA

Indians into Psychology

Department of Psychology University of Montana 32 Campus Dr. #1584 Missoula, MT 59812 1584 Contact: Gyda Swaney, Director Telephone: 406-243-5679

Telephone: 406-243-367

Fax: 406-243-6094

E-mail: inpsych@selway.umt.edu Web Site: http://www.umt.edu/inpsych

Recruits and trains American Indians in the field of clinical psychology. Program offers scholarships to American Indian undergraduate and graduate students majoring in Psychology or pursuing a Ph.D. in Clinical Psychology. Each summer, InPsych offers a two-week honors program for undergraduates or graduate school psychology applicants. Also offers mentoring, tutoring, and general help to American Indians in higher education.

UNIVERSITY OF MONTANA: MONTANA TECH

Succeeding Students in Engineering Programs (STEP)

Technical Outreach Office

University of Montana: Montana Tech

1300 W Park St. Butte, MT 59701

Contact: Amy Verlanic, STEP Director

Toll-free: 800-445-TECH

Web Site: http://www.mtech.edu/
E-mail: Admissions@mtech.edu
Designed to assist female and/or ethnic minorities successfully prepare themselves for careers in engineering. Offers the following services to achieve this goal: summer program, academic assistance, professional development, campus connections, and social activities.

NEBRASKA

CREIGHTON UNIVERSITY Native American Association

Creighton University 2500 California Plaza Brandeis 111

Omaha, NE 68178

Contact: James E. McGill, Telephone: 402-280-3118 Fax: 402-280-4706

E-mail: naa@creighton.edu

Web Site: http://www.creighton.edu/NAA
Enhances, supports, and maintains the Native
American culture within the Creighton
environment through communication and
interaction between Native American and
non-Native American students at CU and in the
community. Creighton offers a major in Native
American Studies, and various institutional
scholarships, as well as the Michael G.
Morrison, S. J. Endowed Scholarship. Students
assisted at the Student Support Services and the
Office of Multicultural Affairs.

Annual Native American Retreat for prospective 2- or 4-year students

LITTLE PRIEST TRIBAL COLLEGE

Little Priest Tribal College

P.O. Box 270

Winnebago, NE 68071

Contact: Ann Downes, President

Telephone: 402-878-2380

Fax: 402-878-2355

Web Site: http://www.lptc.cc.ne.us/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

Offers two-year associate degree programs, certificate programs, and community education programs by emphasizing quality education, humanistic values, and life skills.

NEBRASKA INDIAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Nebraska Indian Community College

Contact: Michael Otrogge, Telephone: 402-857-2434

Fax: 402-857-2543

Web Site: http://www.thenicc.org One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Provides occupational and career education for students seeking employment in various fields or planning to continue their education at four-year colleges. Provides credit and noncredit continuing education, developmental studies, general education, and a variety of other community services.

Publishes a newsletter, Wambdi Oyate "Eagle Nation."

NEW HAMPSHIRE

DARTMOUTH COLLEGE **Native American Studies**

Dartmouth College Hanover, NH 03755

Contact: Colin G. Calloway, Chair, Native

American Studies

Telephone: 603-646-3530

Fax: 603-646-0333

E-mail: colin.calloway@dartmouth.edu Web Site: http://www.dartmouth.edu/~nas/ Offers a major and a minor in Native American Studies. Special support programs available for Native students include the Native American Program, the Native American House (residence and social center), and AISES chapter on campus.

NEW MEXICO

CROWNPOINT INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

Crownpoint Institute of Technology

P.O. Box 849

Crownpoint, NM 87313

Contact: James Tutt, President Telephone: 505-786-4100

Fax: 505-786-5644

E-mail: james@cit.cc.nm.us

Web Site: http://www.cit.cc.nm.us/

Tribal college established and chartered by the Navajo Nation, and one of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Provides students with a quality technical and vocational education, associate degrees, or community education in a higher learning setting. Committed to providing a student-centered learning environment, based on Diné philosophy.

INSTITUTE OF AMERICAN INDIAN ARTS

Institute of American Indian and Alaska Native

Culture and Arts Development Institute of American Indian Arts

83 Avan Nu Po Rd. Santa Fe, NM 87505

Contact: Ramus Suina, Director of Enrollment

and Admissions

Toll-free: 800-804-6422 Telephone: 505-424-2300 Fax: 505-424-0050

E-mail: rsuina@iaiancad.org Web Site: http://www.iaiancad.org/

One of only three congressionally chartered higher education institutions and a member of

the American Indian Higher Education

Consortium. Stresses value of cultural heritage of America's Native peoples, self-identity, and individual expression using the contemporary arts as a vehicle for that expression. Dedicated to making significant contributions to Indian education, artistic creation, economic development, and cultural preservation and enhancement. Offers cultural studies program, Navajo language instruction, support services for Native students, and financial aid for Native students through Institutional Merit and American Indian College Fund.

NEW MEXICO INSTITUTE OF MINING AND **TECHNOLOGY**

New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology 801 Lerov Pl.

Socorro, NM 87801

Contact: A. Alex Sando, Minority Programs

Coordinator

Toll-free: 800-428-8324 Telephone: 505-835-5424 E-mail: asando@admin.nmt.edu Web Site: http://www.nmt.edu/

Offers special scholarships/grants for Native American students. Houses a chapter of the American Indian Science and Engineering Society.

SOUTHWESTERN INDIAN POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE

Southwestern Indian Polytechnic Institute

P.O. Box 10146

Albuquerque, NM 87184

Contact: Carolyn Elgin, President

Telephone: 505-346-2347 Fax: 505-346-2343

Web Site: http://www.sipi.bia.edu

Offers 29 degree or certificate programs which prepare students to enter an exciting technical career or to advance successfully to a bachelor or higher degree. Tuition, books, and room and board are provided free of charge to members of federally recognized Indian Tribes. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO American Indian Graduate Center

University of New Mexico 4520 Montgomery Blvd., NE, Ste. 1B

Albuquerque, NM 87109

Contact: Rhonda Whiting, President

Telephone: 505-881-4584 Fax: 505-884-0427 E-mail: aigc@unm.edu Web Site: www.aigc.com

Assists American Indian college graduates who want to continue their education at master's, doctorate, and professional degree levels and who need financial support. Provides additional educational opportunities to (1) encourage these students to make critical connections with Indian communities, tribal leaders, and Indian organizations; (2) ensure their greater involvement; and (3) help rebuild strong, healthy, self-reliant American Indian and Alaska Native communities.

WESTERN NEW MEXICO UNIVERSITY Graduate Studies Center

Publishes magazine and annual report.

Western New Mexico University 2055 State Rd., 602 Gallup, NM 87301 Contact: Pat Maguire, Chair Telephone: 505-722-3389 Fax: 505-722-3195

Web Site: http://www.wnmu.org

Has served the educational and mental health communities of the Four Corners region since 1884. Offers the masters degree in counseling, educational leadership, special education, elementary education, secondary education, TESOL, and business administration. Program geared toward working adults juggling higher education, work, and family obligations. Strives to provide rigorous, culturally appropriate, affordable graduate education. A high percentage of masters graduates are Native American.

NEW YORK

BUFFALO STATE COLLEGENative American Student Services

Buffalo State College 400 Campbell Student Union 1300 Elmwood Ave. Buffalo, NY 14222

Contact: Cheryl John, Coordinator

Telephone: 716-878-4631

E-mail: johnck@bscmail.buffalostate.edu Web Site: http://www.buffalostate.edu/~nass/ Provides peer support, cultural activities, and campus programs. Assists in organizing the annual Native American Heritage Celebration.

CLARKSON UNIVERSITY

Clarkson University 8 Clarkson Ave. Potsdam, NY 13699

Contact: Julius P. Mitchell, Director, Pipeline

of Educational Programs Office

Toll-free: 800-527-6577 Telephone: 315-268-3785 E-mail: mitch@clarkson.edu

Web Site: http://www.clarkson.edu/msdcu/ Offers a course in Native American literature, an AISES chapter, and a summer enrichment program for older high school students. Makes available corporate scholarships, National Action Council for Minorities in Enginering, Higher Education Opportunities Program, and need-based grants.

CORNELL UNIVERSITY American Indian Program

Cornell University 450 Caldwell Hall Ithaca, NY 14853

Contact: Daniel Usner, AIP Director E-mail: aipoffice@cornell.edu Web Site: http://www.cornell.edu/

Formed in 1981, the program educates students in the cultures of North American Indians and serves as a resource for Native and other Cornell students, as well as for Native peoples in general. Offers a range of courses about North American Indians through a variety of departments. Student organizations include a chapter of AISES, The Cornell Council of American Indian Graduate and Professional Students (CCAIGPS), The American Indian Law Student Association (AILSA), and Native American Students at Cornell (NASAC). Publishes biannual newsletter "The Web;" quarterly "Native Americas Journal," and books on Native topics.

STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK AT NEW PALTZ

State University of New York at New Paltz 75 S Manheim Blvd., Ste. 1

New Paltz, NY 12561 2499

Contact: Christopher Wright, Admissions Counselor, Multicultural Recruitment

Toll-free: 888-639-7589 Telephone: 845-257-3200 Fax: 845-257-3209

E-mail: hauptmal@newpaltz.edu Web Site: http://www.newpaltz.edu/

Provides students with the knowledge, skills, and experiences needed to meet the challenges of the global community. Offers a wide variety of academic enrichment activities, including internships and fieldwork in nearly every undergraduate program. Offers a minor in Native American studies sponsored by the Department of History.

NORTH CAROLINA

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA AT PEMBROKE

American Indian Studies Department

University of North Carolina at Pembroke

P.O. Box 1510, Lumbee Hall Pembroke, NC 28372 1510

Contact: Linda Oxendine, Dr., Chair

Toll-free: 800-949-8627 Telephone: 910-521-6262 Fax: 910-521-6497

E-mail: linda.oxendine@uncp.edu Web Site: http://www.uncp.edu/

Offers courses ranging from American Indian history, art, health, and literature to classes that address contemporary issues in American Indian affairs. Provides academic and research support through both its exhibitions of authentic Indian artifacts and its archival collections. Twenty-five percent of the student population is Native

American.

NORTH DAKOTA

CANKDESKA CIKANA COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Cankdeska Cikana Community College P.O. Box 269

Ft. Totten, ND 58335

Contact: John Lohnes, President

Telephone: 701-766-4415 Fax: 701-766-4077

E-mail: malana@hoopster.little-hoop.cc.nd.us Web Site: http://hoopster.little-hoop.cc.nd.us/ One of the 33 member institutions of the

American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

Provides comprehensive postsecondary education that addresses both traditional and contemporary aspects of learning. Focuses on educating students to live successfully by

assisting each in reaching a goal that is desirable

and attainable for their needs in this

multicultural world.

Hosts annual fall conference

FORT BERTHOLD COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Fort Berthold Community College

P.O. Box 490

New Town, ND 58763

Contact: Delores Wilkinson, Dean of Students

Telephone: 701-627-4738 Fax: 701-627-3609

E-mail: dwilk@fbcc.bia.edu
Web Site: http://www.fbcc.bia.edu/

Emphasizes interweaving of tribally distinctive cultural elements into the postsecondary process.

Addresses tribal needs and concerns and perpetuates tribal heritage, history, and culture through education. Strives for pragmatic and holistic approaches to higher education and focuses on providing and improving individual competencies relevant to the individual and the community. Houses a chapter of AISES and offers Native language instruction in Mandan, Hidatsa, and Arithara. Various forms of financial aid available to Native students. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Publishes monthly newsletter.

MINOT STATE UNIVERSITY

Native American Cultural Awareness Center

Minot State University 500 University Ave., W Minot, ND 58707

Contact: Joseph Jastrzembski, President

Toll-free: 800-777-0750 Telephone: 701-858-3365 Fax: 701-858-4474

E-mail: jastrzem@wmisu.nodak.edu

Web Site: http://www.minotstateu.edu/naclub/ Large undergraduate Native American student body. Diversity tuition waivers are available, as well as access to Native American scholarships. Native American Cultural Awareness Center provides support for students and families, conducts Native fundraising events, and sponsers social and cultural activities. Cooperative and regional reservations assist students with matriculation and transitional concerns.

Hosts H.E.R.O.S.conferences.

SITTING BULL COLLEGE

Sitting Bull College 1341 92nd St.

Fort Yates, ND 58538

Contact: Ron McNeil, President Telephone: 701-854-3861

Fax: 701-854-3403

Web Site: http://www.sittingbull.edu/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Provides opportunities for people in the
immediate area through its various academic and
vocational programs, general college transfer
programs, and other programs with other

colleges. Standard core curriculum, founded in the general education requirements, incorporates the essential basics for each specified degree. Offers the Associate of Arts degree, Associate of Science degree, Associate of Applied Science degree, and Vocational Certificates of Completion.

TURTLE MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Turtle Mountain Community College P.O. Box 340 Belcourt, ND 58316

Contact: Carty Monette, Dr., President

Telephone: 701-477-7862

Fax: 701-477-7807

Web Site: http://www.turtle-mountain.cc.nd.us/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Seeks to provide and maintain comprehensive
higher education services in fields needed for
true Indian self-determination. Focuses on
general studies and vocational education
programs, and directs scholarly research.
Curriculum incorporates the cultural and social
heritage of the Turtle Mountain Band of
Chippewa. Administration, faculty, and student
body exert leadership with and provide service
to the community.

UNITED TRIBES TECHNICAL COLLEGE

United Tribes Technical College 3315 University Dr. Bismarck, ND 58504

Contact: David Gipp, President

Telephone: 701-255-3285 Fax: 701-530-0605

Web Site: http://www.united-tribes.tec.nd.us/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Committed to the needs of American Indians in
the cultural preservation of their heritage.
Offers 11 Associate of Applied Science degrees
and eight certificate programs. Strives to
maintain a residential learning environment
where students and their families are provided
housing, an elementary school, and child
development centers. Counseling, career
planning and placement, medical services, and
transportation, along with a chemical health

center, library, and other support services are available.

OKLAHOMA

NORTHEASTERN OKLAHOMA A&M COLLEGE

Northeastern Oklahoma A&M College 200 I St., NE

Miami, OK 74354

Contact: Charla K. EchoHawk, Director of

Native American Studies T-elephone: 918-540-6338

E-mail: cecohawk@neoam.cc.ok.us Web Site: http://www.neoam.cc.ok.us/

Small liberal arts two-year college. Located in

Miami, Oklahoma, it has eight Tribal headquarters. Offers A.A. degree in Native American studies, as well as Cherokee language instruction courses. Native American Student Association available. Has expanded its Native American Studies Program with special emphasis in the areas of Tribal Government and Policy Development; Health & Sciences; Forestry Management; Arts & Humanities; Social Science; and Computer/Technology.

Offers various minority grants and/or scholarships.

Hosts Northeastern Oklahoma A&M Native Symposium.

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY Multicultural Development & Assessment Center

Oklahoma State University 320 Student Union

Stillwater, OK 74078-7053

Contact: Pete G. Coser, Coordinator

Telephone: 405-744-5481 Fax: 405-744-8380 E-mail: pete@okstate.edu Web Site: http://pio.okstate.edu/

Supports personal, social, and intellectual growth of African American, Native American, Hispanic, and Vietnamese American members of the University community. Offers Native support programs such as: Native American Student Association, Native Americans into Psychology, Multicultural Development & Assessment Center, AISES, Native American Faculty & Staff Association, and more. Course offerings include the Native American areas

certificate program, and Mvskoke Creek language and culture. Many grants and scholarships available to Native students, including out-of-state tuition waiver program for Native Americans, Human Environmental Sciences Nutritional Grant for Native American Freshmen, and many more.

UNIVERSITY OF TULSA **Native American Law Center**

College of Law University of Tulsa 3120 E 4th Pl. Tulsa, OK 74104

Contact: Judith Royster, Director of Native

American Law Certificate Telephone: 918-631-3191 E-mail: nalc@utulsa.edu

Web Site:

http://www.law.utulsa.edu/zope/indianlaw/ Offers a number of courses either dedicated to or related to the study of Indian law. Native American Law Certificate, and LL.M. in American Indian and Indigenous Law available. Offers both need- and merit-based scholarships, which may also be available through the American Indian Graduate Center and the Intertribal Indian Club of Tulsa. Students enjoy extensive opportunities to work with tribal governments. Recognized as one of the finest Indian law educators in the country. "Tulsa Law Review" publishes a symposium issue each year dedicated to Indian law issues

OREGON

EASTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY Native American Program

Cosponsors Sovereignty Symposium

Eastern Oregon University

1 University Blvd.

La Grande, OR 97850 2899

Contact: Jackie Grant, Director, NAP

Toll-free: 800-452-8639 Telephone: 541-965-3393 Fax: 541-962-3418 E-mail: jgrant@eou.edu Web Site: http://www.eou.edu/

Faculty infuses Native American history and contemporary issues facing Native communities into their curriculum. American Indian and

Alaska Native students participate in an Intact Program, which allows students and/or community members to conduct classes on a variety of topics to include culture, music, dance, and traditional crafts. Offers three Native specific scholarship programs for students earning a degree in Distance Education. Support programs for Native students include the Native American Program, Native American Teacher Education Programs, Native American Adolescent Mentorship Project, and Speel-Ya Indian Student Club.

Hosts special activities, cultural awareness programs, and annual Spring Pow Wow & Celebration

SOUTH DAKOTA

BLACK HILLS STATE UNIVERSITY

Black Hills State University 1200 University St., Unit 9502 Spearfish, SD 57799

Contact: Richard Carter Toll-free: 800-255-2478 Telephone: 605-642-6343 Fax: 605-642-6254

E-mail: richardcarter@bhsu.edu Web Site: http://www.bhsu.edu/

Offers an American Indian studies program, as well as scholarships for Native students and a

Native American Student Center.

OGLALA LAKOTA COLLEGE

Oglala Lakota College P.O. Box 490 Kyle, SD 57752

Contact: Thomas Shortbull, President

Telephone: 605-455-2321 Fax: 605-455-2787

Web Site: http://www.olc.edu/

One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Prepares students to understand the larger society as well as the customs and beliefs of the Lakota people. Assist people in being active, productive members of their families, communities, and of the Oglala Sioux Tribe. Researches, studies, and disseminates the Lakota language, culture, and philosophy.

SITANKA UNIVERSITY

SiTanka Huron University

Box 220

435 North Elm St. Eagle Butte, SD 57625

Contact: T. L. Traversie, President

Telephone: 605-964-6044 Fax: 605-964-1144

E-mail: sitanka@sitanka.com Web Site: http://www.sitanka.com/

Provides holistic higher education opportunities that meet diverse needs to the Cheyenne River Reservation community by providing training, certificate, and degree programs. Curricula incorporate Lakota and comparative cultural concepts and articulate the knowledge, skills, and values necessary for college students and other patrons to achieve their respective personal and professional goals. Offers Native American studies, instruction in the Lakota language, and Native American tutors. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

SINTE GLESKA UNIVERSITY

Sinte Gleska University

P.O. Box 490 Rosebud, SD 57570

Contact: Lionel Bordeaux, President

Telephone: 605-747-2263 Fax: 605-747-2098

Web Site: http://sinte.indian.com/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Develops leadership capacity in teachers,
addresses the needs of Native American
students, and develops a school culture which
supports systemic change.

SISSETON WAHPETON COMMUNITY COLLEGE

P.O. Box 689

Agency Village, SD 57262

Contact: Elden Lawrence, Dr., President

Telephone: 605-698-3966 Fax: 605-698-3132

Web Site: http://swcc.cc.sd.us/index.htm
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Enables students to obtain a quality education
leading to a degree in a cost effective manner.

Provides choices for other educational opportunities, employment, and career advancement. Low teacher-student ratio promotes academic freedom, individualized instruction, team building, and local community involvement. Offers courses in Dakota language, culture, and history.

SOUTH DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY Department of Foreign languages

South Dakota State University

Box 2201

Brookings, SD 57007 0094 Contact: Velva-Lu Spencer, Toll-free: 800-952-3541 Telephone: 605-688-4121

Fax: 605-688-6384

E-mail: velva-lu_Spencer@sdstate.edu
Web Site: http://www.sdstate.edu
Offers American area studies with a
specialization in Lakota. Makes available
Native American scholarships and an emergency
loan fund. Sponsors the Native Americans
Student Office Club, Office of Native American
Student Advisement, SDSU Native American
Club, and tutoring services. Arranges campus
visits for students and their families.

TEXAS

TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY

Texas A&M University 137 Memorial Student Ctr. College Station, TX 77843 1121

Contact: Tonya Driver, Coordinator of Student

Retention

Telephone: 979-845-4551 Fax: 979-862-2640

E-mail: dms@aggieculture.tamu.edu
Web Site: http://aggieculture.tamu.edu/
Hosts a Native American Student Association.

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS

University of North Texas P.O. Box 311277 Denton, TX 76203

Contact: Adrianna Santina, Toll-free: 800-241-TAMS Telephone: 940-565-2000

Fax: 940-565-2408

E-mail: santiana@art.sch.unt.edu
Web Site: http://www.unt.edu/
Committed to excellence in teaching and the
discovery and application of knowledge through
research and creative activities. Offers Native
studies programs such as: Native American art,
parts I and II; Native American architecture; and
Native American clothing & personal
adornment. Student Ethnic Enrichment center
available.

UNIVERSITY OF THE INCARNATE WORD Native American Studies Program

College of Humanities, Arts and Social Sciences University of The Incarnate Word

4301 Broadway

San Antonio, TX 78209 Contact: Phil Lampe, Toll-free: 800-749-WORD Telephone: 210-829-6005

E-mail: lampe@universe.uiwtx.edu Web Site: http://www.uiw.edu/

Offers academic major focusing on cultures and

life forms indigenous to the Americas.

Multidisciplinary in nature, coursework includes history, art history, literature, museology, and anthropology as subcomponents. Studies also include cultures such as the Maya, Aztecs, Pueblo, Inca, and Caddo; and the fauna, flora, and environments in which Native Americans live.

UTAH

SOUTHERN UTAH UNIVERSITY Multicultural Center

Student Support Services Southern Utah University

351 W Center St.

Sharwan Smith Ctr., Rm. 205T

Cedar City, UT 84720

Contact: Tina Calamity, Counselor

Telephone: 435-586-7772 Fax: 435-865-8235

E-mail: Calamity@suu.edu

Web Site: http://www.suu.edu/ss/mcc/ Awards supplemental scholarships to Native American students in good academic standing who need financial assistance. Sponsors annual Native American Week in the spring semester.

WASHINGTON

ANTIOCH UNIVERSITY

Teacher Education Department

Antioch University 2326 6th Ave. Seattle, WA 98121

Contact: Linda Campbell, Professor, Centers for

Programs in Education Telephone: 206-268-4607

E-mail: lcampbell@antiochsea.edu Web Site: http://www.antiochsea.edu

Offers Puget Salish K-12 teaching endorsement, undergraduate and graduate reservation-based teaching certificate programs, and Puget Salish native language instruction. Scholarships available through Americorps program. Special support services for Native students include individualized tutoring and mentoring as well as reservation-based degree and certificate programs.

Publishes "Antioch's Efforts to Develop Culturally Congruent Teacher Education." Hosts statewide Indian Education Conferences and events.

EASTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY American Indian Studies Program

Eastern Washington University

2 IEC

Cheney, WA 99004 2444

Contact: Dierdre Almeida, Program Director

Telephone: 509-359-2441 Fax: 509-359-6475

E-mail: dalmeida@mail.ewu.edu

Web Site: http://sswhs.ewu.edu/ais.html
Provides advising system to Native American
students as a means of enriching and supporting
their individual academic goals and cultural
heritage. Minor in American Indian Studies is
available. Additional curricula include past and
contemporary American Indian histories,
philosophies, languages, and experiences.
Provides Native students with a student center
and mentoring.

NORTHWEST INDIAN COLLEGE Native American Student Recruitment, Retention, and Completion Project

Northwest Indian College 2522 Kwina Rd.

Bellingham, WA 98226 9217

Contact: Joseph A. Rich, Vice President of

Instruction and Student Services Telephone: 360-676-2772, ext. 4305

Fax: 360-715-0816 E-mail: jrich@nwic.edu

Offers certificates or degrees in the following programs: Native teacher preparation, Native American studies, Tribal environmental and natural resource management, public and tribal administration, and Native American art. Offers language instruction in Klallam, Lakota, Lushootseed, Makah, Ojibwe, Kwinaii, Tlingit, Twana, Xwlemi, and Sahaptin. Native student support programs include: AISES, AIBL, Oksale, Trio (SOAR, Talent Search, Upward Bound), and TERM. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON

American Indian Studies Center

University of Washington GN-05

GN-05

C514 Padelford Hall Seattle, WA 98195

Contact: James D. Nason, Director

Telephone: 206-543-9082

Surveys Indian cultural developments in art, music, language, and literature. Examines the historical and contemporary interactions of Indians in American society and the application of social science theories to Indian societal dynamics and institutions. Examines the legal status of Native Americans, focusing on reservations and the use of mineral, water, fishing, and hunting rights.

Native American Center of Excellence

School of Medicine University of Washington

SM-22

Seattle, WA 98195

Contact: Walt Hollow, M. D., Director

Telephone: 206-685-2489

Encourages American Indians and Alaska Natives to pursue careers in medicine and promotes research on Indian health issues. Integrates western medicine and the Native American way of life and develops course curriculum on Indian health issues.

UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON (Continued) School of Social Work

University of Washington

JH-30

Seattle, WA 98195

Contact: Don Whitney, Student Services

Director

Telephone: 206-543-8617

Works toward improving the lives of Native Americans through active recruiting of students into its bachelor's, master's, and doctoral programs; hiring and tenuring Native American faculty and staff; integrating Native American culture into its curricula; and funding special programs which ease the transition into the university setting for Native Americans. Students may choose from three structured course programs or take independent study tutorials on practice and research with Native Americans.

Ethnic Cultural Center and Theatre Complex

University of Washington

HH-05

Seattle, WA 98105

Contact: Luis Ramirez, Director

Telephone: 206-543-4635

Houses five Native American student groups that each year sponsor a new student orientation program, an all-Indian basketball tournament, a Native American arts and crafts show, and a powwow. These students also arrange for Native American film festivals, dances, and plays. Facility houses a Native American book collection and lending library.

Native American Medical Scholars Program

Basic Medical Sciences Program Washington State University Morrill Hall, Rm. 108

Pullman, WA 99164 3510 Telephone: 509-335-2602 Fax: 509-335-7420

E-mail: nygreen@wsu.edu

Provides the opportunity for Native American high school students to work directly with physicians, medical researchers, nurses, and other health professionals for one week. Provides up-to-date information on college admissions, financing, and high school preparation. Program covers cost of housing and food and includes field trips to rural hospitals, clinics, and care centers.

WISCONSIN

COLLEGE OF MENOMINEE NATION

Menominee Culture Institute

College of Menominee Nation

P.O. Box 1179

N172, S.T.H. 47 & 55

Keshena, WI 54135

Contact: Alan Caldwell, Director, Menominee

Culture Institute

Toll-free: 800-567-2344 Telephone: 715-799-5600

Fax: 715-799-1336

E-mail: acaldwell@menominee.edu Web Site: http://www.menominee.edu/ Offers courses in Menominee history and culture, as well as Menominee language. Support Services for Native students include the Veterans Upward Bound Program, Student Support Services program, CMN Young Democrats, and an AISES chapter. Grants and scholarships available include the Indian College Grant, Wisconsin Indian Education Scholarship. and more. Offers classes to the Stockbridge/Munsee Tribe, Oneida Tribe, and the Potawatomi Tribe in their home communities. One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium.

LAC COURTE OREILLES OJIBWA COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Lac Courte Oreilles Ojibwa Community College

RR 2, Box 2357 Hayward, WI 54843

Contact: Houser Schuyler, President

Telephone: 715-634-4790 Fax: 715-634-5049

Web Site: http://www.lco-college.edu/
One of the 33 member institutions of the
American Indian Higher Education Consortium.
Provides within the Indian community, a system
of postsecondary and continuing education with
an associate degree and certificate granting
capabilities, while maintaining an open door
policy. Curriculum reflects Ojibwa culture and
tribal self-determination. Provides opportunities
for individual self-improvement in a rapidly
changing technological world, while maintaining
the cultural integrity of the Anishinabe.

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MILWAUKEE

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee

P.O. Box 413

Milwaukee, WI 53201

Contact: Diane Amour, Director, Recruitment

and Outreach

Telephone: 414-229-6678

Fax: 414-229-5930

E-mail: damour@uwm.edu

Web Site: http://www.uwm.edu/Dept/AISS/
Offers American Indian studies, as well as ethnic studies courses. Provides Indian Community
School Intertribal scholarship. Fosters American Indian student support services that include recruitment and precollege advising, academic advising and personal counseling, help with the admission and financial aid process, peer mentoring, and cultural enrichment programming.

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-STOUT Multicultural Student Services

University of Wisconsin-Stout 217 Bowman Hall Menomonie, WI 54751

Contact: Kathy Baerg, Advisor, Multicultural

Student Services

Telephone: 715-232-1108

Fax: 715-232-1696

E-mail: baergk@uwstout.edu

Web Site: http://www.uwstout.edu/multicultural/ Offers courses in Native American studies and in Ojibwe lifeways. Sponsors an active campus and community organization known as SPIRITS--Students Participating In Representing Indian Tribes at Stout. Offers financial assistance through the Brinkman Scholarship, Undergraduate Minority Retention Grant, and the Advanced Opportunity Program.

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-SUPERIOR

University of Wisconsin-Superior Belknap & Catlin, P.O. Box 2000

Superior, WI 54880 4500

Contact: Ivy Vainio, Multicultural Student

Services Specialist Telephone: 715-394-8415 Fax: 715-394-8454

E-mail: yvainio@staff.uwsuper.edu Web Site: http://staff.uwsuper.edu/oma

Offers a minor in American Indian studies and

beginning and intermediate Ojibwe language instruction. Provides students with an American Indian student organization, American Indian resource center, Center of American Indian Studies, Office of Multicultural Affairs, and the Multicultural Center. Accepts BIA grants, the Lawton Minority Grant, Wisconsin Native American Student Grant, the Talent Incentive Program, and the Advanced Opportunity Grant (for graduate students only).

CANADA

ALGOMA UNIVERSITY Ojibwe Language and Culture Program

Algoma University 1520 Queen St. E

Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6A 2G4

Contact: Judy Syrette, Native Student Counselor

Telephone: 705-949-2301 ext. 218

Fax: 705-949-6583 E-mail: syrette@auc.ca Web Site: http://www.auc.ca/

Offers a three-year degree in Ojibwe language and culture, an Aboriginal interdisciplinary studies certificate, and a bachelor's degree in community economic and social development with certification from the Council for the Advancement of Native Development. Provides Native student services, the Shingwauk Student

Centre, and computer labs.

ATHABASCA UNIVERSITY Edmonton Learning Centre

Athabasca University 7th St. Plaza, 3rd Fl., N Tower 10030-107 St.

Edmonton AB T5J-3E4,

Canada

Contact: Jonathan Potskin, Toll-free: 800-788-9041 Telephone: 780-428-2064

Fax: 780-497-3416

E-mail: jonathan@athabascau.ca

Web Site: http://www.athabascau.ca/indigenous Addresses barriers that often prevent First Nation, Metis, and Inuit people from participating in postsecondary educational institutions. Develops courses, curriculum, and strategic planning related to Indigenous topics

and education. Addresses the

94

underrepresentation of Indigenous peoples in educational institutions. Also addresses the geographical isolation of First Nation, Metis, and Inuit people in the creation of learning opportunities that are facilitated by distance education delivery modes.

LAKEHEAD UNIVERSITY

955 Oliver Rd.

Thunder Bay, ON P7B 5E1

Canada

Contact: Nova Lawson, Coordinator, Aboriginal

Initiatives

Telephone: 807-343-8599

Fax: 807-346-7757

E-mail: nova.lawson@lakeheadu.ca Web Site: http://www.lakeheadu.ca/ Provides Aboriginal academic programs

Provides Aboriginal academic programs including: master of arts in Native and Canadian philosophy, bachelor of arts in Indigenous learning, Native teacher education program, Native language instructor's program, Native nurses entry program, Native access program for engineering, and the Aboriginal Institute. Offers Native support services through cultural events, tutoring program, Aboriginal speakers series, Aboriginal resources centre, Native student lounge, and Native Student Association. Hosts meetings and fellowships, including Aboriginal Peoples' Conference

LAURENTIAN UNIVERSITY

Laurentian University

Rm. L 210, 2nd Fl., R.D. Parker Bldg.

Sudbury, ON P3E 2C6

Canada

Contact: Shelley Moore, Coordinator, Native

Student Services

Telephone: 705-675-1151, ext. 1051

Fax: 705-675-4853

E-mail: smoore@nickel.laurentian.ca

Web Site:

http://www.laurentian.ca/native/index_e.asp
Offers three- and four-year Native studies
degrees, an Aboriginal legal education
certificate, and programs in social work and
Native human services. Language instruction in
Ojibwe and Cree is offered. Provides Native
student services, peer assistance, Native
orientation, and a computer lab. Sponsors Native

American Week and Counselor/Coordinator

Publishes "Native Social Work" journal Sponsors annual Native Awareness Week in November.

MASKWACHEES CULTURAL COLLEGE

Maskwachees Cultural College

Box 360

Hobbema AB T0C 1N0,

Canada

Contact: Linda Oldpan, Head, Cree Language

Telephone: 780-585-3925 Fax: 780-585-2080

E-mail: culture@wtc.ab.ca

Web Site: http://www.maskwachees.ab.ca/
Indigenous peoples' cultural college. Bases its
philosophy, process, and functioning on the
values, wisdom, teachings, and beliefs of the
Cree culture. By using Cree culture as its
foundation, it provides its services to all
Indigenous peoples' cultures. Offers B.A. and
B.Ed. in Native studies. Native language
instruction offered in Cree.

NIPISSING UNIVERSITY

Nipissing University 100 College Dr., Box 5002 North Bay ON P1B 8L7,

Canada

Contact: Diane Huber, Assistant Registrar

Telephone: 705-474-3461, x4517

Fax: 705-495-1772

E-mail: liaison@unipissing.ca.
Web Site: http://www.unipissing.ca/
Offers a B.A. in Native Studies, and
grant/scholarships for Native students. Native
language instruction includes Omushkego
Etuskanaysewin (culture and language of the
Mushkegowuk people). Native student support
programs include the Native Student Centre,
support services staff, and community support in
the local area.

RED CROW COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Red Crow Community College

P.O. Box 1258

Cardston, AB T0K 0K0

Canada

Contact: Marie Smallface Marule, President

Telephone: 403-737-2400

Fax: 403-737-2101

Web Site: http://www.fnahec.org/RedCrow.htm One of the 33 member institutions of the American Indian Higher Education Consortium. Curriculum reflects identified needs and interests of residents by providing adult basic education, vocational education, academic, cultural and community interest programs, courses, seminars, workshops, activities, and events. Provides assitance to tribal institutions and departments in staff, planning and research, and evaluation services according to identified needs.

SASKATCHEWAN INDIAN FEDERATED COLLEGE

Department of Indian Studies

Saskatchewan Indian Federated College

710 Duke St.

Saskatoon SK S7K 0P8,

Canada

Contact: R. Wesley Heber, Head Instructor

Telephone: 306-931-1800 Fax: 306-665-0175 E-mail: info@sifc.edu

Web Site: http://www.sifc.edu/

A First Nations controlled university college, which provides educational opportunities to both First Nations and non-First Nations students selected from a provincial, national, and international base. Preserves, protects, and interprets the history, language, culture, and artistic heritage of First Nations. Acquires and expands its base of knowledge and understanding in the best interests of First Nations and for the benefit of society by providing opportunities for quality bilingual and bicultural education under the mandate and control of the First Nations of Saskatchewan. Support services include Native Students Association and Indian Elders in Residence.

SIMON FRASER UNIVERSITY

Simon Fraser University 8888 University Dr. Burnaby BC V5A 1S6,

Canada

Contact: Janice Juarez-Molina, First Nations

Academic Advisor Telephone: 604-291-3555 E-mail: jejuarez@sfu.ca Web Site: http://www.sfu.ca/ Offers minor program in First Nations Studies and M.Ed. in Indigenous education and adminstrative leadership. Exposes students to research methods pertinent to past, present, and future issues affecting aboriginal peoples. Offers numerous sources of financial aid to Native students. Support services available to Native students include: First Nations coordinator, First Nations advisor, and a First Nations Student Centre. Various Native language courses available.

UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA School of Native Studies

University of Alberta 15-182 Education N Edmonton AB T6G 2G5,

Canada

Contact: Frank Tough, Director, School of

Native Studies

Telephone: 780-492-2991

Fax: 780-492-0527

E-mail: nativest@ualberta.ca

Web Site:

http://www.ualberta.ca/~nativest/index.html
Offers B.A. in Native studies (honors available
as well), and a bachelor of education five-year
combined degree. Respects Indigenous
knowledge systems, including languages,
cultures, and philosophies. Program of study
centers on developing knowledge, and analytical
and research skills suited to address problems of
current Native interests. Offers Native language
instruction in Cree and Diné. Native student
services are available.

Student online journal:

http://www.ualberta.ca/~pimohte

UNIVERSITY OF LETHBRIDGE Department of Native American Studies

University of Lethbridge 4401 University Dr. Lethbridge AB T1K 3M4,

Canada

Contact: Alfred Young Man, Chair, Native

American Studies

Telephone: 403-329-2635

Fax: 403-380-1855

E-mail: nas_sec01@uleth.ca
Web Site: http://home.uleth.ca/nas/
Offers language instruction in Cree and

Blackfoot. Special support services available to Native American students include Native American Students Association, as well as the Native American students lounge area.

UNIVERSITY OF SASKATCHEWAN Native Studies Department

University of Saskatchewan 121 McLean Hall, 106 Wiggins Rd. Saskatoon, SK S7N 5E6

Canada

Contact: Bob Lindsay, Sessional Instructor

Telephone: 306-966-6209 Fax: 306-966-6242

E-mail: okemaysim@admin.usask.ca

Web Site: http://www.usask.ca/native_studies/ Offers three- and four-year major in Native studies and introductory and intermediate Cree language instruction. Provides students with an Aboriginal Students' Centre and an Indigenous

Students' Council.

Publishes a biannual journal "Native Studies

Review."

Hosts Canadian Indigenous Native Studies Association (CINSA) conference.

UNIVERSITY OF SUDBURY Department of Native Studies

University of Sudbury Ramsey Lake Rd. Sudbury, ON P3E 2C6

Canada

Contact: Roger Spielmann, Department Chair

Telephone: 705-673-5661 Fax: 705-673-4912

E-mail: mrecollet@nickel.laurentian.ca Web Site: http://www.laurentian.ca (click on

"Faculty," then on "Native Studies")

Area Served: Canada

Dedicated to the revival of Native self-determination and renewal of Native thought and language. Promotes the rights, values, and approaches to self-determination, community development, and the analysis of national and global issues. Many Native-related courses available to enable students to earn one of the following Native Studies degrees offered by the institution: a 3-year general B.A., a 4-year specialized B.A. (Honours), and Aboriginal Legal Education Certificate Program. Offers the

following Native language instruction courses: Beginning to advanced levels of Ojibwe and Cree, as well as "Aboriginal Languages in the Contemporary Context." Native Students Association provides a forum for interaction through its social activities, and supports and participates in Native spiritual and political activities.

UNIVERSITY OF TORONTO

Aboriginal and Indigenous Studies in Education

University of Toronto 252 Bloor St., W Toronto, ON M5S 1V6

Canada

Telephone: 416-923-6641

Fax: 416-926-4725

Web Site: http://fcis.oise.utoronto.ca/

~aboriginal-ed

Addresses current issues, trends, perspectives, and models of Aboriginal and Indigenous education through many different philosophies and themes. Focuses on Aboriginal, Indigenous, and marginalized knowledge in global and educational contexts; the roles media, institutions, governments, and policymakers have in producing conditions of constraint; creating images of Aboriginal and Indigenous peoples; heightening social and class differences; and contributing to control politics. Has a special interest in developing, promoting, and sustaining anticolonial thought in both the academy and the community.

UNIVERSITY OF VICTORIA

Faculty of Human and Social Development

University of Victoria P.O. Box 1700, STN CSC Victoria BC V8W 2Y2,

Canada

Contact: S. Thiessen, Program Manager

Telephone: 250-721-6438 E-mail: igov@uvic.ca

Web Site: http://www.uvic.ca/igov
Offers a master of arts in Indigenous
governance. Annual fellowship available to
Native students for financial assistance.
Provides a Native student union, student center,

and Native counseling.

INDEX

—A—	Tribal College Journal of American Indian Higher
Aboriginal Youth Network, 19	Education, 45
Abya Yala News, 38	American Indian Institute, 10
Action Reading, Inc, 50	American Indian Library Association, 2
Administration for Children and Families	American Library Association, 2
Administration for Native Americans (ANA), 25	American Indian Quarterly, 38
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	American Indian Research and Development, Inc., 59
Administration for Native Americans, 25	American Indian Research and Policy Institute, 11
AEL, Inc.	American Indian Research Group, 11
ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small	American Indian Science & Engineering Society, 11
Schools, 22 Akwe:kon Press of the American Indian Program, 43	American Indian Science & Technology Education Consortium, 11
AT ACVA	American Indian Science and Engineering Society
ALASKA	Winds of Change, 46
Alaska Association for Bilingual Education, 48	American Indian Scouting Association, 19
Alaska Head Start Directors Association, 48	American Library Association
Alaska Native Curriculum and Teacher Development	American Indian Library Association, 2
Project, 48	American Tribally Controlled Colleges and Universities,
Alaska Native Heritage Center, 48	24
Alaska Native Knowledge Network, 49	Ani-Stohini/Unami Nation
Alaska Native Language Center, 49	Native American Home School Association, 9
Alaska Pacific University (APU), 64	Antioch University
Association of Village Council Presidents, Inc.	Teacher Education Department, 91
(AVCP, Inc.), 49	Appalachian American Indians of West Virginia, Inc., 62
Institute Social and Economic Research, 49	ARCUS
Maniilaq Association, 49	Directory of United States Arctic Researchers, 41
University of Alaska, Anchorage, 64	A DITTO NA
University of Alaska, Fairbanks, 64	ARIZONA
University of Alaska, Southeast Juneau, 64	Action Reading, Inc., 50
Alaska Association for Bilingual Education, 48	American Indian College of the Assemblies of God,
Alaska Head Start Directors Association, 48	Inc., 65
Alaska Native Heritage Center, 48	Arizona Commission of Indian Affairs, 50
Alaska Pacific University (APU)	Arizona State University, 65
Rural Alaska Native Adult (RANA) Program, 64	Bilingual Rural Inclusive Development for General &
Alberta Journal of Educational Research, 38	Exceptional, 50
Algoma University	Center for American Indian Economic Development,
Ojibwe Language and Culture Program, 93	50
American Association of Health Plans (AAHP	Coconino County Community College, 66
Foundation), 10	Diné College, 66
American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health	Educational Opportunity Centers, 51
Research: Journal of the National Center, 38	Heard Museum, 50
American Indian Business Leaders (AIBL), 19	Institute for Tribal Environmental Professionals, 51
American Indian College Fund, 18	Navajo NationJohnson O'Malley Department, 50
American Indian College of the Assemblies of God, Inc.,	Navajo/Hopi Statewide Academic Programs, 51
65	Northern Arizona University, 66-72
American Indian Culture and Research Journal, 38	Northland Pioneer College, 72
American Indian Culture Research Center, 59	Prescott College, 72
American Indian Disability Technical Assistance Center	University of Arizona, 73
(AIDTAC), 24	Arizona Commission of Indian Affairs, 50
American Indian Graduate Center, 18	Arizona State University
American Indian Heritage Foundation, 2	American Indian Institute, 65
American Indian Higher Education Consortium, 2	American Indian Students United for Nursing Project

. 1: \$

98 Index (ASUN), 65 Bilingual Research Journal, 39 Center for Indian Education, 65 Indian Legal Program, 65 Journal of American Indian Education, 42 Labriola National American Indian Data Center, 13 **ARKANSAS** University of Arkansas, 73 Assembly of First Nations, 2 Association for the Study of American (ASAIL) Studies in American Indian Literatures (SAIL), 45 Association of American Indian Physicians, 3 Association of Community Tribal Schools (ACTS), 3 Association of Village Council Presidents, Inc. (AVCP, Inc.), 49 Association on American Indian Affairs, 3 Athabasca University Edmonton Learning Centre, 93 Audio-Forum, 39 -B---Bay Mills Community College, 78 Bilingual Research Journal, 39 Bilingual Rural Inclusive Development for General &

Exceptional, 50 Billy Osceola Memorial Library, 52 Black Hills State University, 89 Blackfeet Community College, 81 Buffalo State College Native American Student Services, 85

Bureau of Indian Affairs

Adult Education Program, 27 Anchorage Field Office, 29 Billings Area Office, 29 Branch of Administration, 27

Branch of Research and Policy Analysis, 27

Cheyenne River Agency, 29

Chinle Agency, 29

Crow Creek/Lower Brule Agency, 29

Division of Planning, 27

Division of School Improvement Resources, 28

Eastern Navajo Agency, 30 Exceptional Education, 28 Ft. Defiance Agency, 30 Ft. Apache Agency, 30 Hopi Agency, 30

Johnson O'Malley (JOM) Program, 28

Minneapolis Area Office, 30 Northern Pueblos Agency, 30

Office of Indian Education Programs, 27, 28

Oklahoma Area Office, 31 Papago Agency, 31

Pima Agency, 31 Pine Ridge Agency, 31 Rosebud Agency, 31

Sacramento Area Office, 32

Shiprock Agency, 32

Southern and Eastern States Agency, 32

Southern Pueblos Agency, 32

Standing Rock Agency, 32

Tribally Controlled Colleges, 29

Turtle Mountain Agency, 32

Western Navajo Agency, 33

Bureau of Indian Education

Higher Education Grant Program, 28

CALIFORNIA

California Department of Education--American Indian Education Office, 51

California Indian Legal Services, Inc., 51

California Polytechnic State University, 73

California State University, San Bernadino, 73

D-Q University, 74

Humboldt State University, 74

Humbolt State University, 74

Nihewan Foundation for Native American Education.

San Francisco State University, 75

Sonoma State University, 75

Stanford University, 75

University of California, Berkeley, 75

University of California, Davis, 74

University of California, Irvine, 76

University of California, Riverside, 76

University of California, Santa Cruz, 76

California Polytechnic State University

Multicultural Center, 73

California State University, San Bernadino, 73

CANADA

Algoma University, 93

Athabasca University, 93

Lakehead University, 94

Laurentian University, 94

Maskwachees Cultural College, 94

Nipissing University, 94

Red Crow Community College, 94

Saskatchewan Indian Federated College, 95

Simon Fraser University, 95

University of Alberta, 95

University of Lethbridge, 95

University of Saskatchewan, 96

University of Sudbury, 96

University of Toronto, 96

University of Victoria, 96

Canadian Journal of Native Education, 40

Cankdeska Cikana Community College, 86

Center for American Indian Economic Development, 50

Center for American Indian Research and Education

(CAIRE), 12

Center for World Indigenous Studies, 12

Fourth World Journal, 41 Central Michigan University, 79

Chariot Distribution, 40

Cherokee Cultural Society of Houston

Cherokee Messenger, 40

Cherokee Heritage Indian Education Foundation (CHIEF),

Cherokee Messenger, 40

Cherokee Quarterly, 40

Children's Theatre Plays.com, 40

CHOICE Magazine

Lisa Mitten's Native American Sites, 42

Clarkson University, 85

Clear Light Publishers, 40

Coconino County Community College

Minority Student Recruitment, 66

College of Menominee Nation

Menominee Culture Institute, 92

COLORADO

Colorado Commission on Indian Affairs, 51

Columbia University

National Center for Children in Poverty (NCCP), 14

Common Ground, 41

Comprehensive Regional Assistance Centers, 22

Concordia College, 79

CONNECTICUT

Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection,

Consortia of Administrators for Native American Rehabilitation, 3

Cornell University

American Indian Program, 86

Native Americas Journal, 43

Council for Exceptional Children, 3

Council of Energy Resource Tribes, 12

Tribal Resource Institute in Business, Engineering and Science, 17

Council of Three Rivers American Indian Center, Inc.

Kentucky Indian Manpower, 53

Creighton University

Native American Association, 83

Crownpoint Institute of Technology, 84

—D—

D-Q University, 74

Dartmouth College

Native American Studies, 84

Department of Health and Human Services

Administration for Native Americans (ANA), 25

Diné College

Center for Diné Teacher Education, 66

Directory of United States Arctic Researchers, 41

Diversity Database, 41

Division of Educational Opportunity and Equity Montana Office, 55

Division of School Improvement Resources, 28

Dull Knife Memorial College, 81

<u>—Е</u>—

Eastern Oregon University

Native American Program, 88

Eastern Washington University

American Indian Studies Program, 91

Education Line Offices

Anchorage Field Office, 29

Billings Area Office, 29

Cheyenne River Agency, 29

Chinle Agency, 29

Crow Creek/Lower Brule Agency, 29

Eastern Navajo Agency, 30

Ft. Defiance Agency, 30

Ft. Apache Agency, 30

Hopi Agency, 30

Minneapolis Area Office, 30

Northern Pueblos Agency, 30

Oklahoma Area Office, 31

Papago Agency, 31

Pima Agency, 31

Pine Ridge Agency, 31

Portland Area Office, 31

Rosebud Agency, 31

Sacramento Area Office, 32

Shiprock Agency, 32

Southern and Eastern States Agency, 32

Southern Pueblos Agency, 32

Standing Rock Agency, 32

Turtle Mountain Agency, 32

Western Navajo Agency, 33

En'owkin Centre and the Penticton Indian Band Okanagan Nation

Indigenous Environmental Network, 4

Endangered Language Fund, Inc. 18

ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small

Schools, 22

Even Start: Indian Tribes and Tribal Organizations, 23

—F—

The Falmouth Institute, Inc., 12
First Nations Development Institute, 4

FLORIDA

Billy Osceola Memorial Library, 52

Florida (continued)

Florida Department of Education, 52

Fond du Lac Tribal and Community College, 80

Fort Berthold Community College, 86

Fort Peck Community College, 81

Four Winds Indian Books, 41

Four Worlds International Institute for Human and Community Development, 13

Fourth World Journal, 41

Friends of American Indians in Education, 61

G

The GEM Consortium

National Consortium for Graduate Degrees for Minorities in Engineering and Science, 15

George Washington University

National Clearinghouse for Bilingual Education (NCBE), 14

Georgetown University

Tribal Executive Institute, 17

Girl Scouts of Black Hills, 60

Great Promise

Great Promise for Young American Indians, 41 Great Promise for Young American Indians, 41

—H—

Haskell Indian Nations University, 78

HAWAII

Hale Kuamo'o Center for Hawaiian Language and Culture, 52

Leeward Community College, 76 Native Hawaiian Leadership Project, 52 University of Hawaii at Hilo, 76

University of Hawaii at Manoa, 77

The Haworth Press, Inc. .

Journal of Ethnic & Cultural Diversity in Social Work, 42

Heard Museum, 50

Humboldt State University

Indian Teacher and Educational Personnel Program,

Humbolt State University

Department of Native American Studies, 74

--I--

IAIR Inc.

Independent American Indian Review (IAIR, Inc.), 42

IDAHO

Bureau of Federal Programs, 53 Idaho State University, 77

Idaho State Department of Education

Bureau of Federal Programs, 53

Idaho State University

Minority Student Recruitment, 77

ILLINOIS

Illinois Association for Multilingual Multicultural Education, 53

IMDiversity.com

Minorities' Job Bank, 13

Independent American Indian Review (IAIR, Inc.), 42

Indian Country Today, 42

Indian Education Formula Grants to Local Education

Agencies, 23

INDIANA

Indiana Department of Education, 53

Indiana University, 77

Purdue University, 77

Indiana Department of Education

Language Minority & Migrant Programs, 53

Indiana University

American Indian Studies Research Institute, 77

Indigenous Environmental Network, 4

Indigenous Language Institute, 4

Institute for Tribal Environmental Professionals, 51

Institute of American Indian Arts

Institute of American Indian and Alaska Native

Culture and Arts, 84

Institute of Museum and Library Services

Library Services for Indian Tribes and Hawaiian

Natives Program, 35

Intercultural Development Research Association, 13 International Indian Treaty Council (IITC), 4

International Work Group for Indigenous Affairs, 4 Intertribal Timber Council, 5

IOWA

Iowa Department of Education, 53 University of Iowa, 77

J

Jeffrey Norton Publishers Audio-Forum, 39

Johnson O'Malley (JOM) Program, 28

Journal of American Indian Education, 42

Journal of Ethnic & Cultural Diversity in Social Work, 42

--K---

KANSAS

Haskell Indian Nations University, 78

KENTUCKY

Kentucky Indian Manpower, 53 Keweenaw Bay Ojibwa Community College, 79

—L—

Labriola National American Indian Data Center, 13 Lac Courte Oreilles Ojibwa Community College, 92 Lakehead University

Lakehead University Alumni Bookstore, 94

Laurentian University, 94
Leech Lake Tribal College, 80
Leeward Community College
Director of Admissions, 76
Lisa Mitten's Native American Sites, 42
Little Big Horn College, 81
Little Priest Tribal College, 83

LOUISIANA

Louisiana Governor's Office of Indian Affairs, 54

<u>--М</u>--

MAINE

Maine Department of Education, 54 University of Maine, 78

Maniilaq Association, 49

MARYLAND

Maryland Commission on Indian Affairs, 54

Maskwachees Cultural College, 94

MASSACHUSETTS

University of Massachusetts, Amherst, 78

MICHIGAN

Bay Mills Community College, 78 Central Michigan University, 79 Keweenaw Bay Ojibwa Community College, 79 Northern Michigan University, 79 Section 41 Michigan Bilingual Education Program, 54 University of Michigan, 79

MIGIZI Communications, Inc.

National Native Information Center (NNIC), 43

MINNESOTA

Concordia College, 79
Fond du Lac Tribal and Community College, 80
Leech Lake Tribal College, 80
Minnesota Independent School Forum, 55
University of Minnesota, Duluth, 80
University of Minnesota, Morris, 80
White Earth Tribal and Community College, 81

Minorities' Job Bank, 13
Minot State University
Native American Cultural Awareness Center, 87

MISSOURI

Southwest Missouri Indian Center, 55

MONTANA

Bilingual Education, 55
Blackfeet Community College, 81

Dull Knife Memorial College, 81 Fort Peck Commuity College, 81 Little Big Horn College, 81 Montana Advisory Council for Indian Education, 55 Montana Office of Public Instruction, 55 Montana Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education, 56 Montana Office of the Governor, 56 Montana Small Schools Alliance, 56 Montana State University, Billings, 82 Montana State University, Great Falls, 82 Montana State University, Northern, 82 Montana United Indian Association, 56 Rocky Mountain College, 82 Salish Kootenai College, 82 Stone Child College, 83 University of Montana, 83 University of Montana: Montana Tech, 83 Montana State University, Billings Director of Admissions, 82 Montana State University, Great Falls Montana Indian Student Fee Waiver, 82 Montana State University, Northern Director of Admissions, 82 Montana University System Montana Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education, 56 Morris K. Udall Foundation, 18 Native American Congressional Internship Program. 18 MSSR Electronic Books, 43

--N---

National Action Council for Minorities in Engineering, 5 National Advisory Council on Indian Education, 23 National Association for Multicultural Education, 5 National Association of Federally Impacted Schools, 6 National Center for American Indian and Alaska Native Mental Health, 14, 38 National Center for Children in Poverty, 14 National Center for Fair and Open Testing (Fair Test), 6 National Clearinghouse for Bilingual Education, 14 National Congress of American Indians, 6 National Consortium for Graduate Degrees for Minorities in Engineering and Science, Inc., 15 National Indian Brotherhood Assembly of First Nations, 2 National Indian Child Welfare Association, 6 National Indian Council on Aging, 7 National Indian Education Association, 7 National Indian Head Start Directors Association, 7 National Indian Health Board, 7 National Indian Impacted Schools Association, 7 National Indian Law Library, 15 National Indian School Board Association, 8 National Indian Telecommunications Institute (NITI), 15

National Indian Youth Leadership Project, 20 National Johnson O'Malley Association (NJOMA), 8 National Museum of Natural History, 34 National Museum of the American Indian, 35 National Native Information Center (NNIC), 43 National Park Service Common Ground, 41 National School Board Association, 8 National Science Foundation Louis Stokes Alliances for Minority Participation Program, 34 Native American Business Alliance, 8 Native American Fish and Wildlife Society, 8 Native American Home School Association, 9 Native American Journalists Association, 9 Native American Language Center, 15 Native American Public Telecommunications, 9 Vision Maker, 46 Native American Research and Training Center, 15 Native American Rights Fund (NARF) National Indian Law Library, 15 Native American Scholarship Fund, 19 Native American Technologies, Inc., 16 Native American Times, 43 Native Americas Journal, 43 Native Book Centre, 43 Native Child, 43 Native Cradle Learning Project, 60 Native Economic Development Guidance and Empowerment, 27 Native Language Instruction Alaskan Indian languages, 64 Arithara, 86 Assiniboine, 81 Blackfoot, 95 Cherokee, 88 Cree, 94-96 Crow, 81 Dakota, 81, 89 Dakota, 80 Diné, 95 Eskimo, 64 Hawaiian, 76 Hidatsa, 86 Hopi, 72 Kahnawake Mohawk, 78 Klallam, 91 Kwinaii, 91 Lakota, 89-91 Lushootseed, 91 Makah, 91 Mandan, 86 Massachusett-Wampnoag, 78 Menominee, 92 Mvskoke Creek, 88 Navajo, 66, 72, 84

Ojibwe, 79, 80, 91, 93, 94, 96 Omushkego Etuskanaysewin, 94 Plains Indian languages, 77 Puget Salish, 91 Sahaptin, 91 Shoshone, 77 Tlingit, 64, 91 Twana, 91 Western Abenaki, 78 Western Apache, 78 Xwlemi, 91 Native Monthly Reader, 44 Native Peoples Magazine, 44 Native Village, 44 NativeWeb, Inc., 44 Navajo Nation Navajo Nation--Johnson O'Malley Department, 50 Navajo/Hopi Statewide Academic Programs, 51

NEBRASKA

Creighton University, 83 Little Priest Tribal College, 83 Nebraska Department of Education, 56 Nebraska Indian Commission, 57 Nebraska Indian Community College, 84

Nebraska Indian Community College, 84

NEVADA

Nevada Department of Education, 57

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Dartmouth College, 84

NEW MEXICO

Crownpoint Institute of Technology, 84
Institute of American Indian Arts, 84
New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology, 84
New Mexico Office of Indian Affairs, 57
Southwestern Indian Polytechnic Institute, 85
University of New Mexico, 85
Western New Mexico University, 85

New Mexico Highlands University

American Indian Science & Technology Education Consortium, 11

New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology Director of Admissions, 84

NEW YORK

Buffalo State College, 85 Clarkson University, 85 Cornell University, 86 New York State Association for Bilingual Education, 57 New York State Education Department, 57 State University of New York at New Paltz, 86 News from Native California, 44 Nipissing University, 94 North American Indian Cultural Center, Inc., 59

NORTH CAROLINA

North Carolina Commission of Indian Affairs, 57 North Carolina Native American Youth Organization (NCNAYO), 58

The Tuscarora Center of Eastern North Carolina, 58 University of North Carolina at Pembroke, 86

NORTH DAKOTA

Cankdeska Cikana Community College, 86
Fort Berthold Community College, 86
Minot State University, 87
North Dakota Department of Public Instruction, 58
Sitting Bull College, 87
Turtle Mountain Community College, 87
United Tribes Technical College, 87

Northeastern Oklahoma A&M College, 88

Northern Arizona University

American Indian Quarterly, 66

American Indian Science and Engineering Society (AISES), 66

Applied Indigenous Studies, 67

Associated Students for Women's Issues, 67

BF STAR Scholars Program, 67

Bilingual Rural Inclusive Development for General & Exceptional, 50

Capacity Building for American Indians Project, 67
Career Services Multicultural Leadership Program, 67
Center for American Indian Economic Development,
50

Commission of Ethnic Diversity, 67

Consortia of Administrators for Native American Rehabilitation, 3

Cultural Diversity in Education, 67

Education Technology Improvement Plan Project (ETIP), 66

Educational Opportunity Centers, 51

Educational Support Programs, 67

Educational Talent Search Program, 68

Four-Corners Upward Bound Math and Science Program, 68

Hopi Senom Club, 68

Institute for Future Work Force Development, 68

Institute for Native Americans, 68

Institute for Tribal Environmental Professionals, 51

International Indigenous Peoples Resource Center, 68

Learning Assistance Centers, 68

MA in TESL (Teaching English as a Second Language), 69

Minority Biomedical Research Support Program, 69

Minority Student Development Program, 69

Multicultural Student Center, 69

NASA/Space Grant (American Indian Mobile Educational Resource-AIMER), 69

Native American Alumni Association (NAAA), 69

Native American Business Organization, 70

Native American Engineering Program, 70

Native American Forestry Program, 70

Native American Recruitment Team (NART), 70

Native American Student Services, 66, 70

Native Americans United, 70

Navajo Nation Archaeology Department, NAU Branch, 71

Navajo-Hopi School Administrator Fellows (NHSAF), 70

Navajo/Hopi Statewide Academic Programs, 51

Nizhoni Academy, 71

Northern Arizona University Summer EPA Intern Program, 71

Office of Academic Services, College of Business Administration, 71

Ph.D. In Applied Linguistics, 71

STAR (Successful Transition and Academic Readiness) Program, 71

Student Summer Internship Program, 72

Student Support Services, 72

Teaching Indigenous Languages, 45

Tribal Air Quality, 72

Upward Bound, 72

Northern Michigan University

Director of Admissions, 79

Northern Review, The, 44

Northland Pioneer College, 72

Northland Publishing, 45

Northwest Education Magazine, 45

Northwest Indian College

Native American Student Recruitment, Retention, and Completion Project, 91

Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission, 61

Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory

Northwest Education Magazine, 45

0

Office of Bilingual Education and Minority Languages
Affairs, 22

Office of Educational Research and Improvement ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools, 22

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education Comprehensive Regional Assistance Centers, 22 Office of Indian Education, 24

Office of Indian Education Programs (OIEP), 28 Branch of Research and Policy Analysis, 27 Oglala Lakota College, 89

оню

North American Indian Cultural Center, Inc., 59

OKLAHOMA

American Indian Research and Development, Inc., 59 Northeastern Oklahoma A&M College, 88 Oklahoma State University, 88 University of Tulsa, 88

Oklahoma Indian Times

Native American Times, 43

Oklahoma State University

Multi-Cultural Development & Assessment Center, 88

OREGON

Eastern Oregon University, 88 Mother Earth's Children, 59

--P--

Pacific Resources for Education and Learning (PREL), 16
Portland Area Office, 31
Prescott College, 72
Professional Development Grants, 24
Project Success Enrichment, 16
Purdue University, 77

—R—

Red Crow Community College, 94
RED INK Magazine, 45
RedSun Institute
Native Monthly Reader, 44
Rehabilitation Services Administration
American Indian Disability Technical Assistance
Center, 24
Rocky Mountain College, 82

<u>_s_</u>

Salish Kootenai College, 82
San Francisco State University, 75
Saskatchewan Indian Federated College
Department of Indian Studies, 95
School-to-Work Opportunities-Development and
Implementation Grants for Indian Youth, 22
Simon Fraser University, 95
Sinte Gleska University, 89
Sisseton Wahpeton Community College
North Central Association of College and Schools, 89
SiTanka University, 89
Sitting Bull College, 87
Smithsonian Institution

Minority Internship Program, 34 National Museum of Natural History, 34 National Museum of the American Indian, 35 Society for the Advancement of Chicanos and Native Americans in Science, 9

Society for the Study of the Indigenous Languages of the America, 16

Sonoma State University, 75

South and Meso American Indian Rights Center, 17 Abya Yala News, 38

SOUTH CAROLINA

South Carolina State Department of Education, 59

South Carolina State Department of Education, 59

SOUTH DAKOTA

American Indian Culture Research Center, 59
Black Hills State University, 89
Girl Scouts of Black Hills, 60
Native Cradle Learning Project, 60
Oglala Lakota College, 89
Sinte Gleska University, 89
Sisseton Wahpeton Community College, 89
SiTanka University, 89
South Dakota Department of Education and Cultural
Affairs, 60
South Dakota State University, 90

South Dakota State University

Department of Foreign languages, 90

South Puget Intertribal Planning Agency (SPIPA), 61

Southern Utah University

Multicultural Center, 90

Southwestern Indian Polytechnic Institute, 85

Stanford University

American Indian, Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian Program, 75

State University of New York at New Paltz

Multicultural Recruitment, 86

Stone Child College, 83

Strengthening American Tribally Controlled Colleges and Universities, 24

Studies in American Indian Literatures (SAIL), 45

Support Services International, Inc., 17

—T—

Teaching Indigenous Languages, 45

TENNESSEE

Tennessee Commission on Indian Affairs, 60 Tennessee State Department of Education, 60

Territorial Book Foundation Cherokee Quarterly, 40

TEXAS

Texas A&M University, 90

Texas Association for Bilingual Education, 60 University of North Texas, 90 University of The Incarnate Word, 90

Texas A&M University, 90

Three Feathers Associates

American Indian Disabilities Services Quality Improvement Center, 25

Tribal College Journal of American Indian Higher Education, 45

Tribal Executive Institute, 17

Tribal Resource Institute in Business, Engineering and Science, 17

Tribally Controlled Colleges, 29

Turtle Mountain Community College, 87

Tribal College Rural Systemic Initiative, 34

—U—

U.S. Department of Education

Comprehensive Regional Assistance Centers, 22 Even Start: Indian Tribes and Tribal Organizations, 23 Indian Education Formula Grants to Local Education Agencies, 23

National Advisory Council on Indian Education, 23 National STW Learning & Information Center, 22 Office of Bilingual Education and Minority

Office of Elementary and Secondary Education, 23
Office of Elementary and Secondary Education
(OESE), 24

Office of Indian Education, 24

Languages Affairs, 22

Office of Postsecondary Education (OPE), 24

Professional Development Grants, 24

Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) Programs, 25

School-to-Work Opportunities-Development and Implementation Grants, 22

Strengthening American Tribally Controlled Colleges and Universities, 24

Vocational Rehabilitation Service Projects for American Indians, 25

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

Indian Health Service, 26

Head Start - American Indian/Alaska Native Programs Branch, 26

Head Start Indian Health Service - Headquarters West. 26

Indian Health Service Scholarship Branch, 27

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Native Economic Development Guidance and Empowerment (EDGE), 27

U.S. Department of Labor

Division of Indian and Native American Programs, 33

U. S. House of Representatives

Committee on Education and the Workforce, 33

U.S. Senate

Committee on Indian Affairs, 33

United National Indian Tribal Youth, Inc. (UNITY), 20

United South and Eastern Tribes, Inc. (USET), 9, 10

United Tribes Technical College, 87

University of Alaska Anchorage

Alaska Native Curriculum and Teacher Development Project, 48

Institute Social and Economic Research, 49

Native Student Services, 64

University of Alaska Fairbanks, 64

Alaska Native Knowledge Network, 49

Alaska Native Language Center, 49

University of Alaska, Southeast Juneau

Professional Education Center, 64

University of Alberta

Alberta Journal of Educational Research, 38

School of Native Studies, 95

University of Arizona

American Indian Graduate Center, 73

American Indian Studies Program, 73

Native American Research and Training Center, 15

RED INK Magazine, 45

Tribal Law and Policy Program, 73

University of Arkansas, 73

University of British Columbia

Canadian Journal of Native Education, 40

University of California, Berkeley

American Indian Graduate Program, 75

Native American Studies, 75

University of California, Davis

Native American Language Center, 15

University of California, Irvine

Native American Studies, 76

University of California, Los Angeles

American Indian Culture and Research Journal, 38

University of California, Riverside

Native American Studies, 76

University of California, Santa Cruz

Native American Resource Center, 76

University of Colorado Health Sciences Center

National Center for American Indian and Alaska

Native Mental Health, 14

University of Hawaii at Hilo, 76

Hale Kuamo'o Center for Hawaiian Language and Culture, 52

University of Hawaii at Manoa

Center for Hawaiian Studies, 77

Native Hawaiian Leadership Project, 52

University of Iowa, 77

University of Lethbridge

Department of Native American Studies, 95

University of Maine

Office of Native American Programs, 78

University of Maryland

Diversity Database, 41

University of Massachusetts, Amherst

Certificate Program in Native American Indian Studies, 78

University of Michigan, 79

University of Minnesota Duluth

American Indian Learning Resource Center, 80

University of Minnesota, Morris

Minority Student Program, 80

University of Montana

American Indian Disability Technical Assistance Center, 24

Indians into Psychology, 83

Rural Institute on Disabilities, 24

University of Montana: Montana Tech

Succeeding Students in Engineering Programs, 83

University of Nebraska Press

American Indian Quarterly, 38

University of New Mexico

American Indian Graduate Center, 85

University of North Carolina at Pembroke

American Indian Studies Department, 86

University of North Texas, 90

University of Oklahoma

American Indian Head Start Quality Improvement Center, 25

American Indian Institute, 10

University of Saskatchewan

Native Studies Department, 96

University of Sudbury

Department of Native Studies, 96

University of The Incarnate Word

Native American Studies Program, 90

University of Toronto

Aboriginal and Indigenous Studies in Education, 96

University of Tulsa

Native American Law Center, 88

University of Victoria

Faculty of Human and Social Development, 96

University of Washington

American Indian Research Group, 11

American Indian Studies Center, 91

Ethnic Cultural Center and Theatre Complex, 92

School of Social Work, 92

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, 93

University of Wisconsin-Stout

Multicultural Student Services, 93

University of Wisconsin-Superior, 93

UTAH

Southern Utah University, 90

__V_

Vision Maker, 46

Vocational Rehabilitation Service Projects for American Indians, 25

w

Wapato School District

National Indian Impacted Schools Association, 7

WASHINGTON

Antioch University, 91

Eastern Washington University, 91

Friends of American Indians in Education, 61

Native American Center of Excellence, 91

Northwest Indian College, 91

Northwest Indian Fisheries Commission, 61

South Puget Intertribal Planning Agency (SPIPA), 61

University of Washington, 91, 92

Washington State Governor's Office of Indian Affairs,

61

Washington State University, 92

Western Washington Native American Education Consortium, 61

Washington State University

Native American Medical Scholars Program, 92

WEST VIRGINIA

Appalachian American Indians of West Virginia, Inc, 62

WestEd

WestEd Culture & Language in Education, 17

WestEd Culture & Language in Education, 17

Western New Mexico University

Graduate Studies Center, 85

Western Washington Native American Education

Consortium, 61

White Bison, Inc., 20

White Earth Tribal and Community College

Minority Student Recruitment, 81

Winds of Change, 46

WISCONSIN

College of Menominee Nation, 92

Lac Courte Oreilles Ojibwa Community College, 92

University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, 93

University of Wisconsin-Stout, 93

University of Wisconsin-Superior, 93

Wisconsin Indian Education Association, 62

—Y—

Yale University

Endangered Language Fund, Inc., 18

Yukon College

Northern Review, The, 44

111



ERIC Clearinghouse on Rural Education and Small Schools Charleston, WV



National Indian Education Association Alexandria, VA

BEST COPY AVAILABLE





U.S. Department of Education



Office of Educational Research and Improvement (OERI)
National Library of Education (NLE)
Educational Resources Information Center (ERIC)

NOTICE

REPRODUCTION BASIS

	(Blanket) form (on file within the ERIC system), encompassing all or classes of documents from its source organization and, therefore, does not require a "Specific Document" Release form.
	This document is Federally-funded, or carries its own permission to reproduce, or is otherwise in the public domain and, therefore, may be reproduced by ERIC without a signed Reproduction Release form (either "Specific Document" or "Blanket").

This document is covered by a signed "Reproduction Release